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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Chan, Sze-wan
Lam, Kwong-wai
Lui, Lai-kwan

Non-executive Director:
Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai
Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai
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SOLICITORS

Baker & McKenzie
Sidley Austin
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

BNP Paribas

China Everbright Bank Company Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank Ltd.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

26th Floor, MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AR &EX

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2862 8555

Fax:  (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICES IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Beijing Office:

Room 202, Oriental Place

No. 9 East Dongfang Road
North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
Post Code: 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638
Fax: (8610) 6466 0238

Chengdu Office:

4th Floor, Chinese Estates Centre
No. 99 Tidu Street

Qingyang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province, PRC

Post Code: 610016

Tel: (8628) 8676 7747

Fax:  (8628) 6613 5700

Shanghai Office:

Room B103, Evergo Tower
1325 Central Huaihai Road
Xuhui District, Shanghai, PRC
Post Code: 200031

Tel: (8621) 6445 8945
Fax:  (8621) 6445 9710
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OFFICES IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
(Cont'd)

Shenzhen Office:

Rooms 1-3, South Gong, 6th Floor
Lowu Commercial Plaza

25 Railway Station Square

Luohu District, Shenzhen
Guangdong Province, PRC

Post Code: 518001

Tel: (86755) 8234 7139

Fax:  (86755) 8234 0012

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel:  (852) 2866 6999
Fax:  (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail: investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
EEANT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 34, appointed as a Director of the Company
since 2006 and has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board in
March 2014 and the Chief Executive Officer in April 2014 respectively. He
acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is also the
chairman of the investment committee of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a
Bachelor Degree of Laws from King's College London, a Master Degree
of Laws from The London School of Economics and Political Science,
and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy in Laws from King's College London.
He worked at The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and Longview Partners
LP, both in London prior to joining the Company. Mr. Lau is a registered
attorney in the State of New York and a CFA (Chartered Financial Analyst)
charterholder. He is the son of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (a substantial
shareholder and a controlling shareholder of the Company) and the
nephew of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai.

Ms. CHAN, Sze-wan, aged 36, joined the Group (the Company together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2002 and has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. She also acts as a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is the Manager
of Sales and Leasing Department and also responsible for overseeing
the Group’s cosmetics business, including Two Girls products. Ms. Chan
holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from University
of Management and Technology, United States of America. She is
responsible for the Group's marketing and properties’ sales and leasing
affairs. Ms. Chan has over 12 years of experience in sales and marketing.
She is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an associate of Mr. Joseph
Lau, Luen-hung (a substantial shareholder and a controlling shareholder of
the Company).

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 59, joined the Group in 1989 and has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. He
is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a member of the investment committee of the Company and acts as the
chief investment officer. Mr. Lam has been appointed as a non-executive
director of LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Chi
Cheung Investment Company, Limited (up to June 2013) and LT Holdings
Limited (up to June 2014)) since 7th February, 2013 and was a non-
executive director of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (now known as Common
Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited) for the period from
14th August, 2012 to 7th March, 2013, the shares of these companies
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom. He has over 37 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (contd)

Ms. LUI, Lai-kwan, aged 38, appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company since 2012. She has extensive experience in property
investment and is responsible for overseeing the Group's investment
projects in Mainland China and overseas. Ms. Lui joined the Group in
2001 and has participated in the Group's property leasing business
in Hong Kong and Mainland China during 2001 to 2005 before her
appointment an Executive Director of the Company. She is a member of
the 12th Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, an Honorary Trustee of Peking University and
a board member of Conservation International, an international non-
governmental organization. Ms. Lui holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Chemistry from King's College London. She is an associate of Mr. Joseph
Lau, Luen-hung, a substantial shareholder and a controlling shareholder of

the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 62, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-executive
director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. She is registered with the Royal
College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada and a practising dentist
in Ontario. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor
Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is
the younger sister of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung, a substantial shareholder
and a controlling shareholder of the Company and the aunt of Mr. Lay,

Ming-wai.
Note

A The discloseable interest of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company under the provisions
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance is set out in Directors'
Report under the sections of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
in the Securities of the Company and Associated Corporation” and
"Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Securities of the Company” of
this annual report.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEfE/

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 56, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of the
nomination committee, special committee and investment committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration from the Monash University, Australia. He is also an
associate member of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. He has over 35 years of experience in
finance and accounting industries. Mr. Chan is currently a director of High
Progress Consultants Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director of China Investments Holdings Limited, Far East Consortium
International Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited and Tern
Properties Company Limited, and was an independent non-executive
director of Junefield Department Store Group Limited for the period from
31st December, 2002 to the conclusion of its annual general meeting
held on 29th May, 2013, the shares of all these companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 50, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2006. She is the chairman of the
nomination committee, a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and special committee of the Company. Ms. Loh holds a
Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from
1990 to 1997, and has since become a practising barrister-at-law after
she was called to the Hong Kong Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and the United Kingdom (1991), and is
also a barrister and solicitor in the Supreme Court of the Australian Capital
Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution) Accredited Mediator.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 49, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee,
special committee and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has over 27 years of
experience in auditing, finance and accounting industries. He is currently
a director of ACE (CPA) Limited and a director and the general manager
of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration and a Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce
(Business Programme), both from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong as well as a Master of Science Degree in China Business Studies
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
respectively.
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Mr. Matthew CHEONG, Veng-va, aged 57, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 1994 and is the
General Manager — Operations of the Group. Mr. Cheong is a chartered
engineer. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Science from the University
of Toronto, Canada, a Master Degree of Science in Automation Systems
and Management and a Doctorate Degree of Engineering, both from the
City University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and The Institute of Measurement and Control. Mr.
Cheong is responsible for the general operations of the Group including
information technology, human resources and administration. He has over
29 years of experience in the management and operations.

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 47, joined the Group in 2007
and is the Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor.
She holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws, both from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group,
Ms. Cheung worked in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as
an in-house legal counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing legal
aspects of the Group's various businesses, including project development,
commercial investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 23
years of legal experience.

Mr. Alec KONG, Chi-ming, aged 51, joined the Group in 1994 and
is the Head of China Business. Mr. Kong holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
Master Degree of Arts in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a Master
Degree of Business Administration, both from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Mr. Kong is responsible for the overall management and development of
property projects in Mainland China. He has over 24 years of experience
in the property field of Mainland China.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 46, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager — Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 24 years of
relevant experience.

All of the above senior executives hold position as a director in one or
more of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETERES

I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group") for the year ended 31st December, 2014 (the "Year") to
the shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was HK$8,744.9
million as compared to HK$6,317.7 million for last year. The increase in
profit for the Year was mainly contributed from gain on disposal of the
Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries that ultimately held Moon Ocean
Ltd. (former owner of a piece of land in the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the People's Republic of China (“Macau”)) of HK$2,917.6
million. Earnings per share for the Year was HK$4.58 (2013: HK$3.31).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$3,877.4 million (2013:
HK$2,917.6 million) are excluded, but the realised fair value loss on
disposal of investment properties in current year recognised for the Year
of HK$0.3 million (2013: realised fair value gain of HK$491.4 million)
is retained and the accumulated realised fair value gain on disposals
of investment properties recognised in prior years of HK$55.0 million
(2013: HK$356.7 million) is included, the Group will have a core profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$4,922.5 million
(2013: HK$3,756.8 million) and a core earnings per share of HK258.0

cents (2013: HK196.9 cents), an increase of 31.0% over last year.

The major non-cash items represented the attributable unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$3,877.4 million (2013:
HK$2,917.6 million).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
had declared and paid an interim dividend of HK30 cents per share
(payment date: 24th September, 2014) (2013: HK20 cents per share)
and a special interim dividend of HK$2.55 per share (payment date: 31st
October, 2014) (2013: HK$1.3 per share); and declared a special interim
dividend of HK$4 per share (payment date: 13th January, 2015). The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per
share for the Year (the “Final Dividend") (2013: HK50 cents per share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 19th May, 2015 (the "2015
AGM"), dividend warrants will be posted on or about 5th June, 2015 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 27th May, 2015.
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DIVIDENDS (contd)

As stated in the Company's circular dated 7th January, 2015, the
Board may declare and pay one or more special interim dividend(s) in
anticipation of the completion of the major and connected transaction
regarding disposal of a subsidiary that ultimately held the property known
as The ONE (which is scheduled to be on or before 31st December,
2015), subject to the then financial and cashflow position of the Group.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2015 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend,
the register of members will be closed during the following periods

respectively:

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE
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(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM:

(MABELHFE20I5RRBFASIRE LRENERK:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration
R BB P XA AEE R BB R IR

13.5.2015
16:30

Closure of register of members
BERERRELFE

14.5.2015 - 19.5.2015
(both days inclusive) (215 & B M K)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

@QAEEBRESAHRENEFR:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration
AR5 18 5 S LAYE & 50 B S 12 I PR

22.5.2015
16:30

Closure of register of members
LERERRELFE

26.5.2015 = 27.5.2015
(both days inclusive) (BEEREMX)

Record date

ik H ]

275.2015

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2015 AGM, and to qualify for
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as

stated above.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&E

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group is one of the leading property developers in Hong Kong and
its core businesses comprise property investments for rental and property

development for sale as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

The Group specialises in developing high-end and luxury residential
properties in prime locations in Hong Kong; and enjoying profit
contribution and cash inflow from property sales to achieve long-term

sustainable growth and developing a brand name in the market.

In Mainland China, development of mid to high-end residential properties

with superb designs, construction and management services is our target.

The Group is developing a multipurpose complex for residential/
commercial properties in Chengdu, Mainland China, in which the Group
will retain its interests in the retail, office and hotel portions after sale of
residential units. Through maintenance of certain interests in retail, office
and hotel portions, the Group would generate stable and recurrent rental

income.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows

the Group to weather the cyclicality of the property business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major
sources of our income. The overall occupancy rate of the Group's
retail portfolio was 99.20% during the Year. The high occupancy rate is
attributable to the prime locations of the majority of the Group's retalil

properties.

The Group's attributable overall gross rental growth including the
performance of non wholly-owned properties was 9.25% with rental
income of HK$1,683.1 million for the Year as compared with last year.
The rental income from Hong Kong retail portion recorded steady growth
of 8.58% while the non-retail portion showed an upward momentum
with growth of 11.12%. Although Mainland China tourists’ spending and
the local consumption demand were slightly weakened, the Group's retail
properties located mainly in prime shopping areas were highly praised
and appreciated by tenants, therefore retail rents were generally raised.
However, rental rates for certain retail business sectors have shown the

sign of reaching the peak.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 85.95% excluding those disposed of.

The overall rental income of Windsor House was raised 6.71% for the
Year as compared with last year. During the Year, its average occupancy
rate was approximately 98.80%. Windsor House provides shoppers a
cozy shopping environment with a diversified trade mix. Various marketing
and promotion activities are held in Windsor House from time to time
which boost shoppers’ flow and thus increase tenants’ business turnover.
As a result, Windsor House recorded satisfactory rental growth and high

occupancy rate.

As for Silvercord, the overall rental income was raised 13.97% for the Year
as compared with last year. All the shops were fully let out throughout the
Year. The Group disposed of the companies holding Silvercord in January
2015.

The ONE recorded 7.57% increase of its overall rental income for the Year
as compared with last year. Its average occupancy rate was approximately
99.90% during the Year. In December 2014, the Group has entered into
a disposal agreement to dispose the company holding The ONE. Such

transaction is expected to be completed in 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Investment (Cont'd)

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage
residences in West Kowloon, all the shops were fully let out as at 31st
December, 2014.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 64.74% during the Year.

The occupancy rate for the Group's office properties maintained at a
high level throughout the Year. During the Year, the average occupancy
rates of Windsor House, MassMutual Tower and Harcourt House were
approximately 91.53%, 97.68% and 99.33% respectively, bringing the

approximate occupancy rate of the overall office portfolio to 95.60%.

Hong Kong Property Development

In general, the Group's development projects have been progressing

satisfactorily and the sales have been achieving pleasing results.

No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, located in Mid-Levels East, is a traditional
prestigious location for luxury residential project in Hong Kong. A luxury
residential tower which provides a total residential gross floor area of
around 40,726 square feet will be redeveloped. Superstructure work is in
progress. Completion of the project is re-scheduled to the first quarter of
2016.

One South Lane is located in the Western District and enjoys close
proximity to the Hong Kong University MTR Station. It will be redeveloped
into a luxury residential/retail tower with a total gross floor area of around
41,318 square feet and consists of 92 residential units. Superstructure
work is in progress. Completion of the project is re-scheduled to the third
quarter of 2016. Since its pre-sales commenced in September 2014, 88
units were presold up to 31st December, 2014, representing 95.65% of

total units.

The Group has a two-phase redevelopment project in Wanchai (87.5%
interest) undertaken with the Urban Renewal Authority. All residential
units of The Zenith (Phase | project) were sold. One WanChai (Phase I
project with preservation of the core elements of Wanchai Market) is a
residential/commercial complex development with total gross floor area
of approximately 159,700 square feet which provides 237 residential
units and retail properties. 236 units were sold and recognised up to 31st

December, 2014, representing 99.58% of total units.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

No. 55 Conduit Road (70% interest), a residential site in Mid-Levels with
site area of about 36,000 square feet which provides a total residential
gross floor area of around 87,800 square feet. This site will be developed
into a luxury residential project. Superstructure work is in progress.
Completion of the project is scheduled for the second quarter of 2015.

Launching of the project is re-scheduled to the third quarter of 2015.

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2014, 99.79% of total units were sold and recognised (2 units

remaining).

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 650,600 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2014, 99.86% of total units were sold and recognised (1 unit

remaining).

In September 2014, the Group has been awarded the contract for the
development of Kwun Tong Town Centre Project (Development Areas
2 and 3) by the Urban Renewal Authority (10% interest). The land has
been handed over in December 2014. The total site area is approximately
234,160 square feet. Total gross floor area of around 1,853,561 square
feet will be developed. Foundation work will be commenced in March
2015 and the whole project is expected to be completed in the first
quarter of 2021.

Mainland China Property Investment

The average occupancy rate of the 79 retail outlets with a total area of
approximately 29,000 square feet in Lowu Commercial Plaza, Shenzhen

was approximately 99.71% for the Year.

Evergo Tower, located at Central Huaihai Road in Shanghai, is a 21-storey
office and shopping complex and has a gross floor area of around
263,708 square feet. The average occupancy rates of the office and retail

spaces for the Year were approximately 78.02% and 94.05% respectively.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Mainland China Property Investment (Cont'd)

Platinum (50% interest), a 20-storey Grade A office building located at
Taicang Road of Huangpu District in Shanghai, has a gross floor area of
about 466,464 square feet. The average occupancy rate for the Year was

approximately 93.76%.

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), having 503 rooms, average occupancy rate

was approximately 74.39% for the Year.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton

Beijing, average occupancy rate was approximately 93.75% for the Year.

Mainland China Property Development

Splendid City is a residential and commercial project located at
Yingbin Avenue of Jinniu District in Chengdu with a gross floor area of
approximately 3.74 million square feet. It comprises two phases with 19
residential tower blocks and a 7-storey commercial building with gross
floor area of approximately 272,740 square feet, namely Splendid City
Commercial Building. Phase | provides 1,226 residential units with flat
size ranging from gross floor area of approximately 854 square feet to
1,812 square feet. Phase Il provides 1,625 residential units with flat size
ranging from gross floor area of approximately 854 square feet to 1,812
square feet. As at 31st December, 2014, 1,215 units of Phase | were sold
(representing 99.10% of total units) while 1,608 units of Phase Il were
sold (representing 98.95% of total units). As at 31st December, 2014,
the average occupancy rate of Splendid City Commercial Building was

approximately 83.260%.

The Metropolis is a residential project located at Yixue Lane and Tangba
Street of Jinjiang District in Chengdu, with site area of approximately
194,336 square feet and corresponding gross floor area of approximately
1.65 million square feet. It will comprise 3 twin residential tower
blocks and will be developed in phases. Tower 1 has been completed
and provides 572 units with flat size ranging from gross floor area of
approximately 704 square feet to 2,692 square feet. 471 units were sold
up to 31st December, 2014 (representing 82.34% of total units). Tower
2 has been completed and provides 573 units with flat size ranging from
gross floor area of approximately 735 square feet to 2,805 square feet.
Launching of Tower 2 is re-scheduled to late 2015. Construction work of

Tower 3 will be commenced in the fourth quarter of 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Mainland China Property Development (Cont'd)

Chinese Estates Plaza, a commercial and residential project at Tidu Street
of Qingyang District in Chengdu, has a site area of about 404,110 square
feet with a development scale of 3.2 million square feet. It comprises a
Grade A 36-storey office building namely Chinese Estates Centre, a five-
star hotel with 279 guest rooms namely The St. Regis Chengdu, a 6-storey
shopping arcade with total area of approximately 917,000 square feet
namely The ONE Chengdu and 4 residential tower blocks. Chinese Estates
Centre has been completed and its leasing has been commenced in the
second quarter of 2014 with occupancy rate of approximately 24.50% as
at 31st December, 2014; The St. Regis Chengdu has been completed and
its grand opening taken place in December 2014; The ONE Chengdu has
been completed and will be opened within 2015; superstructure work of
residential towers has been completed. Launching of the first residential

tower is re-scheduled to late 2015.

The Coronation, a commercial and residential project at Huaxinjie Street
of Jiangbei District in Chongging (25% interest), has a site area of around
2,207,546 square feet and a gross floor area of approximately 11.09
million square feet. The project will be developed in four phases and
Phase | will be divided into several zones. The construction work of Phase
I is in progress. Completion of the first zone of Phase | is re-scheduled
to the second quarter of 2015 and the entire Phase | is expected to be
completed in the third quarter of 2017. The first zone of Phase | has been
launched in March 2014. 535 out of 851 units launched were pre-sold up
to 31st December, 2014.

Overseas Property Investment

River Court is a Grade A freehold office building situate at 116-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking

spaces. It was fully let out as of 31st December, 2014.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Securities Investments

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for

treasury management.

As announced in January 2015, the Group disposed certain securities
investments with realised loss of approximately HK$110.0 million
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Overall performance of securities investments are disclosed under
Financial Operation Review of this annual report. The Group will continue
to closely monitor its portfolio of securities investments to achieve

satisfactory returns.

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Contract for Services — Continuing Connected Transactions

On 31st October, 2014, the Group entered into a contract for services
(the "Contract”) with Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau”), a
substantial shareholder and a controlling shareholder of the Company,
whereby the Group agreed to provide to Mr. Joseph Lau leasing
administration services, property management services, property
administration services, asset management and maintenance services,
rental services, advisory and consultancy services and other ordinary
services for a term of 3 years commenced on 1st November, 2014. The
Contract superseded all other existing contracts for services previously
made between the Group and Mr. Joseph Lau. An announcement was
made on 31st October, 2014.

As Mr. Joseph Lau, being a substantial shareholder and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, is a connected person of the Company,
the Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules").
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Disposal of Subsidiaries — Major and Connected Transactions

As announced on 2nd September, 2014, the Group has on TIst
September, 2014 entered into sale and purchase agreements, in relation
to, inter alia, disposal of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries that
ultimately held (i) Moon Ocean Ltd. (former owner of a piece of land in
Macau) and (ii) certain floors and car parking spaces constituted part of
the property known as “Silvercord” to the companies wholly-owned by
Mr. Joseph Lau at the final consideration of approximately HK$4,876.2
million and HK$7,656.1 million respectively (the “Disposal Transactions”).
The Disposal Transactions constituted major and connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules and were subject to the approval
of the independent shareholders of the Company (the “Independent
Shareholders”). The Disposal Transactions were subsequently approved
by the Independent Shareholders at the special general meeting held on
10th October, 2014 and were completed in October 2014 and January
2015 respectively. Details of the Disposal Transactions were set out in the

circular of the Company dated 23rd September, 2014.
Disposal of a Subsidiary - Major and Connected Transaction

As announced on 12th December, 2014, the Group has on 12th
December, 2014 entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
"Disposal Agreement”), in relation to, inter alia, disposal of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company that ultimately held the property known as The
ONE to the company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau at a provisional
consideration of approximately HK$7,781.4 million (if the bank loan has
been fully repaid prior to or upon completion of the Disposal Agreement
and such repayment is fully or partially financed by additional sale loan
provided after the date of the Disposal Agreement) or HK$4,657.3 million
(if the bank loan is still outstanding upon completion of the Disposal
Agreement) (the “Transaction”). The Transaction constituted major and
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and was
subject to the approval of the Independent Shareholders. The Transaction
was subsequently approved by the Independent Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 23rd January, 2015. Details of the
Transaction were set out in the circular of the Company dated 7th January,
2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES

Corporate social responsibility is becoming an important theme in
the business community. The Company highlights four subject areas
(workplace quality, environmental protection, operating practices and

community involvement) undertaken by the Group in this part.
Workplace Quality

The Group considers its employees as its important asset and strives to

attract and retain the best people for the sustainable growth of the Group.

The Group is committed to providing a fair and competitive compensation
package in the form of basic salary, incentive pay (discretionary bonus),
mandatory and voluntary provident funds, and other fringe benefits,
such as healthcare benefits (including medical, personal accident and
employee compensation), paid leave for various purposes (including
annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave, sick leave,
examination leave and compassionate leave), and education and training

sponsorship.

Besides, employees are encouraged to have a good balance among work,
health and social activities which has been supported by adopting a five-

day workweek and arranging early release from work for festivals.

Moreover, the Group's annual dinner is one of its most important
functions where the management and employees can meet together
in a relaxed circumstance. Employees who have completed at least
10 consecutive years of services will be given long service awards in

recognition of their commitment and loyalty.

The head office of the Group is located at one of the prime sites in
Wanchai with easy accessibility to work with well developed traffic network
throughout. The office is the self-owned and self-managed property of
the Group with rather spacious working environment that affords the
employees a comfortable working place with good property management.
As the office is self-owned and self-managed, it avoids the frequent re-
location of office which can help reduction of building wastes in short and

long run.
The Group emphasizes to provide its employees a safety office for works

all the time. Notices are displayed in all conspicuous positions in the

workplace to highlight the action to be taken on discovering a fire.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES (contd)

Environmental Protection

The Group advocates environmental protection. The Group continued
to support World Wide Fund's global and local conservation efforts. The
Group played a part in its “Earth Hour" by switching off the exterior and
billboard lighting of certain properties under the Group for an hour on the
night of 29th March, 2014.

The Group is also committed to minimising the adverse impact that its
operations may have on the environment. The Group encourages double-
sided printing in office in order to save trees. The Group also convenes
meetings for directors/management stay overseas by mean of telephone
conference in order to minimize the carbon footprint from frequent
overseas travel. The Group encourages reduction of light pollution by
switching off the unnecessary lights after its office and shopping malls
are closed. During 2014, traditional high energy consumption lights at
shopping malls were replaced by LED lightings. Over the recent years, the
Group's properties have been designed and/or constructed with green
ideas and features by maximizing the use of natural renewable resources
and recycled/green building material, minimizing the consumption of
energy, and reducing construction and demolition waste in development
projects.

The Group has undertaken a redevelopment project in Wanchai with the
Urban Renewal Authority aiming to preserve the Old Wan Chai Market
(the "Market"). The Market is a pre-war Bauhaus-style building constructed
in 1937 and rated as a Grade IIl heritage building in Hong Kong. During
the heritage conversion process, the Group adopted a “core elements
preservation” strategy approved by local conservation bodies, which
preserved the core and major components of the Market, including the
entire exterior and facade, the interior structure, and part of its original
appearance and successfully developed the site into a unique property
development namely One WanChai, a residential/commercial complex
with total gross floor area of approximately 159,700 square feet. Towering
above a significant historical landmark, One WanChai is the first such
redevelopment in Hong Kong and is well known as an iconic blending of
heritage and modern architecture.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of business integrity,
honesty and transparency in its business dealings and to respecting the
rights and interests of customers.

The Group endeavours to comply with the newly launched Residential
Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance to protect purchasers rights and
interests all the time.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ISSUES (contd)

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to making a positive contribution to the
communities in which it operates for all the time. During the Year,
the Group continued to actively support meaningful activities in the
community, and to encourage and promote volunteerism throughout the

Group.

The Company has formed a voluntary service team since 2007. The Group
together with its staff and/or voluntary service team had participated
in various community programmes, charitable fundraising activities and
volunteer services for helping the communities in need, suffering people
and children with special needs from time to time during the Year. The
Group had participated in (among others) “The Great Chefs of Hong
Kong” and flag day organised by Heep Hong Society, circulation of flag
bags within the Group organised by Hong Kong Alzheimer's Disease
Association, “Dress Pink Day” organised by Hong Kong Cancer Fund,
“Pass-it-On" organised by Hong Kong Red Cross, "Oxfam Rice Event
organised by Oxfam Hong Kong, “Olympic Day cum Olympic Day Run”
organised by Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong,
China,

organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong, and “Skip-A-Meal" and

“Dress Casual Day” and “The Community Chest Green Day”

“Used Book Recycling Campaign” organised by World Vision Hong Kong,

for few years.

Moreover, the Group supports a barrier-free environment in the
community. Certain premises of the Group (including shopping malls,
commercial and residential properties) provide barrier-free access and
facilities for people in need including persons with disabilities such as the
provision of automatic door opening devices for the exit doors, wheelchair

lending services and premises with disabled toilets.

In 2014, the Company was awarded as an “Family-Friendly Employer” in
2011 and 2013/14 and an “Distinguished Family-Friendly Employer” in
2013/14 by Family Council. The Company was also awarded as “Caring
Company”, being the eighth consecutive year, by The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service in recognition of our good corporate citizenship.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (contd)

The Company maintains a Company’s website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including
the dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to
facilitate its communication with shareholders and to provide important
information to the investing public on corporate governance structure,
policies and systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as

well as terms of reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company's website and welcomes
suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites them to
share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor,
MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email
at investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

PROSPECTS

The economic environment of the United States and the European
countries are showing signs of recovery. It is hoped that the recent
embarking of the unprecedented quantitative easing program by the
European countries will further facilitate their economic recovery. It is
expected that those loose monetary measures will be maintained in the
foreseeable future and the global economy will continue to recover in the

times ahead.

Our well-located retail investment properties in Hong Kong consistently
recorded satisfactory rental growth and high occupancy rates during the
Year. Rental rates of certain retail business sectors have shown indications
of reaching their peaks. The Group will continue to refine its tenant mix
and actively launch marketing and promotion activities to accommodate
the ever changing consumption patterns. The Group remains cautiously
optimistic in the rental income growth from its retail investment

properties.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&EE

PROSPECTS (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the disposal of the companies holding Silvercord in January
2015, contribution of rental income from Silvercord to the Group in year
2015 will be significantly lowered. It is expected that the disposal of the
company holding The ONE will be completed in the year ending 31st
December, 2015. As a result, rental contribution from The ONE to the
Group in year 2015 will be reduced to extent that there will be rental
contribution only until before completion of disposal. Essentially all sale
proceeds from the disposal transaction of Silvercord has been distributed
as special interim dividend, and it is expected that majority of the sale
proceeds from the disposal of company holding The ONE will be declared
as dividend. However, there will be no material corresponding income
contribution to the Group from the sale proceeds from the disposal in
respect of Silvercord and the expected sale proceeds from the disposal in
respect of The ONE in year 2015.

The demand for quality commercial premises in key locations in Hong
Kong remained solid during the Year. The Group's office investment
properties situated in prime locations recorded good leasing performance.
It is expected that the Group's office investment properties will continue to

lease well and will provide steady rental income.

The performance of the local residential property market improved during
the Year. Amidst of stringent property-related policies by the Hong Kong
Government, demand for local residential properties was strong, especially
for small-to-medium sized units. The Group expects continuing demand
for local housing and is optimistic in its property development business in

Hong Kong.

With the recognition of the “new norm” in economic development as well
as the implementation of macro-control measures to adjust the economic
structure and alter the economic development trend by the Central
Government, it is expected that the economy in Mainland China will
maintain medium-to-high growth rate and relatively stable development
within a reasonable range. As a result of the lowering of the benchmark
interest rate and the required reserve ratio, the relaxation of the mortgage
policy and the decrease in government intervention, the Group believes
that the future development of the property market in Mainland China will

become more stable and healthy.

The construction works of the Group's magnificent project in Chengdu
— Chinese Estates Plaza is completing. In particular, the Grade A office
building, Chinese Estates Centre, had its leasing works commenced;
while the five-star hotel — The St. Regis Chengdu also had its grand
opening taken place in December 2014, bringing further expansion to the

hospitality business of the Group in China.
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PROSPECTS (Cont'd)

River Court, the Group's investment property in London, will continue

making contributions through stable return.

In summary, the Group remains confident in its core businesses. The
Group will prudently monitor the property markets of Hong Kong,
Mainland China and overseas, strive to expand its land bank and
investment property portfolio to further strengthen the Group's value and

achieve long-term sustainable growth.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th March, 2015
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
Bt 35 R 5 B B

RESULTS

Continuing Operations
Revenue

Revenue for the Year amounted to HK$2,627.3 million (2013:
HK$6,452.7 million), a 59.3% decrease over last year and comprised
gross rental income of HK$1,939.4 million (2013: HK$1,791.3 million),
property sales of HK$617.1 million (2013: HK$4,651.6 million), profit on
sales of investments held-for-trading on a net basis of HK$29.1 million
(2013: loss of HK$44.4 million) and others of HK$41.7 million (2013:
HK$54.2 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the

decrease in sales of development properties.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$2,204.6 million (2013:
HK$2,760.7 million), a 20.1% decrease as compared with last year which
was mainly due to the decrease in profit from property sales of HK$706.0

million.
Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in retail section jumped by 8.6%
to HK$1,279.5 million and rental revenue in non-retail section jumped
by 7.5% to HK$659.9 million during the Year. The total rental income in
revenue for the Year recorded an increase of 8.3% to HK$1,939.4 million

as compared with last year of HK$1,791.3 million.

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
and an investee of HK$221.2 million (2013: HK$212.5 million), the total
attributable rental revenue to the Group after non-controlling interests
reached approximately HK$2,159.0 million (2013: HK$2,002.8 million),

which achieved an 7.8% increase over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$2,011.0 million, an
7.7% increase over HK$1,867.7 million in 2013.

Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the attributable property sales revenue and the relevant
attributable profit from the Group, its associates and an investee recorded
a decrease of 52.19% to HK$2,056.6 million (2013: HK$4,291.4 million)
and a decrease of 22.4% to HK$715.0 million (2013: HK$921.3 million)

respectively.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

In the year of 2013, the Group's development projects, mainly One
WanChai in Wanchai (87.5% interest) (which was completed in early
2013) and Phase Il of Splendid City in Chengdu (100% interest) (which
was completed in December 2012), contributed substantial revenue and
attributable profit to the Group. Whereas, there was no development
project completed in the year of 2014 and hence recorded a decrease in

revenue and attributable profit for the Year.

The major components recorded in gross profit are sales of: Phase |,
Phase Il and parking spaces of Splendid City generated profit of HK$6.3
million (2013: an underprovision of construction costs for previously
sold units of HK$168.7 million), HK$41.5 million (2013: HK$286.3
million) and HK$124.8 million (2013: nil) respectively and Tower 1
of The Metropolis in Chengdu (100% interest) generated profit of
HK$64.1 million (2013: loss of HK$16.8 million (after accounted for an
underprovision of construction costs for previously sold units of HK$39.7

million)).

Sales of One WanChai and parking spaces at The Zenith in Wanchai
(87.5% interest) recognised during the Year had contributed an
attributable profit to the Group of HK$78.8 million (2013: HK$810.3
million) and HK$5.9 million (2013: HK$7.3 million) respectively.

In respect of properties held by associates, Kwong Kin Trade Centre in
Tuen Mun (40% interest) and Greenville Residence in Yuen Long (50%
interest) generated profit of HK$3.6 million (2013: HK$2.7 million)
and HK$0.1 million (2013: HK$0.2 million) respectively as reflected
in the share of results of associates. Sale of The Coronation in West
Kowloon (15% interest) had contributed HK$389.9 million (2013: nil) to

investment income upon recognition of dividend income during the Year.

During the Year, the forfeited deposits received for Phase Il of Splendid
City and Tower 1 of The Metropolis totaling HK$0.3 million (2013: HK$0.3

million) was recorded in other income.

As at 31st December, 2014, deposits received from presale of 88 units of
One South Lane in Kennedy Town (100% interest) with contracted sale
of HK$469.2 million amounted to HK$417.5 million. The presale recorded
for The Coronation in Chongging (25% interest) was 535 units and the

attributable interest of sales to the Group was HK$184.9 million.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

In summary, the Group together with associates and an investee executed
properties sale agreements, including presale agreements to third parties
and connected persons (as disclosed in the section headed “Disposals
of Subsidiaries and Assets to Connected Persons”) with an attributable
contracted sales of HK$1,159.3 million (2013: HK$2,145.7 million) during
the Year. Total attributable property sale profit recognised for the Year was
HK$715.0 million (2013: HK$921.3 million).

Securities Investments

Under the low interest rate environment, the Group has closely managed
the securities investments with a view to yield enhancement. During
the Year, the Group recorded a realised gain of HK$29.1 million (2013:
realised loss of HK$44.4 million) on disposal of listed investments held-
for-trading (the gains/losses of which was included in revenue) with gross
proceeds of HK$466.9 million (2013: HK$2,457.1 million). However, a
realised loss from sale of bonds of HK$140.3 million (2013: realised gain
of HK$151.7 million) and a realised gain from sale of preference shares of
HK$1.2 million (2013: nil) were recognised. The net realised loss for the
Year was HK$110.0 million (2013: net realised gain of HK$107.3 million).

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$402.5 million
(2013: HK$85.5 million) representing the changes in fair value of listed

securities and bonds, which had no effect to the cash flow of the Group.

During both years, there was no acquisition and disposal on listed equity

securities included in available-for-sale investments.

Summing up the above and adding the net income from dividend, interest
income, other investment income and other finance income of HK$748.7
million (2013: net income from dividend, interest income, other
investment income and other finance costs of HK$834.2 million), the
gain recognised on securities investments was HK$236.2 million (2013:
HK$856.0 million).

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Listed Available-for-sale Equity Investments

The Group had not acquired and disposed any listed available-for-sale

equity investments for the years of 2014 and 2013.
Listed Investments Held-for-trading and Treasury Products

The listed investments held-for-trading and treasury products recorded a
profit before and after finance income of HK$225.5 million and HK$236.2
million respectively for the Year (2013: profit before and after finance
costs of HK$912.6 million and HK$856.0 million respectively).

Profit from the listed investments held-for-trading reflected in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year comprised
a gross profit totaling HK$29.1 million (2013: gross loss of HK$44.4
million), an unrealised loss on fair value changes of HK$402.5 million
(2013: HK$85.5 million), a realised loss on bonds of HK$140.3 million
(2013: realised gain of HK$151.7 million), a realised gain of preference
shares of HK$1.2 million (2013: nil) and dividend, interest income and
other investment income of HK$738.0 million (2013: HK$890.8 million).
Net relevant finance income for the Year was HK$10.7 million (2013: net
relevant finance cost of HK$56.6 million) including interest expense of
HK$22.1 million (2013: HK$42.1 million) and exchange gain of HK$32.8
million (2013: exchange loss of HK$14.5 million).

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from net building
management fee income, asset management and maintenance services
income, property management services, leasing administration services
and property administration services income and rental services income,
increased to HK$95.2 million (2013: net building management fee
income, management and maintenance services income and loan note
interest income of HK$79.2 million), representing an increase of 20.2%

as compared with last year.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Other Income and Expenses (Cont'd)

During the Year, administrative expenses decreased by 3.7% to HK$296.3
million (2013: HK$307.8 million), costs of development recognised in
respect of property project in Macau Special Administrative Region of the
People's Republic of China ("Macau”) of HK$6.5 million (2013: HK$22.0
million) and finance costs decreased by 12.9% to HK$395.0 million
(2013: HK$453.6 million), including exchange gain of HK$32.8 million
(2013: exchange loss of HK$14.5 million) on foreign currency loans
hedged for foreign currency securities investments. Other expenses of
HK$122.1 million (2013: HK$2.5 million) for the Year mainly consisted
of interest on sales deposits repaid to promissory purchasers of presold
property units under the La Scala project and pre-operating expenses

incurred by the hotel in Chengdu.

Other gains and losses recorded a net gain of HK$2,912.4 million mainly
comprised gain on disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Value Eight
Limited (“Value Eight"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (“Moon Ocean Group”) (“Moon Ocean
Disposal”) of HK$2,917.6 million (2013: HK$202.8 million mainly derived
from gain on disposal of the Group's entire 61.96% interest of Chi
Cheung Investment Company, Limited (now known as LT Commercial
Real Estate Limited) (“Chi Cheung Disposal”) of HK$198.5 million).

Disposals of Subsidiaries and Assets to Connected Persons

On 1st September, 2014, (i) Data Dynasty Limited (“Data Dynasty"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company,
being the guarantor of Data Dynasty; (iii) One Midland Limited (“One
Midland”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung
("Mr. Joseph Lau"); and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of One
Midland, entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which
Data Dynasty agreed to sell and One Midland agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of Value Eight. The Moon Ocean Disposal was
completed on 31st October, 2014 at a consideration of approximately
HK$4,876.2 million. Since then, the Moon Ocean Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group and its consolidated results, assets and
liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group. Upon
completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$2,917.6 million was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal were set out
in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 2nd September,
2014 and 23rd September, 2014 respectively.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Assets to Connected Persons (Cont'd)

As set out in the Company's announcement dated 19th February, 2014,
close family members of a Director entered into a preliminary sale and
purchase agreement for acquisition of a residential unit, a car parking
space and a motorcycle parking space of One WanChai, the Group's stock
of property held for sale, at a consideration of approximately HK$51.2
million. The transaction was completed on 14th April, 2014.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has entered into preliminary sale and
purchase agreements with three companies wholly-owned by a close
family member of the then Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, in respect of the sale of three shops of Causeway Place with an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$39.1 million (after discount).

The transactions were completed on 7th October, 2014.
Associates

The share of results of associates for the Year was a profit of HK$187.3
million as compared to HK$350.9 million for last year, the decrease of
which was mainly due to the decrease in attributable profit from sale
of One WanChai (12.5% interest) indirectly held by an associate from
HK$113.3 million for last year to HK$11.1 million for the Year.

Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31st December, 2014, by B.l. Appraisals Limited
("B.I. Appraisals”) and Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers
Appraisal”) whereas the investment property in the United Kingdom was
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.I.
Appraisals, Vigers Appraisal and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent
property valuers. An increase in fair value on investment properties of
HK$3,777.1 million (2013: HK$3,402.9 million) was recorded during the
Year. Except for a loss of HK$0.3 million (2013: gain of HK$491.4 million)
realised upon sale of certain investment properties during the Year, the

unrealised fair value gain will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)
Discontinued Operation

The operating segment of “floating rate and fixed rate notes” on available-
for-sale investments was discontinued since year 2012 as a result of the
Chi Cheung Disposal and the the disposal of the Group's entire 41.93%
interest in G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (now known as Common Splendor
International Health Industry Group Limited). Details of the discontinued
operation are set out in Note 12 to these consolidated financial
statements.

PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO

Continuing and Discontinued Operations
Profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was HK$8,744.9
million as compared to HK$6,317.7 million for last year. The increase in
profit for the Year was mainly contributed from gain on disposal of Moon
Ocean Group of HK$2,917.6 million. Earnings per share for the Year was
HK$4.58 (2013: HK$3.31).

Core Profit

The Group has disposed of certain investment properties during the Year,
the costs of which are stated at fair value. Before disposal, such gain/
loss on fair value change is unrealised and recognised at the end of each
reporting period, but exclude from core profit as non-cash items. In the
year of disposal, such unrealised gain/loss has become realised; and in
computating core profit, accumulated fair value gain/loss from prior years
and current year are included as cash items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$3,877.4 million (2013:
HK$2,917.6 million) are excluded, but the realised fair value loss on
disposal of investment properties in current year recognised for the Year
of HK$0.3 million (2013: realised fair value gain of HK$491.4 million)
is retained and the accumulated realised fair value gain on disposals
of investment properties recognised in prior years of HK$55.0 million
(2013: HK$356.7 million) is included, the Group will have a core profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$4,922.5 million
(2013: HK$3,756.8 million) and a core earnings per share of HK258.0
cents (2013: HK196.9 cents), an increase of 31.0% over last year.

The major non-cash items represented the attributable unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates of HK$3,877.4 million (2013:
HK$2,917.6 million).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO
(Cont'd)

Continuing and Discontinued Operations (Cont'd)

Dividends

Final dividend of HK50 cents (year ended 31st December, 2012: HK20
cents) per share in total amount of HK$953.8 million for the year ended
31st December, 2013 was paid in cash on 6th June, 2014.

Interim dividend of HK30 cents (half year ended 30th June, 2013: HK20
cents) per share in total amount of HK$572.3 million for the half year
ended 30th June, 2014 was paid in cash on 24th September, 2014.

Special interim dividend of HK$2.55 (2013: HK$1 for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 and HK$1.3 for the half year ended 30th June, 2013)
per share in total amount of HK$4,864.4 million for the year ended 31st
December, 2014 was paid in cash on 31st October, 2014.

Total dividends of HK$6,390.5 million were paid in cash during the Year.
A special interim dividend of HK$4 per share was declared on 16th
December, 2014 and subsequently paid in cash on 13th January, 2015 in
total amount of HK$7,630.5 million. The total dividends paid and declared
in the Year were HK$14,021.0 million.

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$4,922.5 million (2013:
HK$3,756.8 million) or HK258.0 cents (2013: HK196.9 cents) per share;
(b) cash final dividend for the Year of HK1 cent (2013: HK50 cents) per
share proposed; and (c) cash interim dividend of HK30 cents (2013:
HK20 cents) per share and cash special interim dividend of HK$2.55
(2013: HK$1.3) per share were paid during the Year, the ratio of such
cash payment to the core profit is 110.9% (2013: 101.6%).
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group's total net asset to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$41,567.4 million (2013:
HK$47,103.7 million), a decrease of HK$5,536.3 million or 11.8% when
compared with 2013. With the total number of ordinary shares in issue of
1,907,619,079 as at 31st December, 2014 (2013: 1,907,619,079 shares),
the net asset value per share to owners of the Company was HK$21.79
(2013: HK$24.69) per share. The movement in net asset value was
mainly due to (a) total comprehensive income for the Year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$8,484.6 million; (b) payment of final,
interim and special interim dividends of HK$6,390.5 million and (c)

declaration of special interim dividend of HK$7,630.5 million.

There was no transaction on the listed equity securities investments
categorised as available-for-sale investments for the Year. The carrying
amounts of the listed equity securities investments reserve as at 31st
December, 2014 and 2013 were nil.

Other than the disposals of Brass Ring Limited (“Brass Ring"), Union
Leader Limited (“Union Leader”) and Chinese Estates and Finance,
Limited (now known as Silvercord Finance Limited) (“CE Finance”) and
their respective subsidiaries (collectively “Silvercord Group™) (“Silvercord
Disposal”) (as disclosed in paragraph “Assets Classified as Held for Sale/
Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale”
below), the commitment for an equity investment (as disclosed in
paragraph “Unlisted Securities Investment” below), the disposal of Asian
East Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (“One Disposal”) (details of the One Disposal were set out in
the announcement and circular of the Company dated 12th December,
2014 and 7th January, 2015 respectively), the existing projects and those
disclosed in the final results, the Group did not have material acquisition
or disposal of assets and any future plans for material investment or

capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

As at 31st December, 2013, the carrying amount of the listed securities
investments and treasury products was HK$13,013.1 million. During the
Year, the portfolio was decreased by a net disposal of HK$7,481.8 million.
After deducting the fair value loss of HK$402.5 million for the Year, the
listed securities investments and treasury products portfolio of the Group
became HK$5,128.8 million as at 31st December, 2014 representing
7.2% of total assets, which formed part of the Group's cash management

activities.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

EEFE

RZTE—NF+ZA=+—8 KQaEB AEWL
RNEB R EEFEBTEL41,567400,0008 7T (=
— =4 :47,103,700,000/& L) =T — = F
4>5,536,300,000/%8 7L 2, 11.8% ° *E%Eé: = — &
TZA=T—BZBEBTEBERAE,907619,079
B (== —=%1:1,907619,079M ) st & "R Al
EAZEBREEFER1IIEL(ZTE—=ZF:5§
[%24.69%87L) - BEFEEHETEHQAAGER
ANBIERFE 2 2 HE W 48 788,484,600,000/8 7T
(bR ARERE - PEHR B U RESRPHREA R
6,390,500,0007% 7T : } ()= J&7,630,500,000/% 7T
2P ERE AR -

4

AFEEVEIBRFEREZLTRABFTER
SR BE—NFR=-ZT—=F+=-A=+—08"t
MRAFLFREREBERAEAS BT

B i & Brass Ring Limited ([Brass RingJ) * Union
Leader Limited (Union Leader | ) & ZEB AR A
A(RBARSMBERRAR) ([PEHK]) KA
MELR (EIReEE]) ([REEE]) (BN
T RFELEZEE M| RRHIEHEZEE
BEEEEZBE] NKRE)  —ERAKREAE (R
T EMHEAHIRA]ARKER) - H EAsian East
Limited (R ARz —fEEE 2 EHEAME R R R E
MEBAR) (TonetiE]) (Onei & 2 #BHIH K
ARBEMARA—T—NFEFT_A+-_AR=F
—HF-AtBRZMEBEERA) - REER KRNE
FEREANMBPEEIN REFBTESRKBILEE
BERBERRERERNEEZ RKRETE-

HERE

R-E—=FE+"F=+—8 LT&EAFRENHG
BEREEEA3,013,100,0000 7T c RANEE 7%
LHADEEF 5 L 7481,800,000/ 7T © R

Zﬁift‘“ {8 E18402,500,000/5 L% REER =
—E+ A=+ B LETEHRERVEER

%ﬁé /35,128,800,000/% 7T * 1 & E 42 F87.2% ' % %

HEALEmMESERESH 2 —HH-



SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

As at 31st December, 2014, the portfolio of HK$5,128.8 million (2013:
HK$13,013.1 million) comprised (a) listed equity securities (investments
held-for-trading) of HK$501.9 million (2013: HK$894.8 million) and (b)
bonds (financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss) of
HK$4,626.9 million (2013: HK$12,118.3 million).

Unlisted Securities Investment

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group had invested approximately
US$917,000 in an exempted limited partnership registered under the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands
("Cayman Islands Partnership”) for capital commitment in contribution
of US$50.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$387.6 million).
During the Year, the Group entered into a withdrawal agreement for
Cayman Islands Partnership and ceased to be a limited partner of the
Cayman Islands Partnership. On the same date, the Group entered into
a subscription agreement for commitment in contribution of Renminbi
("RMB") 300 million (equivalent to approximately HK$374.4 million) in
a limited partnership registered under the Partnership Enterprise Law of
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") (“PRC Partnership”). The PRC
Partnership with a term of ten years was set up mainly for the purpose
of long term capital investment. As at 31st December, 2014, the Group
has contributed RMB48.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$60.2
million) to the PRC Partnership which was included in available-for-sale

investments.

During the Year, the Group has invested US$10.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$77.6 million) in a private investment fund, the fund and
its management company are exempted companies with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The investment was also included in

available-for-sale investments.
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ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 1st September, 2014, (i) Super Series Limited (“Super Series"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (i) the Company, being
the guarantor of Super Series; (iii) Fly High Target, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of
Fly High Target Limited ("Fly High Target"), entered into sale and purchase
agreements, namely “Silvercord First SP Agreement” and “Silvercord
Second SP Agreement”, pursuant to which Super Series agreed to sell
and Fly High Target agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of
Brass Ring and Union Leader respectively, both are indirect wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Company.

On the same day, (i) Chinese Estates, Limited (“CEL"), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor
of CEL; (iii) Coast Field Ltd. ("Coast Field"), a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Coast
Field, entered into a sale and purchase agreement, namely “Silvercord
Third SP Agreement”, pursuant to which CEL agreed to sell and Coast
Field agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of CE Finance, an

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The aforementioned disposals were completed on 13th January, 2015
at a total consideration of approximately HK$7,656.1 million. As a result,
the assets and liabilities of the Silvercord Group have been presented
as assets classified as held for sale and liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale respectively as at 31st December, 2014
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations”.

Details of the Silvercord Disposal were set out in the announcement
and circular of the Company dated 2nd September, 2014 and 23rd
September, 2014 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.
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EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31st December, 2014 and
2013 were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$16,548.9 million (excluding bank borrowing classified
as liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale)
(2013: HK$23,911.0 million). Cash and deposits at banks amounted to
HK$4,719.2 million (excluding cash and deposits at banks presented as
assets classified as held for sale) (2013: HK$3,881.3 million), pledged
deposits amounted to HK$868.7 million (2013: HK$1,211.6 million) and
net borrowings amounted to HK$10,961.0 million (2013: HK$18,818.1

million).

Total debt to equity ratio was 39.7% (2013: 50.7%) and net debt
to equity ratio was 26.3% (2013: 39.9%), which are expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings, and net borrowings, respectively, over the
total equity of HK$41,652.6 million (2013: HK$47,189.8 million). The
decrease in the total debt to equity ratio and the net debt to equity ratio

were mainly due to the decrease in borrowings.

However, if the listed securities investments and treasury products of
HK$5,128.8 million (2013: HK$13,013.1 million) are included, the net
debt to equity ratio will be 14.0% (2013: 12.3%).

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group's bank and other borrowings
were denominated in HK$ (69.4%), US$ (0.19%), Pound Sterling ("GBP")
(19.29%) and RMB (11.3%). Of the Group's bank and other borrowings
of HK$16,548.9 million (excluding bank borrowings classified as liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale), 40.5%, 48.2%
and 11.3% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years
respectively. US$ and GBP investment securities were hedged by US$
and GBP borrowings respectively. The Group's bank and other borrowings
in HK$, US$ and GBP were carried at interest rates calculated mainly
with reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate/cost of funds; bank
borrowing in GBP was effectively carried at fixed rate; and bank borrowing
in RMB was carried at interest rates calculated with reference to borrowing
rates quoted by Peoples’ Bank of China. As at 31st December, 2014,
about 82.0% of the Group's borrowings were on floating rate basis and
18.0% were on fixed rate basis. No hedging for interest rate is subsisted

at the end of the reporting period.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group had pledged the following assets:

(a) The Group's investment properties, properties and other fixed
assets and time deposits with their respective carrying amount of
approximately HK$44,156.9 million (2013: HK$40,888.1 million),
HK$1,509.3 million (2013: HK$512.1 million) and HK$857.9
million (2013: HK$699.2 million) were pledged to the Group's
bankers to secure general banking and loan facilities granted to the

Group.

(b) The Group's investments held-for-trading and bonds with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$5,048.7 million (2013: HK$13,013.1
million) and cash deposits of HK$10.8 million (2013: HK$512.4
million) were pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure
margin and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of
securities transactions, of which approximately HK$1,713.7 million
(2013: HK$6,453.1 million) was utilised as at 31st December,

2014 as borrowings due within one year.

(c) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

(d) The Group has subordinated and assigned its advances to
associates of approximately HK$1,679.4 million (2013: HK$1,626.8
million) to financial institutions to secure general banking credit

facilities granted to the associates.

REPURCHASE GUARANTEE

Certain mortgagee banks have provided end-user financing to purchasers
of Splendid City and The Metropolis and the Group has provided
repurchase guarantees to these mortgagee banks for securing the
obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees will be
terminated upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one year upon the
completion of guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged

loan by the purchasers of properties.
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REPURCHASE GUARANTEE (contd)

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and

penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the mortgagee banks.

The total outstanding amount of repurchase guarantee as at 31st
December, 2014 was RMB15.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$19.7 million) (2013: RMB128.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$164.1 million)) and disclosed in the contingent liabilities.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/
EXPENSES

Continuing and Discontinued Operations

Interest income was included in revenue and investment income (2013:
included in revenue, other income and investment income). Interest
income for the Year was HK$739.0 million, representing a decrease of
20.5% from that of 2013 of HK$930.0 million.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank loan, other loans and
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder; exchange difference on
foreign currency loans; and arrangement fee and facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest expenses for the Year amounted to HK$380.3
million, representing a slight decrease of 0.4% over 2013 of HK$382.0
million. Interest capitalised for the Year was HK$142.3 million as
compared to HK$134.2 million for last year. The average interest rate over
the year under review was 2.53% (2013: 2.30%), which was expressed

as a percentage of total interest paid over the average total borrowings.

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group employed a total of 624 staff
in Hong Kong (2013: 652 staff) including about 266 staff (2013: 294
staff) employed under the estate management company in Hong Kong.
Besides, there was a total of 739 staff in the offices at Mainland China
(2013: 365 staff in the offices at Mainland China and Macau), which
included about 197 staff (2013: 178 staff) of the estate management
company and 370 staff (2013: nil) of the hotel in Chengdu.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary
incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance. No

share option scheme was adopted during the Year.

The Company had adopted a share award scheme (“Scheme”) in 2009.
The Scheme is to recognise and reward certain employees for their
contributions to the Group and to give long-term incentives for retaining
them for the continued operations and development of the Group.
Details of the Scheme were set out in the Company's circular dated 23rd
December, 2008. No share was granted under the Scheme during the

Year.

MAINLAND CHINA AND UNITED KINGDOM

Profit contribution from the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in gross profit, fair value changes on investment properties,
share of results of associates and taxation) for the Year amounted to
HK$155.2 million (2013: HK$219.2 million). The Group's net investment
in Mainland China as at 31st December, 2014 amounted to HK$9,979.7
million (2013: HK$9,969.3 million) representing approximately 24.0% of
the Group's total equity.

Further, the Group's investment property in the United Kingdom with
carrying amount of GBP390.9 million as at 31st December, 2014
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,720.1 million) (2013: GBP316.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$4,043.1 million)) contributed a
profit of HK$1,036.7 million (2013: HK$454.8 million) to the Group for
the Year. As at 31st December, 2014, the Group's net investment in the
United Kingdom amounted to HK$2,078.5 million (2013: HK$1,147.9

million) representing approximately 5.0% of the Group's total equity.

LISTED SUBSIDIARY

The Group did not own any listed subsidiary at the end of the reporting
period.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations have been carried out by B.l. Appraisals and Vigers
Appraisal, independent qualified professional valuers, in respect of the
Group's investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China as
at 31st December, 2014 and 2013. For the investment property in the
United Kingdom, the valuations as at 31st December, 2014 and 2013
were carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals, another independent qualified
professional valuer. Their valuations were based on investment method
and/or direct comparison method as the valuation methodologies and

were used in preparing 2014 annual results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$48,917.2 million
(2013: HK$45,617.3 million) (including those classified as assets held
for sale), an 9.2% increase over 2013 after adjusted for the additions,
disposals and transfer of investment properties during the Year. The
increase in fair value of approximately HK$3,777.1 million was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year.
The Group also shared an increase in fair value of investment properties
of associates of HK$95.4 million (adjusted deferred tax credit of HK$3.9
million) for the Year. Development properties and non-investment
properties of the Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in
these consolidated financial statements. For the investment property
under development at Chinese Estates Plaza, Chengdu, during the Year,
the hotel portion was completed and its cost was transferred to land
and buildings. The remaining portion of office building, shopping arcade,
residential tower and parking spaces were stated at cost of HK$4,156.7
million in total in investment properties and will be carried at fair value,
until the earlier of the date when its fair value first becomes reliably

measurable or the date of the completion of the property.

The increase in fair value of HK$3,777.1 million or 9.2% was mainly
attributable to the Group's major investment properties in Hong Kong and
United Kingdom. Such increase has reflected an upturn in the property
markets of Hong Kong and United Kingdom for the Year. Rental renewals
of Silvercord, The ONE and Windsor House for the Year have shown a

continuous increase over the end of 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are
committed to principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard

the interests of shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2014 (the "Year”), the
Company had applied the principles and complied with substantial
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended
best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules").

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), one
Non-executive Director (“NED") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors ("INED(s)"), with INEDs representing more than one-third of the
Board. Changes of the composition of the Board during the Year are set
out in the Directors’ Report of this annual report. Names of each member

of the Board are set out in this corporate governance report.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors'
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among

the Directors.
Responsibilities of Directors

The NED and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arise. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the date of this

annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors (Cont'd)

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group's businesses in a

timely manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders
at the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors (save for the
executive chairman and any managing director) shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors (save for the executive chairman and any

managing director).

According to the Private Act for incorporating the Company as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda in 1989, it is stipulated
that the executive chairman and any managing director should not be
required to retire by rotation. However, in order to comply with the Code
Provisions, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), who is also
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEQ"), is willing to
voluntarily retire from his directorship at future annual general meetings of
the Company at least once every three years, and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the relevant annual general meetings. Mr. Lau,
Ming-wai, being the Chairman and the CEQ, is willing to retire voluntarily
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer

himself for re-election.

Every Director will therefore retire either by rotation under the Company's
Bye-laws or voluntarily at least once every three years and will subject
himself/herself to the absolute and free choice of the shareholders for

re-election at the relevant annual general meetings.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings and nine ad hoc Board meetings were held
during the Year. Advance notices of not less than fourteen days were
served upon each Director for regular Board meetings. All accompanying
Board papers were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at
least three days before the meetings (or such other period as agreed).
Adequate explanation and information were given to the Directors by the
management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making. Each Director
has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on any Board
resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors” appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Directors’ Training and Support

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up to date knowledge
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other laws/

rules/regulations had been provided to Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged a training session regarding
“new Companies Ordinance and its impact on Hong Kong registered
companies and their directors and updates on connected transactions”
for the Directors. The training was delivered by lawyers at the expense
of the Company. On the other hand, Directors had provided records of
the training they received to the Company. The Board considered the
trainings attended by the Directors are sufficient to discharge their duties.

A summary of the training attended by the Directors during the Year is as

follows:—
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ARBBBEEFTHAZERNANBABTERE -
BB B G BRI R LR AREAMER, &)
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R BRAARRX N -B—HE EECAARA
RUEEBIGEZE - ESER/EFMSEZEIR
NERERTERE BEERAFEAMBHE R
FHMEMAT: —

Training Matters 3% 3| =18

Accounting/
Corporate Tax/Finance
Governance Regulatory g5t/
Name of Directors BEEpng EER EERE BB
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung* S BE A o A = = =
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai* 2| NE 4 S # - b -
(Chairman and CEO) (FEFTBAEEE)
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan PREFE L L - a -
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai IR 4 a&b a&b a&b
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan EEELL - b -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AEZEw+ - a -
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PR B 12 St £ - a a
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BB AL - a&b -
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun HEEEE b a a&b
Notes:— MiEE: —
Training Method =375 =
a:  attending training session/seminar a:  ZHEBFIRE e

b: self-reading

* Resigned as ED, Chairman and CEO on 14th March, 2014.

* Re-designated from NED to ED and appointed as Chairman and Acting
CEO on 14th March, 2014; further re-designated from Acting CEO to

CEO on 15th April, 2014.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Directors’ Training and Support (Cont'd)

During the Year, site visit to the Group's development projects in Chengdu
had been arranged for the INEDs to enhance their understanding on such

project development.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the Code. Details of the respective committee's terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs of the Company, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms.
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board
Committees with Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping acts as chairman of the Nomination Committee. The members
of Audit Committee possess appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise, which is higher

than the Listing Rules' requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate

governance, financial reporting, internal control and risk management. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Meetings

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year, with the

presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
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(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion

on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior

management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee

to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.

Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:—

M

@)

3)

4

€)

©)

)

reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 and for the six months ended 30th June, 2014
respectively before recommending them to the Board for approval,
with the presence of the Company's external auditors (the

“Independent Auditors”) in the meeting reviewing final results;

reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during
2013, presented its findings and made recommendations for

consideration by the Board;

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

®

€)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting

function, and their training programmes and budget;

discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters; fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;

reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other related matters (the “Arrangement”) and recommended the
Arrangement to be covered in the orientation program for new

employees;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal
Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2015;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and monitored the progress of compliance of the Code;
reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees; and

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for Directors and senior executives.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In March 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (i) the
Company's compliance with the Code during the Year and disclosure in
the corporate governance report; and (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives

for the Year.
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors,
INEDs hold meeting(s) with the Independent Auditors without the
presence of the ED(s). In addition, the engagement director of the
Independent Auditors is subject to periodical rotation, and the nature
and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent Auditors for non-
audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny by the Audit
Committee. A policy of non-audit services from Independent Auditors
was established. The Audit Committee considers whether there is clear
efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company from that work
being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether there is adverse
effect on the independence of their audit work or the perception of
such independence; the nature of the non-audit services envisaged to
be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee levels
individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial positions with the

Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transactions at a fee of HK$83,000; (ii) a project in relation to disposal of
properties at a fee of HK$700,000; and (jii) review of financial information
of certain subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic of China for
the six months ended 30th June, 2014 at a fee of HK$300,000. The audit
fees of the Independent Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2014 was
HK$2,567,000. The relevant engagement letters had been reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the

nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual
ED and senior executive as well as the remuneration of NED. It would
consult the Chairman and CEO on the remuneration proposals whenever
it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration
to attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high
calibre to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the
Company's business and development.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs' and senior executives' remuneration packages

for the Year and the terms of service agreements as appropriate;
(2) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees;

(3) recommended to the Board to fix the remuneration of NED for the

Year; and

(4) noted the criteria for assessment of performance-based

remuneration of the Chairman and CEO.

In January 2015, the Remuneration Committee made recommendation
to the Board and the Board has approved the adjustment of monthly
salary of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai to HK$52,500 and
HK$157,480 respectively for the year ending 31st December, 2015 with
reference to their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group as

well as the prevailing market condition.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration
package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking
their reward with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
In determining guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to

remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NED and INEDs

The Directors’ fees of NED and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
condition as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket

expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee
Role and Function

The Nomination Committee is mandated to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge,
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender
and age of the Board members and assessment on the independence
of the INEDs) of the Board at least annually as well as to select suitable
and qualified individuals to become Board members and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy and on succession planning for the

Directors from time to time.

Meetings

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(

) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders' approval;

(3) assessed the independence of INEDs;

(4) recommended to the Board on the appointment of the Chairman
and Acting CEO; and

(5) recommended to the Board on the re-designation of CEO.
After the Year ended, the Nomination Committee made recommendation

to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders'

approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.
Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,
as well as business development and requirements of the Company. In
evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity; skills and expertise;
professional and educational background; potential time commitment
for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and the elements
of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The Nomination Committee makes
recommendation to the Board to appoint the appropriate person among
the candidates nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall be
appointed by the Board in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company

and the Listing Rules.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Special Committee had been established since 24th May, 2012,
comprising all the INEDs as members with written terms of reference
in place. It is empowered to handle all matters from the Company's
perspective arising out of the prosecution against Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung by the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic

of China (“Macau”) relating to the acquisition of a piece of land in Macau.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE REZE

Investment Committee had been established on 15th April, 2014, BREZEEN T —NFEA+HEAKY  HEIE
comprising Mr. Lau, Ming-wai as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief (ELAEHTER MAFLELTRELE LREH
investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members B&E R BB E AKX B4AK  EEZmBEEE
with written terms of reference in place. It is empowered to manage the EHIE-HEZECEBEREEAEMI KL EE
investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) 7 (BHERERIN) ([HEE]) URMBEBIEE
(the “Investment”) and make recommendations and provide advice to the SEEREMEESREFELER -

Board in relation to Investment or potential Investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS BEEHERH

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:— SEFgREZHFERHHNNOT: —

Attendance Record of Directors % H! 7315

No. of meetings attended/held in 2014 (Percentage of attendance in total) K20145 L /ST EEHE (A LER)

Regular Ad hoc Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Special Investment Annual Special
Board Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting* Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EREFE KHESE ENZEE  HHMZERE REZEE KRZEE  REZEE RRAF BR4%5
Name of Directors i3 23 E o L EE EE 6 EE A& S
Executive Directors ${7ES
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung” BB LA Al 01 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(100%) (0%) TR Gyl TER TER &yl oyl Qi
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai* Ell St 4/4 3/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 5/5 1/1 Absent
(Chairman and CFO) (ZEFTB#A#)  (100%) (33.33%) TR TEA TiEA TR (1009%) (1009%) B
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan K@t 4/4 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11 il
(100%) (100%) TR TER TER TER TER (100%) (100%)
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MREEE 4/4 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 5/5 Al il
(100%) (100%) THE TER TEA TEA (100%) (100%) (1009%)
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan EEERL 4/4 7/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent Absent
(1009%) (77.78%) TiEA TEm TER TEf TEm HE e
Non-executive Director }#1{TE%
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai ATExL 4/4 7/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent Absent
(1009%) (77.78%) TiEA TEm TER TR TEm i i
Independent Non-executive Directors Y % 5 /7ES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai REREE 4/4 9/9 5/5 5/5 3/3 4/4 5/5 1 17
(100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BEELL 3/4 9/9 4/5 3/5 3/3 3/4 N/A 1N Il
(75%) (100%) (80%) (60%) (100%) (75%) TER (100%) (1009%)
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BEEEE 4/4 8/9 5/5 5/5 3/3 4/4 5/5 11 11
(100%) (88.89%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Notes:— BisE: —

A Resigned as ED, Chairman and CEO on 14th March, 2014. " R-ZF-NE=ATNARERTES ZHLE

TTIAR BT -
* Re-designated from NED to ED and appointed as Chairman and Acting ~ * RIE-—HFE=ATHNBEAFNTESRAITRIN
CEO on 14th March, 2014; further re-designated from Acting CEO to TEE WEZERIENMEBITHAE  HER
CEO on 15th April, 2014. ZE-NFNATRABAREBBITRAH AT AT
BB,
* To avoid conflict of interest, some of the Directors were absent at certain ~ # BREEBEENZER PHNESHREETERS
ad hoc Board meetings that they were required to abstain from voting. ITHEREEREEeeER
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company,
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
control in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The senior management is responsible for implementation of
such system of internal control. Internal Audit Department is responsible
for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and reporting their findings and advice to the

Audit Committee.

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of internal

control of the Group and concluded that:—

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) aframework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;
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INTERNAL CONTROL (contd)

Annual Review (Cont'd)

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were efficient

and adequate;

(4) significant risks that may influence the Group had been identified,
evaluated and managed through the ongoing monitoring process;

and

(5) material transactions were executed with the management's

authorisation.
Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:—

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

(2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted eight internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the works done by

the Internal Audit Department.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairman of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and
answer questions from shareholders at general meetings. Chairman of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the 2014
annual general meeting to answer questions from shareholders. Members
of the independent board committee were available at the special general
meeting held on 10th October, 2014 approving connected transactions to

address shareholders’ queries.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put
forward to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are

available at the Company's website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate

the Group's information.

A corporate communications manual has been in place, which provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to
investors, analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the
Company's behalf, and outlines the responsibility for communication with

various stakeholder groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM") and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda

at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SCM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the general meeting or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the "Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition
must contain the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written
Requisition must be deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda
at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda not less
than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the

general meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting (Cont'd)

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual
Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.
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DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the Year, Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung acted as both the Chairman
and the CEO until 13th March, 2014. Following the resignation of Mr.
Joseph Lau, Luen-hung from all his offices of the Company on 14th
March, 2014, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai was appointed as the Chairman and
Acting CEO. Mr. Lau, Ming-wai was subsequently re-designated from Acting
CEO to CEO on 15th April, 2014. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority of the Board will not be impaired even the roles of
the Chairman and CEO are performed by the same individual. At present,
the Board also believes that under the leadership of Mr. Lau, Ming-
wai as the Chairman and the CEO, the Board's decision could be made
effectively and it is beneficial to the management and development of
the Group's businesses. The Board would still consider segregation of the

roles of the Chairman and the CEO if and when appropriate.

Directors’ Insurance

The insurance policy has not been renewed upon its expiry in August
2012 due to the substantial increase in premium. The Company is of
the view that the existing corporate governance measures within the
Group are sound and effective such that the risk to the Directors could
be minimized. Nevertheless, the Company would still consider to arrange
appropriate insurance coverage for its Directors as and when competitive

premium quotations could be sourced.

Non-executive Director Attending General Meetings

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2014 annual
general meeting and the special general meeting held on 10th October,
2014 as she was not in Hong Kong on such dates. All the INEDs had

attended such general meetings.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2014 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and
cosmetics distribution and trading.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31st December, 2014 are set out in Notes 52 and 53 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 83 and 84.

The Board had declared and paid an interim dividend of HK30 cents per
share (payment date: 24th September, 2014) (2013: HK20 cents per
share) and a special interim dividend of HK$2.55 per share (payment
date: 31st October, 2014) (2013: HK$1.3 per share); and declared a
special interim dividend of HK$4 per share (payment date: 13th January,
2015). The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK1 cent per share (2013: HK50 cents per share) for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five years is set out on pages 249 and 250.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group as at 31st December,
2014 are set out on pages 251 to 260.

PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

Movements in properties and other fixed assets during the Year are set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group acquired a leasehold property in Mainland
China at a consideration of approximately HK$29,499,000 (2013:
Nil). Investment properties with an aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately HK$68,434,000 (2013: HK$1,053,823,000) were
disposed of during the Year.

Details of the above and other movements in investment properties
during the Year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

pages 88 to 91.

As at 31st December, 2014, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted of approximately HK$2,963,515,000
(2013: HK$7,361,485,000).

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of bank loans and other loans repayable within one year or on
demand and long-term secured bank loans and other loans are shown in

Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest capitalised during the Year by the Group amounted to
HK$142,287,000 (2013: HK$134,229,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$1,113,000 (2013: HK$35,956,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total turnover for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 36% and 56% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group's five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report
are:—

Executive Directors:

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung
(resigned as Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
on 14th March, 2014)

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director and
appointed as Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer on 14th
March, 2014, further re-designated from Acting Chief Executive Officer
to Chief Executive Officer on 15th April, 2014)

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
pursuant to Bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and Mr. Lau,
Ming-wai will retire from office voluntarily at such annual general meeting,
all being eligible and offer themselves for re-election. The relevant details
of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai's voluntary retirement are stipulated on page 43 of
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31st December, 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company as recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") pursuant
to Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:—

EERBRSTHRAERAEALQTRE
BEEzESES

R-B-HF+-A=+—H EFKETHA
BRAARZED HERNOREFTEE 2 ER
KRR BARAIREEZ RAEGED ([F 5 R
&P )) FB35216 M F 2 B M AT sl SR & & B B

EXSGMBRDE ([BRADESFLETRA (ML
MR MER+AEZ (EHBETAEFETES
RHOBRETR) MEARRRBZAMT : -

Percentage
Number of of Issued
Name of Directors Shares Held Capacity Share Capital
EEsA FEROEE 54 | ERTREES L
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (“Mr. MW Lau") 1,430,700,768 & Beneficiary of trust 74.99%
ZIS gt (2SR EE]) ErEX@mA
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan (“Ms. Lui") 1,430,700,768 W Interest of children under 18 74.99%
aEAXE(laxtl) AN 18ERE F 2 e
Note: e
* These shares were indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. ~ * ZERMB-ENBEERERE IR ELE
MW Lau and the children of Ms. Lui were eligible beneficiaries of that REaZEIHFRAZETEZEERIRA
trust.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Directors were interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31st
December, 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31st December, 2014.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporation.

64 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

LA ERERER B RINEN L RARR
BREEN _Z—NFE+-_A=+—HREAZK
NBBHCETROBBEZE

B EXFREESN N F-mE+ A=A
HiEERBHTHA BB EAS LREES R
f%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ$ RIS A RRAE (25
B I D) E XV TR R BB E) 2 B
ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ#ZEﬂfAumEo

REAFERN EFABZRTHRABRARKE Z LB
ETNARATZ FRBERE TRITEERARE
R A S EAT AR BEA B Z AR 2 A



DIRECTORS' REPORT EEEHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERENA QAR ZEHEE

THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2014, so far as are known to any Directors or chief EEZENESTTRABMMAE R_T—NF+=
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or A =+—H * AR BIREFEF K EEHI 336158
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by #5772 Z M ATESR R BT NS AN QR HEXHE

BEREIRAREEARTCHET
BZ AT (BEEHZRTRABRR

A% AR 5008k A - #E
SR —

the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:—

Percentage

Name of Substantial Number of of Issued

Shareholders Shares Held Capacity Share Capital

FTERRER FrERMGEE 5% | ERITREAES L

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 2 Founder, beneficiary of trust and 74.99%
("Mr. Joseph Lau") interest of children under 18
DU ([RIZ T E]) ERZEIA - ZmAR
R 18R F X 2 e

Alto Trust Limited 1,430,700,768 W Trustee and interest 74.99%
in controlled corporation
ERARRZIEG AR 2w

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 @ Beneficiary of a trust and interest 74.99%
in controlled corporation
—HiERZZEAKR
REEH A E 2 Ews

Global King (PTC) Ltd. 1,199,715,948 & Trustee 62.89%
fZ5EA

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments 230,984,820 W Beneficial owner 12.10%
Limited BEo#EE A

Notes: P&

A These shares were indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr.

Joseph Lau was the founder. Mr. Joseph Lau and his certain other family
members were eligible beneficiaries of that trust.

Alto Trust Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust held the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was regarded as
interested in the same parcel of shares held by Solar Bright Ltd.. Solar
Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Global King (PTC)
Ltd. and all issued units in a unit trust of which Global King (PTC)
Ltd. was the trustee and therefore was regarded as interested in the
same parcel of shares held by Global King (PTC) Ltd. as trustee of the
unit trust. Solar Bright Ltd. also held the entire issued share capital of
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and therefore was also
regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares held by Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. As such, the 1,430,700,768
shares of the Company in which Solar Bright Ltd. was deemed to be
interested represented the aggregate of the 1,199,715,948 shares and
230,984,820 shares of the Company held by Global King (PTC) Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited respectively, which was
referred to in the interests of Mr. MW Lau and the interests of children
under 18 of Ms. Lui as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executives'
Interests in the Securities of the Company and Associated Corporation”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st

December, 2014, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

LB REHRER R T —
B REARRRESRRAERIIFIZ6HEETFZE
O P BB A AR R

~ RERDA-ERBERREES BIZHELL

RRIEFEZBISIA %U%fﬁf‘ﬁiﬁﬁ%?/ﬁ\ﬁt%
ERERZERZEERITEA

Alto Trust Limited ({ER—IBMIBEEE21E5EA)
FF A Solar Bright Ltd.2 2 &2 B ITRAS - B4R
BB Solar Bright Ltd.FrisH 2 R —HEik1n 2 #
% © Solar Bright Ltd.#5 7 Global King (PTC) Ltd..2
2 EPE B ATRR AR LA & — T8 LAGlobal King (PTC) Ltd.
BEAAZBAEAER 2B EHITEM

B AR B A Global King (PTC) Ltd. (1EAZE
EAESZERAN)AEEZR—HRG 2 &

zn o Solar Bright Ltd. 7R #§ 5 Joseph Lau Luen Hung

Investments Limited 2 2 &F 2 2 1TIRA - SR &
i /5 Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limitedft
58 2 B —H#ERR 1 2 # %5 o E 1t > Solar Bright Ltd.
WAR R 1,430,700,7688 A A R A (5 Bl B
Global King (PTC) Ltd.FT#§621,199,715,948/%
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited T &5 A
2230,984,8201 AR &R & FHMAK) o Ltk
R IEERESITHRABRALRT LA
ZEFEDE A TIRESSEEERBERLTZ
Rm8BRH)F 2L 2 M P FTHE 2 #Ees o

ME+=ZA=+—

“T-mEEH EAEEEE

65

y 4



66

DIRECTORS’' REPORT ZEEEHREE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai was a non-executive director
of LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (“LT") (formerly known as Chi
Cheung Investment Company, Limited and LT Holdings Limited), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. LT was
engaged in securities investment and finance and property investment
and development. As such, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai was regarded as being
interested in such businesses which competed or were likely to compete
with the Group. Such businesses were managed by separate publicly
listed company with independent management. The board composition of

such listed company is different and separate from the Company.

During the Year, each of Mr. Joseph Lau, the ex-Executive Director, the
ex-Chairman of the Board and the ex-Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. MW Lau and Ms. Lui had personal interests in private
companies engaged in property investment business while Mr. Joseph
Lau and Mr. MW Lau had personal interests in private companies engaged
in securities investment business. Mr. Joseph Lau also had personal
interests in private companies engaged in money lending business. As
such, they were regarded as being interested in such businesses, which
competed or might compete with the Group. However, when compared
with the dominance and size of operations of the Group, such competing

businesses were immaterial.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau had through certain private companies wholly-
owned by him (of which Mr. Joseph Lau and/or Mr. MW Lau was/were
director(s) of such companies during the Year) acquired the retail shops
of York Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also
known as Wanchai Computer Centre) (the “Private Properties”) from the
Group in 2010. There might be potential leasing competition for existing
and prospective tenancies between the Private Properties and investment
properties held by the Group. In order to manage such potential leasing
competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and the
Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain
measures for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of
such undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circular
of the Company dated 18th June, 2010. The Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)") of the Company had carried out an annual review
on the compliance of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and
confirmed that such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly
complied with and considered adequate monitoring measures were in

place to avoid the potential leasing competition during the Year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (contd)

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflicts of interest and duty. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company's businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s

businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreements disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's businesses, to which the Company or any
of the Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a Director had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were any other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company's businesses between
the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling

shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEEHREE

EENBIUHER2ER @

EFATHACEE BEEATEUGALAT
2R R EEFIS R R AR AR T
CBUEHTEEL=S 2 HHABREREN
B R AR R IR 2 3 o

B EXAEREEN BEESFEARAEHAUAINR
BARNREBERRERBR BT R A EBREF
ZIERERBHHEAES -

BERODIEZ2LZH

ARBHARRZEHE R R ERAFEARE
HZ P AEESZAEBARRBSEREMEA
Bz HEFMESH -

EEREERRREN2ER

BT [BRER 5 — Tl 2 s ol MR
FAFEANEMNREARBRRNRRZEMHER
BRI VEARBIEBBERZERANT EEM
BEESEEEREEARES I RRRHARF]
2 A a0 B B8 2 A 7 42 B 4 A R SR SR ELAT (A Y /BB 2 )
RIVEARRARERBEBIEMERNELD-

—E-MEER EASE£EE 67

y 4



68

DIRECTORS’' REPORT ZEEEHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

(1) On 19th February, 2014, the father and elder brother of Ms.
Lui entered into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement
(the "Agreement”) in respect of the purchase of a residential
unit together with a car parking space and a motorcycle parking
space of One WanChai (the Group's property held for sale) at a
consideration of HK$51,205,346. Completion took place on 14th

April, 2014.

As the purchasers are the father and elder brother of Ms.
Lui (an Executive Director and associate of Mr. Joseph Lau,
a substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder of the
Company), the purchasers were therefore connected persons of
the Company. Hence, the transaction contemplated under the
Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company.
As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction
contemplated under the Agreement either on a standalone basis,
or when aggregated with the previous transactions completed
within 12 months (which have already been disclosed by way
of announcements on 6th February and 13th August, 2013
respectively) were both more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the connected transaction was subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but was exempted from independent
shareholders' approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the said transaction

was made on 19th February, 2014.

(2) On 1st September, 2014, Data Dynasty Limited, Super Series
Limited and Chinese Estates, Limited (all being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company) as vendors and the Company as
vendors' guarantor entered into 4 sets of disposal agreement
with One Midland Limited, Fly High Target Limited and Coast
Field Ltd. (all being companies wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau) as purchasers (the “Purchasers”) and Mr. Joseph Lau as
purchasers' guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of the
Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries that ultimately held Moon
Ocean Ltd. (former owner of a piece of land in the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China) and certain
floors and car parking spaces constituted part of the property known

as "Silvercord"”, at an aggregated final consideration of approximately

HK$12,532.3 million (the “First Disposal Transactions”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@)

3

(Cont'd)

As the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules for the First Disposal Transactions on an aggregated
basis exceeded 25% but were less than 75%, the First Disposal
Transactions constituted major transactions for the Company;
and as Mr. Joseph Lau, a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company, was a director and the sole
beneficial owner of the Purchasers as at the date of the relevant
announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau and the Purchasers were connected
persons of the Company and the First Disposal Transactions
constituted connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The First Disposal Transactions were
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to the
Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the First Disposal

Transactions was made on 2nd September, 2014.

The First Disposal Transactions were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 10th October, 2014 and were completed in October 2014 and
January 2015 respectively. Details of the First Disposal Transactions
were set out in the circular of the Company dated 23rd September,
2014.

On 12th December, 2014, Rich Lucky Limited (being wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as vendor and the Company as
vendor guarantor entered into a disposal agreement with Market
Victory Limited (being a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau)
as purchaser (the “Purchaser”) and Mr. Joseph Lau as purchaser
guarantor, in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of the Company's
wholly-owned subsidiary that ultimately held the property known
as “The ONE", at a provisional consideration of approximately
HK$7,781.4 million (if the bank loan has been fully repaid prior to
or upon completion of the disposal agreement and such repayment
is fully or partially financed by additional sale loan provided after
the date of the disposal agreement) or approximately HK$4,657.3
million (if the bank loan is still outstanding upon completion of the

disposal agreement) (the “Second Disposal Transaction”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

3)

(Cont'd)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules for the Second Disposal Transaction as
aggregated with the First Disposal Transactions exceeded 25% but
were less than 75%, the Second Disposal Transaction constituted
a major transaction for the Company; and as Mr. Joseph Lau, a
substantial shareholder and controlling shareholder of the Company,
was the sole director and the sole beneficial owner of the Purchaser
as at the date of the relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau and
the Purchaser were connected persons of the Company and the
Second Disposal Transaction constituted connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Second Disposal Transaction was therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules. An announcement in
respect of the Second Disposal Transaction was made on 12th
December, 2014.

Details of the Second Disposal Transaction were set out in the

circular of the Company dated 7th January, 2015.

Continuing Connected Transactions

M

On 14th December, 2012, Chinese Estates, Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract for
services with Mr. Joseph Lau in respect of the provision of the
property, household and other management and maintenance
services in relation to the properties and related assets and such
other assets of a nature normally requiring management service,
maintenance service or other similar services which are beneficially
owned by or are held by entities beneficially owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau and/or his associates and related parties, commenced on 1st
January, 2013 and ending on 31st December, 2015 (the "First
Contract”). The annual cap of the service charges payable by Mr.
Joseph Lau to Chinese Estates, Limited under the First Contract for
the financial year 31st December, 2014 was set at HK$15 million
(the "First Cap") as disclosed in the Company's announcement
dated 14th December, 2012.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

M

(Cont'd)

With effect from 1st November, 2014, the First Contract was
superseded and replaced by the Consolidated Contract (as
defined in (4) below). The First Cap after pro-rata adjustment was
HK$12,493,151 (the "Adjusted First Cap”).

Mr. Joseph Lau being a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company was a connected person of the
Company and hence the First Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. The
applicable percentage ratios for the expected annual caps for
the transactions contemplated under the First Contract pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules exceeded 0.1% but were
expected to be less than 5%, hence the First Contract and the
annual caps were only subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements but exempted from the independent

shareholders’ approval requirement.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions
were made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company (other than those in relation to household management
and maintenance services), on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the First Contract governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (collectively the “"HKICPA Guidelines”) that the subject
continuing connected transactions had received the approval of the
Board, were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company,
had been entered into in accordance with the First Contract and had

not exceeded the Adjusted First Cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@)

On 15th July, 2013, Chinese Estates, Limited entered into a
contract for services with Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision
of (i) property management services (including matters relating to
the management, operation, servicing, maintenance and repair of
properties), (ii) leasing administration services (including matters
relating to dealing with tenants, rent collection and taking legal
actions but excluding any services in relation to the referral of
potential tenants and the negotiation with existing and/or potential
tenants regarding terms of lease of properties), and (i) general
administration services (including without limitation accounting,
recruitment, human resources administration works, taxation,
marketing and information technology services) to commercial
properties beneficially owned by Mr. Joseph Lau and/or his
associates for a term of three years commencing from 15th July,
2013 to 14th July, 2016 (the “Second Contract”). The cap of the
service charges payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to Chinese Estates,
Limited for the year ended 31st December, 2014 under the
Second Contract was set at HK$32,000,000 (the “Second Cap”) as

disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 15th July, 2013.

With effect from 1st November, 2014, the Second Contract was
superseded and replaced by the Consolidated Contract (as defined
in (4) below). The Second Cap after pro-rata adjustment was
HK$26,652,055 (the “Adjusted Second Cap”).

Mr. Joseph Lau being a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company was a connected person of the
Company and hence the Second Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios for the expected annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the Second Contract, whether on
standalone basis or when aggregated with those of First Contract,
were less than 5%, the Second Contract and the annual caps were
only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempted from the independent shareholders’

approval requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@)

3

(Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions
were made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company (other than general administration services), on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the Second Contract
governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
the HKICPA Guidelines that the subject continuing connected
transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the Second Contract and had not

exceeded the Adjusted Second Cap.

On 19th March, 2014, Chinese Estates, Limited entered into a
contract for services with Mr. Joseph Lau in respect of the provision
of rental of motor vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking spaces
and such other rental services to Mr. Joseph Lau, commenced on
15th March, 2014 for 3 years (the “Third Contract”). The cap of
the service charges payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to Chinese Estates,
Limited for the period from 15th March, 2014 to 31st December,
2014 under the Third Contract was set at HK$23,200,000 (the
“Third Cap") as disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
19th March, 2014.

With effect from 1st November, 2014, the Third Contract was
superseded and replaced by the Consolidated Contract (as
defined in (4) below). The Third Cap after pro-rata adjustment was
HK$18,353,425 (the "Adjusted Third Cap”).

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEEHREE

BERXS @)

FEREXS (8)

@

3

(%)

ARBZBILIFRTERREBELTRAFE14A
BZHAERBEREXHETFRERS R

WNEARSERER SR BRREXZBAR
ﬂZE%%%(

—REBBBRI)  RE R
%%1‘%#\&*&*}%% ’i\/j{|7%?)\1LTT g;grﬂ %:7\
BAFTEE BRFEARARREZERNE

R

ARRZZHMERREEG M AGAER
%E*ETFJ:%%E RIS V4AT B 2 (S 1FF - B
AFEREXHELHESSIL Ui
%$&ﬁZEEﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%iAﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂ
BHADHEE LR

RZZ-—MFEF=ZA+NLBE FABXARA
ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ*"iﬁf‘ﬁiﬂﬁ—ﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬂ’ﬂHﬁ%é\

%%~%$ﬁ2ﬁﬁ&ﬁmﬁﬁw%v%:§
—HE=A+HEAMABRER([E=64])-

BUARBIR—_ZE—ME=A+NBZAM
BB BBBEEERBE=64 R —N

FZA+ABE-ZT—NWE+=-A=+—H
HHENTEASEERATIZREE 2 LR
7 423,200,000/ 7T ([ = EBR]) °

B-Z—NF+—A— AR F=A0EEH

%IEQQGW(E%ETimnW&G&m

BlFAREER 2% = ERA18,353,4258 70 ([ B
FBE=FER]) -

—E-MEEH EABEEE



74

DIRECTORS’' REPORT ZEEEHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

3)

(Cont'd)

Mr. Joseph Lau being a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company was a connected person of the
Company and hence the Third Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios of the expected annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the Third Contract, whether
on standalone basis or when aggregated with those of the First
Contract and Second Contract, exceeded 0.1% but were less
than 5%, hence the Third Contract and the annual caps were
only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempted from the independent shareholders’

approval requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transaction, the
INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transaction, confirmed that the transaction
was made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company (to the extent of rental of car parking spaces), on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the Third Contract
governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
the HKICPA Guidelines that the subject continuing connected
transaction had received the approval of the Board, was in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the Third Contract and had not
exceeded the Adjusted Third Cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

4

On 31st October, 2014, Chinese Estates, Limited entered into a
contract for services with Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision
of (i) leasing administration services (including without limitation
matters relating to dealing with tenants, rent collection and
taking legal actions, but excluding any services in relation to the
referral of potential tenants and the negotiation with existing and/
or potential tenants regarding terms of lease of properties), (ii)
property management services (including matters relating to the
management, maintenance, operation, servicing and repair of
properties), (iii) property administration services (including without
limitation accounting, recruitment, human resources administration
works, taxation, marketing and information technology services),
(iv) asset management and maintenance services (including
property, household and other management and maintenance
services in relation to the properties and assets), (v) rental services
(including rental of motor vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking
spaces, premises and such other rental services), (vi) advisory
and consultancy services (including general advisory, consultancy,
administration, liaison, personnel support services and such other
services ancillary and/or incidental thereto), and (vii) other ordinary
services (including without limitation securities and other financial
services) to Mr. Joseph Lau and/or his associates, commenced on
Ist November, 2014 for 3 years (the "Consolidated Contract”).
The cap of the service charges payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to
Chinese Estates, Limited for the period from 1st November, 2014
to 31st December, 2014 under the Consolidated Contract was set
at HK$21,391,781 (the "Consolidated Cap") as disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 3 1st October, 2014.

With effect from 1st November, 2014, the Consolidated Contract
superseded and replaced the First Contract, Second Contract and
Third Contract.

Mr. Joseph Lau being a substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company was a connected person of the
Company and hence the Consolidated Contract and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios for the expected annual caps for
the transactions contemplated under the Consolidated Contract
exceeded 0.1% but were expected to be less than 5%, the
Consolidated Contract and the annual caps were only subject to
the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

)

(Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions
were made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company (other than household management and maintenance
services under the asset management and maintenance services,
the property administration services, the rental services and the
advisory and consultancy services), on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the Consolidated Contract governing them
on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole. Having considered
the reasons and benefits in respect of the provision of household
management and maintenance services under the asset
management and maintenance services, the property administration
services, the rental services and the advisory and consultancy
services as mentioned in the Company’'s announcement dated
31st October, 2014, the INEDs were of the view that, although the
provision of such services contemplated under the Consolidated
Contract were not in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, the terms of such services were fair and reasonable so
far as the Group were concerned and on normal commercial terms,
and were in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a

whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
the HKICPA Guidelines that the subject continuing connected
transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the Consolidated Contract and
had not exceeded the Consolidated Cap disclosed in the said

announcement made on 31st October, 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this directors’

report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” as
disclosed in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions”
constituted connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:—

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their

respective trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1st December, 2000. Contributions to
the ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based
on the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with
accrued returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining
the retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group's mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December, 2014
amounted to approximately HK$10,065,000 (2013: HK$9,869,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$1,173,000 (2013: HK$674,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year
and the balance available to reduce future contributions amounted to
approximately HK$108,000 (2013: HK$402,000).
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 14th January, 2009 (the "Adoption Date"). The Share Award Scheme
is a long-term incentive arrangement for the selected employees. The
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward certain
employees of the Group for their contributions to the Group and to give
long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. It also intends to attract suitable professional
recruits to join the Group and to assist in the further development of the

Group.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by members of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall qualify to be allotted and issued the Awarded
Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled, unless

otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date and
represents approximately 10.89% of the total number of shares in issue
at the date of this directors’ report. No granting of Awarded Shares was

made for the Year.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such

grant.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date (i.e. until 13th January,
2019). As at the date of this directors’ report, the remaining life of the

Share Award Scheme is less than 4 years.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23rd December, 2008.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of

the Company's business were entered into or existed during the Year.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.
There have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years

except for the reorganisation of Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng to
HLB in March 2012.

On behalf of the Board
Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th March, 2015
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Hodgson Iimpey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “Group") set out on pages 83 to 248, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2014, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2014,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P0O5467

Hong Kong, 19th March, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEBREBR

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Investment income, net
Administrative expenses
Costs of development recognised
in respect of property project in Macau
Other expenses
Gain on disposals of properties and
other fixed assets
Loss on disposals of investment properties
Fair value changes on investment properties
Finance costs
Other gains and losses, net
Share of results of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Profit for the year from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
Continuing operations
Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties and
other fixed assets

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Fair value changes on available-for-sale
investments

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive (expenses)
income of associates

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year from continuing operations
(net of tax)

Notes

B &E

WA 7

EF

HagA 9
EWANFE 10
THAX

FURPIMEIBE 2

HWRERKAN 37
HEiRx 11
HENERAMEEEE 2

U 2%

HEREYEZEE

BWEWMEZ NFEE 13 and 22
BB A 15
Hpth U 25 K B 18R 58 16
N

B 75 A ) A
FS R 19

REERAFERLEEB R

BRIERERER 12
AEFRACRIERERTZ

]
AT 14

H2H (X H) K
FEREER
TEEN T EEEEZHE

EMMELEBETEEEZ

B

B R EH D ME A2
25
FEREZ ATES

BEONETE L 2 IE X ERR

BumE R HEMER
(i) Yezs

AERRAFBELEEBZ
Hip2m () d%em
(BRi&)

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2,627,288 6,452,726
(422,694) (3,692,055)
2,204,594 2,760,671
95,220 79,180
658,156 1,064,961
(296,296) (307,823)
(6,503) (22,035)
(122,120) (2,524)
638 45
(6.750) (130,370)
3,777,138 3,402,859
(395,018) (453,589)
2,912,368 202,811
187,331 350,854
9,008,758 6,945,040
(255,859) (443,919)
8,752,899 6,501,121
- 501
8,752,899 6,501,622
- 127,054
21,802 (26,529)
(265,250) 200,309
(16,873) 93,535
(260,321) 267315
(260,321) 394,369
“E-NEFER EASEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R& 2 HEWHE R X
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

Notes
k53
Discontinued operation BRIEREER 12
Item that may be reclassified BEAEEN 7 HEEEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss HE
Fair value changes on available-for-sale FEREZATEED
investments
Other comprehensive (expenses) income for ~ AFEERAFEL L EBK L
the year from continuing and discontinued BRITEEXEBZ
operations (net of tax) Hthz2m () ks
(B#tiz)
Total comprehensive income AEEXHEKBHAHE
for the year
Profit for the year attributable to: AR AFERF
Owners of the Company ERRERA
Continuing operations RELEEE
Discontinued operation BERIEREER
Non-controlling interests IR AR
Continuing operations FEREER
Discontinued operation B IEREER
Total wmE
Total comprehensive income for the year E{iANEE2HE WA
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ERRERA
Continuing operations FESEET
Discontinued operation BERIEEE X
Non-controlling interests RS
Continuing operations RERLER
Discontinued operation ERIEREHETR
Total B
Earnings per share (HKS) BREF (Bx) 21
Basic and diluted BEARK#sE
From continuing and discontinued REFHBKEEBR
operations BRI AT
From continuing operations REFEBEEHER

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& B FEIRERM TR A M BHEAN—

financial statements.
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2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

- (136)
(260,321) 394,233
8,492,578 6,895,855
8,744,927 6,317,427
- 310
8,744,927 6,317,737
7,972 183,694
- 191
7,972 183,885
8,752,899 6,501,622
8,484,606 6,711,796
- 226
8,484,606 6,712,022
7,972 183,694
- 139
7,972 183,833
8,492,578 6,895,855
4.584 3.312
4.584 3312
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Non-current assets

Investment properties
Properties and other fixed assets
Property interests held for

future development
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Interests in associates
Advances to associates
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss
Advance to an investee company
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder
Loans receivable — due after one year
Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Current assets
Stock of properties
Investments held-for-trading
Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss
Loans receivable — due within one year
Inventories
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Securities trading receivables and deposits
Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

Assets classified as held for sale

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B MR R R

At 31st December, 2014 A =& —

FRBEE

KEME
MEREMEEEE
RIFRRERZ
YES $a
BVEE

HETE ABRE R R
AFEzERMEE

BN —EBEZRERRRA
B — R FEE AR AR B K
%H&%ﬁ%’(*—iéiﬂﬁq
BEMIEE =
EHRFR

REBEE

MELFE

FIFEE KA
BERBBREARKR
RPEZEREE
W E R ——F A2
FR

PN BRIE - & M FEN FRIR

FEW 35 522 2 BR 18 R 7 3K
A Y B35 3R

EHFER
EHTFER
RE ANPTFFIHE TS IE

JIRBIEHEZEBE

CRITRBRIRE

Notes

B &

22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29

35
30(a)
30(b)

31

43
32(a)

33
34

35
31
36
37
32(b)

32(a)
32(c)

13

ME+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
39,528,923 45,552,614
1,768,327 549,335
322,938 322,938
2,484,767 2,370,531
1,754,641 1,702,019
239,233 99,598
379,010 1,080,272
228,800 -
14,908 14,908

= 16

11,237 23,505
438,994 578,803
47,171,778 52,294,539
2,329,865 2,323,246
501,944 894,816
4,247,830 11,038,052
26 13

3,493 3,337
644,964 3,055,267
60,384 66,103
6,511 9,910
429,689 632,780
4,719,223 3,881,250
1,867,162 1,546,180
14,811,091 23,450,954
9,442,062 64,733
24,253,153 23,515,687
—E-NUEFIR EAZEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #=& BF ISR R &R
At 31st December, 2014 R—_FE—WNF+_-_A=+—H

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals

Dividend payable

Securities trading and margin payable

Deposits and receipts in advance
Tax liabilities

Borrowings — due within one year
Provisions

Financial guarantee liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital
Properties revaluation reserve
Securities investments reserve
Statutory reserve
Other reserve
Special reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Translation reserve
Retained profits
— proposed final dividend

— others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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Notes

B &

38

39
40

13

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
1,503,076 1,794,252
7,630,476 -
45,478 15,136
934,726 1,068,654
77,813 247,062
6,707,935 7,386,683
27,561 39,424
102 37
16,927,167 10,551,248
1,759,937 -
18,687,104 10,551,248
5,566,049 12,964,439
52,737,827 65,258,978
190,762 190,762
225,216 225216
41,022 19,223
53,650 41,760
(2,435) (2,501)
2,499,685 2,499,685
138,062 138,062
1,026,504 1,308,690
19,076 953,810
37,375,812 41,729,041
41,567,354 47,103,748
85,239 86,017
41,652,593 47,189,765




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %2 & Bt 6 AR 5% 3R &
At 31st December, 2014 R=_F—NF+_-_A=+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FHETT
Non-current liabilities kRBAE

Borrowings — due after one year BEE——F &5 5 39 9,840,993 16,524,293
Provisions BB 40 1,257 18,519
Amounts due to associates KB BN R FRIE 42 58,419 58,727
Amounts due to investee companies REESLENBRIE 42 27,085 402,685

Amounts due to non-controlling KB FEER IR IR
shareholders 42 489,639 369,236
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 43 667,841 695,753
11,085,234 18,069,213
52,737,827 65,258,978

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on BEZEZERN_T—hHF=A T+ BHERKESE

19th March, 2015 and signed on its behalf by: W YHTIEERREEFSES:
Lau, Ming-wai 21518 Lam, Kwong-wai MR
Director EaEa Director EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& M EHEAM TG EYBREN—E 5 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERETEREFX

/ For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE-Z—NF+ A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

88

ERARBAZEERTER
Properties Securities
Share  revaluation investments Statutory
capital reserve reserve reserve
ES #%
B& EftRE RERE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FET TET FHEL
(note (i)
(P5EG))
At 1st January, 2013 R-E-=%—F—H 190,762 98,162 45,765 32,203
Profit for the year KERHH - - - -
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments FERAZATEE
— Unlisted investments —¥FLMEA - - (26,529) -
Surplus on revaluation of properties and other fixed assets ~ BENEREMETEE 2 B8 - 127,054 - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BOEBREECERER - - - -
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) income of BiEBMERFZ
associates Hiz2®E () s - - (13) -
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year AFE2ENE (T 8% - 127054 (26,542) -
PRC statutory reserve HEEERE - - - 9,557
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR - - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERFERRE 2 RE - - - -
Interim dividend for 2013 paid BENZZE-ZF4HRE - - - -
Final dividend for 2012 paid ERNZZ-Z5RAKE - - - -
Special interim dividend for 2012 paid BERZZ-ZFRAFBRE - - - -
Special interim dividend for 2013 paid ENZZE—=FRR+HERE - - - -
At 31st December, 2013 RZE-=§+ZA=1+—H 190,762 225216 19,223 41,760

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2014




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARBEAZRERAES
Amounts
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve  held for sale profits Total interests equity
BRERFHE
g% ZHERBEE RARER
2t KRG RER#E & %A ZHHE REBEF #E FERES #nE
HKg'000 HK3'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET TET THEL TEL TEL TER TET
(note (ii)) (note (i)
GEIO) (B i) )
(2,537) 2,499,685 138,062 1,014,869 4,308 41,525,243 45,546,522 431,803 45,978,325
- - - - - 6317737 6,317,737 183,885 6,501,622
- - - - (84) - (26,613) (52) (26,665)
- - - - - - 127,054 - 127054
- - - 200,309 - - 200,309 - 200,309
36 - - 93,512 - - 93,535 - 93,535
36 - - 293,821 (84) 6,317,737 6,712,022 183,833 6,895,855
- - - - - (9,557) - - -
- - - - (4,224) - (4.224) (220,774) (224,998)
- - - - - - - (308,845) (308,845)
- - - - - (381,524) (381,524) - (381,524)
- - - - - (381,524) (381,524) - (381,524)
- - - - - (1,907,619) (1,907,619) - (1,907,619)
- - - - - (2,479,905) (2,479,905) - (2,479,905)
(2,501) 2,499,685 138,062 1,308,690 - 42,682,851 47,103,748 86,017 47,189,765
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

At Tst January, 2014 RZE—Mm$-HA—H
Profit for the year REF A
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments HREREZATEE

~ Unlisted investments —JFEMRE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BNRBHEECELEZR
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) income of BEBERRZ

associates Hth2m (i) Ka
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year AEEEENE (X)) BE
PRC statutory reserve HELETE
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERFFERREZRE
Interim dividend for 2014 paid ENZZE-mEFHRS
Final dividend for 2013 paid B ZE-—=FRHKE
Special interim dividend for 2014 paid ENZE-MERRTHRE
Special interim dividend for 2014 declared BEERZZ—WFERERI R RS
At 31st December, 2014 R-B-RE+ZA=1-H
Notes:
(i)  The statutory reserve of the Group refers to The People’s Republic of

(i)

China (“PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

The movement of other reserve for the year represented the release
of the negative reserve held by an associate of the Group upon the
disposals of the relevant properties.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Attributable to owners of the Company
ERARBAZEERTER

Properties Securities

Share  revaluation investments Statutory
capital reserve reserve reserve
TN EfbfE RERME EE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
(note (i)

(BEEQD))

190,762 225,216 19,223 41,760
- - 21,802 -

= = (3) =

- - 21,799 =

= - - 11,890
190,762 225,216 41,022 53,650

b

0)

(ii)

AEBEMEERBETEARKNE ([RE])
FERBES MRRRES R R A
e B O 2 )55 7 R P B o o 9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —WMFE+ A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARBEAZRERAES
Amounts
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve  held for sale profits Total interests equity
BRERFHE
g% ZHERBEE RARER
2t KRG RER#E & %A ZHHE REBEF #E FERES #nE
HKg'000 HK3'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TET TER TR TR TER TET
(note (ii)) (note (iii))
(PR EE i) (GEIO))
(2,501) 2,499,685 138,062 1,308,690 - 42,682,851 47,103,748 86,017 47,189,765
- - - - - 8,744,927 8,744,927 1972 8,752,899
- - - - - - 21,802 - 21,802
= = = (265,250) = = (265,250) = (265,250
66 - - (16,936) - - (16,873) - (16,873)
66 - - (282,186) - 8,744,927 8,484,606 1972 8,492,578
- - - - - (11,890) - - -
- - - - = = = (8,750) (8.750)
= = = = = (572,286) (572,286) = (572,286)
- - - - - (953,810) (953,810) - (953,810)
- - - - - (4,864,428) (4,864,428) - (4,864,428)
= = = = = (1,630,476) (1,630,476) = (1,630,476)
(2,435) 2,499,685 138,062 1,026,504 - 37,394,888 41,567,354 85,239 41,652,593

REDE [ BRFIFHEZ RS EENE e
E s PR R RIER A S 2 FA] -

(i)  Amounts represented “Amounts recognised in other comprehensive  (iii)
income and accumulated in equity relating to non-current assets held
for sale”.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated —#R&BIFSHEM TR A M IEREH—IH -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HZ T —MF+-_A=+—HILFE

Operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of properties and
other fixed assets
Fair value changes on financial guarantees
Interest expenses
Interest income
Dividends income from listed and
unlisted investments
Impairment losses recognised net of reversed
in respect of trade receivables
Impairment loss for
available-for-sale investments
Unrealised (gain) loss arising on change in fair
value of investments held-for-trading
Unrealised loss arising on changes
in fair value of bonds
Loss on disposals of investment properties
Gain on disposals of properties and
other fixed assets
Share of results of associates
Fair value changes on investment properties
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Underprovision for rental guarantee
Gain on deregistration of an associate
Exchange gain, net
Costs of development recognised in respect of

property project in Macau

mExR

KEFECEER ZRBANG
KECDRIEREER RGN
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MERHEBEEEENE

B5ERY AT EED
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RN TR
FEREZRERIR

FEEEZREZ AFEE
EEZREHR (W) BR
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REMEZ N FEED
HE M B AR 2 e
HeEREETR
(il N R 6
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2014
HK$'000
faE FTET

Notes

9,008,758

23,381
65

380,329

(738,243)

(459,101)

104

12,983

(44,009)

446,541
6,750

(638)

(187,331)

(3.777,138)

44 (2,917,579)
5,146

(28,652)

6,503

2013
HK$'000
FHET

6,945,040
539

18,525
37
382,032

(893,841)

(52,919)

83

30,299

55,199
130,370

(45)
(350,854)
(3,402,859)
(198,536)
(4,275)
(2,857)

22,035




Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in stock of properties

Decrease in loans receivable

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments

Decrease (increase) in investments
held-for-trading

Decrease (increase) in financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in securities trading receivables and
deposits

Increase in sales proceeds held by stakeholders

(Decrease) increase in creditors and accruals

Increase (decrease) in securities trading
and margin payable

Increase (decrease) in deposits and
receipts in advance

Decrease in provisions

Cash generated from operating activities
Income tax paid, net

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Dividends received from listed and
unlisted investments

Dividends received from associates

Interest received

Payments for investment properties

Purchases of properties and other fixed assets

Payments for stock of properties

Proceeds on disposals of investment properties

Proceeds on disposals of properties and
other fixed assets

Proceed from withdrawal of
an available-for-sale investment

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Further contribution to an available-for-sale
investment

Net cash inflow (outflow) on disposal of
subsidiaries

Advances to associates

Repayments from associates

Advance to an investee company

Advances from investee companies

Decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash generated from
investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #REBRE&RER

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_—Z

R 30
T8 () D
KR e R UR
b

FFEF2HRERD (38h)

BERBBERNARBRA
EEEERD (L)
FENFE 5 2 B BRIB M TR

b

RE NPT 88 & 1S 5RIRIE 10

B BRI B A 5B
(Fi) 82 0

MBS 2 5B R R
s#0 GAi)
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REGEEB RS
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REAREXBCREFE
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EHARIFEETREZEWEE

g ARz EMARE
BIRA B

S REMEF IR
BEMELAGBEEEE
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HERBEMEMS A
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P8 5R
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HEWB AR Z
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BEE 2 A RZHR

L FNCIF R

BN —REEFRE QR 2R

MEZRE QR BN KE
EHREFERZ B

REREXBZREFHE

—OEF A=+ —HIFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TET FAT
1,737,869 2,677,973
224,052 3,310,619
3 37
(156) 42
246,442 2,029,203
436,881 (768,788)
7,044,943 (1,603,989)
5,719 219,942
(320,982) (708,755)
(264,613) 1,640,931
30,342 (18,450)
72,065 (2,2475503)
(37.898) -
9,174,667 4,531,262
(368,836) (207,161)
8,805,831 4,324,101
69,251 52,919
31,281 96,035
895,597 894,457
(879,666) (1,095,607)
(240,860) (12,033)
(278,198) (1,591,576)
65,311 981,396
2,327 79
14,886 -
(137,801) (7115)
(7.771) -
44 1,460,046 (7,346)
(52,693) (61,460)
24,704 30,704
(228,800) -
14,250 297,750
331,897 1,020,929
1,083,761 599,132
“E-MFEFHR EASEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEeRE&FREXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

Financing activities MEEH

Dividends paid BERRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B IR AR R 2 AR E

Interest paid [=XREESS

New bank loans and other loans raised MERTERREAMER

Repayments of bank loans and other loans BERTEREHMER

Advances from non-controlling shareholders A FE 4% AR AR R 24 3R 2 FRIE

Net cash used in financing activities ARREEEZREFE

Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReERREEHEER
cash equivalents B CRD) B8

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—A—BZE&R

Re%EER

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EX#H 2%

Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—-8%2
31st December ReRBRLEEER
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRESSEBEEEHRIN

cash equivalents
EHER - RITEBRERS
BREEINRFIFEEZEEY

in assets classified as held for sale RITEB LIRS

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash included

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #7&

financial statements.
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2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FExT FAT
(2,979,387) (5,150,572)
(8.750) (308,845)
(578.,474) (576,889)
7,370,923 18,275,984
(12,910,341) (18,344,250)
103,523 148,799
(9,002,506) (5,955,773)
887,086 (1,032,540)
3,881,250 4,820,010
(25,433) 93,780
4,742,903 3,881,250
4,719,223 3,881,250
13 23,680 -
4,742,903 3,881,250
MR ARG B mERM—E D -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise
indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set
out in Notes 52 and 53 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2014 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2013
except as described below.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments to existing HKFRSs and new interpretation
(“Amendments and New Interpretation”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are
effective for current financial year of the Group. The Amendments
and New Interpretation adopted by the Group in the consolidated
financial statements are set out below:

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Investment Entities

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

Non-Financial Assets
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

1.
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ARBZEEEBRREER METZ2WE
RAEINEERA 2 EEEE D B M 52

BRTdEN HE-T-EOF+=-A=1+—H
LHFEEZRAMBREMENZ SRR
REAEEBE-_T—=F+ZA=+—H
LEEGRaVBRRAMEEE 2

REFE AEBEEEXEAUTHEEBS
fing ([BAGEAE])BALHAEE
ROVBFEEARCHREERHBEREE
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HE3 I U
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+_-_A=+—HILFE

/

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities” and HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011) “Separate Financial

Statements”.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application
of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such
as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement

mechanisms that are not simultaneous.

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the unintended disclosure
requirements made by HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” on
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU") which is
not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the disclosure
of the recoverable amounts for the assets or CGUs for which
an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the
reporting period, and expand the disclosure requirements regarding
the fair value measurement for these assets or units if their

recoverable amounts are based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Save as described above, the application of the Amendments and
New Interpretation had no material effect on how the results and
financial position for the current or prior accounting periods are
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment

has been required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —WMFE+ A=+ —HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs and
amendments to existing HKFRSs (“new and revised HKFRSs") that

have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Financial Instruments®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exceptions®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Disclosure Initiative*

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefits Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014,
with limited exceptions

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016

4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1st January, 2016

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2017

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

/

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the
guidance in HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” that relates to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss.
The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income not recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses
model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used
in HKAS 39. For financial liabilities, there were no changes to
classification and measurement except for the recognition of
changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. HKFRS
9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing
the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic
relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument and
for the "hedged ratio” to be the same as the one management

actually use for risk management purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the

unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and revised HKFRSs but
are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and revised
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how the Group's results of
operations and financial position are prepared and presented. The
new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to

how the results and financial position are prepared and presented.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

7/

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access

at the measurement date;
Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(@)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has
power over the investee; (i) is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(i) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

102

(@)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Total comprehensive income and expense of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is, reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost that is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

104

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(c)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

106

(9

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not

related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(d)

(e)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties and investment properties

under construction and development

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction and development for such purposes and
land held for a currently undetermined future use. On initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise. However, if the fair values of
investment properties under construction and development
are not reliably determinable but expect the fair values of the
properties to be reliably determinable when construction/
development is completed, it shall measure that investment
properties under construction and development at cost, less
any impairment loss, until either its fair value become reliably
determinable or construction/development is completed

(whichever is earlier).
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/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

108

(e)

Investment properties and investment properties

under construction and development (Cont'd)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property

is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to
properties and other fixed assets when the property begins to
be occupied by the owner. Gain or loss arising from change
in fair value of the investment property upon the transfer is

included in profit or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from properties
and other fixed assets to investment properties at fair value
when it is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value at
the date of transfer is accounted for as a revaluation increase
or decrease in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
assets, the relevant revaluation reserve is transferred directly

to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

Properties and other fixed assets

Properties and other fixed assets including buildings and
leasehold land classified as finance leases (other than
properties under development) are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and leasehold land mainly comprise hotels and

office premises.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of properties
and other fixed assets (other than properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the
leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired period

of the lease and 40 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of properties and other fixed assets is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

110

(8

(h)

Property interests held for future development

Property interests held for future development represents a
right to develop properties on a piece of land upon payment
of a final amount, and are carried at cost less any identified

impairment loss.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties and
properties under development, which are held-for-trading, is

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units.
Net realisable value is estimated by the management of
the Group based on prevailing market conditions, which
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of properties under development held for sale
includes identified costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing costs capitalised,
material and supplies, wages, other direct expenses and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is estimated by the management of the Group taking into
account the expected price that can ultimately be achieved
based on prevailing market conditions, the anticipated costs

of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale and properties under development
held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down or provision arising from an increase in net
realisable value is recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

0]

)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetic products and food and beverages held for sale in
hotel operation, which are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any
identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

112

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

such category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial asset is either held-for-trading or
it is designated by the management of the Group as such at

inception.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near future; or

on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading

may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon

initial recognition if:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated

as at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

114

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in

“Investment Income/Expenses”.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including advances to associates/
an investee company/a non-controlling shareholder, loans
receivable, debtors and deposits, securities trading receivables
and deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits, bank balances
and cash and sales proceeds held by stakeholders) are
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are

either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as

any of the other categories under HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the securities investments reserve, when the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
securities investments reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

However, interest calculated using the effective interest

method is recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
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/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

116

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(i)  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

(i) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(iv) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial

asset's original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When available-for-sale financial assets are considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

118

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of securities

investments reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial liability is either held-for-trading or it

is designated as such on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near future; or

(i) on initial recognition, it is part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

(i) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held-for-
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit or

loss upon initial recognition if:

(i)  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

(i)  the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

(iiiy it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on
the financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHERE W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (k) £RIA (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals,
securities trading and margin payable, deposits received, bank
and other borrowings, amounts due to associates/investee
companies/non-controlling shareholders) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
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Financial guarantee contracts BBEREXN

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

122

(k)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from properties developed for sale is recognised
upon completion of sales agreement and by reference to
the timing of the execution of deed of legal assignment or

delivery of property to the purchaser, whichever is earlier.

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the
execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received
from the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as
deposits received on sales of properties and are grouped

under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Revenue from hotel room rental, food and beverages sales
and other ancillary services is recognised when the relevant

services have been rendered.

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(m)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts and the profit and loss on trade in securities and
futures contracts are recognised on the transaction dates

when the relevant contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised when

goods are delivered and titles have been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
—mE+-—A=+—HIEE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

124

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Taxation (Cont'd)

(m)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

126

(0)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will
be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of
the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence, the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences

is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

128

(p)

(@

(v

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(s)

®

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset or disposal group
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. The
management of the Group must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary

after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale (other than investment properties accounted for
under the fair value model in HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
and financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39) are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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/ 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

130

(t) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

@

3

)

®)

)

)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()

v)

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, properties and other fixed
assets, financial assets and other assets. Segment liabilities
comprise financial liabilities and other liabilities. The Group
evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but
not including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash
items mainly are fair value changes on investment properties
and other properties together with their, if applicable,
respective deferred tax expense. No intersegment revenue
is accounted for as the intersegment revenue is mainly the

rental income for administrative purpose.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value and impairment of available-for-sale

investments

As described in Note 5(c), the management of the Group uses
its judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity instruments with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$93,515,000 (2013: HK$71,713,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates.
The estimation of fair value of these equity instruments also
includes some assumptions not supported by observable market

prices or rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)
Impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable

The policy for impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their abilites to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on methods of
valuation which involve certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the management of the Group has exercised its judgment
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions, as detailed in Note 22. Should there be
changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions, the fair

value of the investment properties will change in future.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31st December, 2014, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$18,632,000 (2013: HK$29,307,000) in relation to unused
tax losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by the management of the Group on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying

the value-in-use calculations.
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account of the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these

estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Bt % R AR B
—mFE+- A=+ BLFE

5. @ TH

Categories of financial instruments (a)
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale investments FERE
Financial assets at fair value through BREEURMAFEZ
profit or loss: TREE:
— Investments held-for-trading —REEEZRE
— Designated as at fair value —EERBBIERIA
through profit or loss &Hﬁ"ﬂ?fﬁ
Loans and receivables ER R ERR
(including time deposits, ( &%EHW?T .
bank balances and cash) RITHEBRIRE)
Financial liabilities cEAE
Amortised cost BHEACR
Financial guarantee liabilities MBEREAS
Note: The above table and the analysis below excluded the
respective items presented as assets classified as held for
sale and liabilities directly associated with assets classified
as held for sale.
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, advances to/from associates/investee
companies/non-controlling shareholders, loans receivable,
debtors and deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits, bank
balances and cash, sales proceeds held by stakeholders,
borrowings, creditors and accruals and deposits received.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.
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/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

136

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk

0)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions,
and from recognised assets and liabilities. The
functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of
the transactions are denominated. The functional
currencies of those subsidiaries operating in PRC and
in the United Kingdom are Renminbi (“RMB") and
Pound Sterling (“GBP") respectively in which most
of their transactions are denominated. The Group is
mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect
of exchange fluctuations of HK$ against RMB and
GBP. The conversion of RMB into other currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the government of PRC. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets BE

United States dollars (“US$") E([%Exl)
RMB AR

GBP HEE

Euro ("EUR") BT (TRoTl)
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SR (R
Liabilities =K

us$ eV

RMB AR

GBP W

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to US$ and MOP,
it is assumed that there would be no material currency
risk exposure between US$/MOP and HK$ and
therefore US$ and MOP are excluded from the analysis

below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
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/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

138

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translations at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to/
from foreign operations within the Group where
the denomination of the loan is in a currency other
than the currency of the lender or the borrower; but
excluding exposure resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the

Group's presentation currency.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit.

Impact of EZ
RMVB AREE
GBP HgE
EUR 5T

There would be no material impact to the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended 31st
December, 2014 and 2013.

The net effect of the Group’s sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and borrowings including advance to an associate,
time deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds held by
stakeholders and borrowings and is therefore exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider

hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rates ("HIBOR"), prime rate (“Prime"),

People's Bank of China base rate or costs of funds of

financial institutions.

Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in
advance to an associate, time deposits, bank balances,

sales proceeds held by stakeholders and borrowings).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

140

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's:

. profit before tax for the year ended 31st
December, 2014 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$30,315,000 (2013:
HK$87,476,000). This was mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate borrowings.

. no material impact to the other components of
equity for the years ended 31st December, 2014
and 2013.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in
the variable-rate borrowings.

Price risk

The Group's investments classified as available-for-
sale investments, investments held-for-trading and
financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High vyield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rate move upwards, the value of the bonds will
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate
changes.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2014

mEMBRERME
—mE+=A=+—BLFE

5. @M T H

b) SREABRSEEERKE (4

mEmEE (&)
(ll) img‘é’f/%ﬂ (Zg)

(i)

BRE DT (B)

HEBFIE L7 THSOEES
S VSRS PR
TAARE:

. HE_ZT—WNFE+=A4
T+ BLEEZBRH
AT % F 8 R 4 18 4
30,315,000 L (Z T —=
% 187,476,000/ 7T) ° It Y
FTEHRAERBAT 2 F
BIEE Z A EE K -

° ai—7 P—T]E&fg*_
FT-A=+—BIHFEZ
PeA s A D W mE R
T

REBRAFEYEHE 2 GRE
THRIEARFREERD -

1E18 2 B

RERSHREATFEFSEA
REBOBERFERE HIEEE
ZIEREREERBBEZ AR
AFEzeREEAMSAEE
EEREBRRR RBSHR K&
ERAETaiRkERERF =E
BEHE B RTRERKERIE
ETENBZES  BREELNE

RRREERBERNRS  BEK
B—RERERFNES A At
TRESXEEARTE -TT L
BERARSZHERBTE - EF
EEA - FHRBEHFEETRTIK:
o EHEFHAR  HR X
ZHRERG-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) Price risk (Cont'd)

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.
If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's:

. profit before tax for the year ended 31st
December, 2014 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$256,439,000 (2013:
HK$650,657,000). This was mainly due to the
changes in fair value of investments held-for-
trading and financial assets designated as at fair

value through profit or loss.

. other components of equity for the year ended
31st December, 2014 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$4,676,000 (2013:
HK$3,586,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments measured

at fair value.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

142

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties' failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2014 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets are: (a) the carrying amounts of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position;
and (b) financial guarantee provided by the Group which
is the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group. The Group's time deposits
and bank balances are deposited with banks of high credit

quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and
scrutiny of financials for non-rated counterparties are two
important criteria in the selection of counterparties. The
credit quality of counterparties will be closely monitored over
the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its financial
counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit

strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in debt securities are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparty with high quality.
When making decisions on investments in securities, the
management of the Group has also made reference to the
credit ratings of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which,
however, are not an assurance as to the issuers and/or
guarantors' creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability
of the security. Risks in particular specific to certain types of
bonds held by the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they
in general carry high credit risk as they are often subject to
higher risk of issuer default as they are typically rated below
investment grade or are unrated; and (ii) perpetual bonds
— their coupon payments may be deferred or suspended
subject to the terms and conditions of the bonds and they
are often callable after a call protection period (related risk
is detailed in the liquidity risk below). Other than the above,
there may be additional risks associated with trading of
bonds over-the-counter (“OTC") because OTC transactions
are generally subject to limited regulation and therefore
less transparent in transaction details such as volume,
price formation, etc. There may also be additional risks for
investments located in an emerging market which may
involve certain risks associated with political and economic
uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the Group
has appointed a special team to closely monitor the risks as
disclosed in Note 5(b)(iii) above.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

144

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Certain mortgagee banks have provided end-user financing
to purchasers of stock of properties located in Mainland
China and the Group has provided repurchase guarantees to
these mortgagee banks for securing the obligations of such

purchasers for repayments.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the mortgagee banks. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to sell the properties to
recover any amounts paid by the Group to the mortgagee
banks. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced. Nevertheless, the net
realisable values of the relevant properties are subject
to the fluctuation of the property market in general, the
management of the Group, by reference to the valuation
conducted by independent qualified professional valuer,
assesses at the end of each reporting period the liabilities
based on the current estimates of future cash flows. At
the end of the reporting period, the above guarantees to
banks were stated at fair value by reference to the valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer in these

consolidated financial statements.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The
Group is subject to investment concentration risk as there
are bonds investment with a single issuer of approximately
HK$2,969,703,000 as at 31st December, 2014 which
represents a majority proportion of the Group's investment
portfolio as determined by the management of the Group.
Investment concentration risk may materialise when the
market in which that bonds are traded is constricted (related
risk is detailed in liquidity risk below), or when the fair value
of that bonds are declined (related risk is detailed in price
risk above). The Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-
concentration (such as investment products and underlying

foreign exchange, etc) of the investment portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain investments held-for-trading and bonds
were pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure
margin and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect
of securities transactions. Under adverse market conditions,
the Group may be called by the financial institutions upon
at short notice to make deposit to repay the margin loans.
If the required deposits are not made within the prescribed
time, the Group's securities may be liquidated by the financial

institutions without the Group's consent.

Certain bonds held by the Group carry fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the debt securities early if interest rates fall. The Group may
face reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to
redeem the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds
may not have active secondary market. In case of the market
in which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group may run
the risk of either having to retain the investment until the end
of the term or selling it before maturity at an unfavourable

price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)
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(b)

REMBRRME

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Borrowings

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin
payable

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to investee
companies

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders
— Interest-bearing
— Interest-free

Financial guarantee liabilities
— Current
— Non-current

Total

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Borrowings

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin
payable

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to investee
companies

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders
— Interest-bearing
- Interest-free

Financial guarantee liabilities
— Current
— Non-current

Total

W

TEERAE

S Gl OFE
STLSEmE

Sz
FoR it S5

W 1 R S i

WS
SO
o

FEERAE

S
B
45N

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
MEFY
ERFE

3.20%

11.25%

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
MEFH
ERF=

2.58%

11.25%
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b) SHARSTEERRIE (4)

mEELEE (E)
At 31st December, 2014

R-B-mE+=A=+-H
Total Total
Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying
1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
AERRE REE
—£R MEERF RERH ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TR THER
1,161,837 10,454,356 17,622,193 16,548,928
1,503,076 - 1,503,076 1,503,076
45,478 - 45,478 45,478
- 58,419 58,419 58,419
- 217,085 27,085 27,085
200,893 200,893 180,578
309,061 309,061 309,061
323,172 - 323,172 102
= 526,092 526,092 -
9,039,563 11,575,906 20,615,469 18,672,727

At 31st December, 2013

RZF-—=f+-FA=1—H
Total Total
Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying
1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
AEERS REE
—FR MEEZRF nERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TER
7,929,941 17,510,267 25,440,208 23910976
1,794,252 - 1,794,252 1794,252
15,136 - 15,136 15,136
- 58,727 58,727 58,727
- 402,685 402,685 402,685
- 163,758 163,758 147,198
- 222,038 222,038 222,038
196,113 - 196,113 37
- 829,600 829,600 -
9,935,442 19,187,075 29,122,517 26,551,049




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(o)

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analysed the financial instruments which
are measured at fair value into the three-level hierarchy.

Financial assets/ Fair value Valuation techniques
financial liabilities Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
LREE/SRAE AYE AFEIRY  HERNRIERE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL
Financial assets
tREE
Listed equity securities 501,944 894,816  Level 1 Quoted prices
classified as investments -1 in active markets
held-for-trading ERMIS BB
PERRIEFEBIREL
FHRARES
Bonds dlassified as financial 4,626,840 12,118324  Level 1 Quoted prices
assets designated F—H in active markets
as at fair value through ERMIS BB
profit or loss
”*Ef‘ﬁ ERBARR
URB R TFEZ
SREEES
Unlisted equity 93,515 717113 Level 3 Discounted cash flow:
securities classified as 5=/ forecast dividend income,
available-for-sale discount rate and contract
investments (note (i)) terms (if any)
PRRBEREZ HERBCRE:
FEMRAES BAZBREWA BRER
(BEEEQ)) AR (0F)
5,222,299 13,084,853
Financial liabilities
tRaE
Financial guarantee liabilities 102 37 Level3 Trinomial Option Pricing Model
HBERAR E=8 (note (iii))
ZEAHEEEER
(B & i) )
Notes: B
(i)  The carrying amount as at 31st December, 2014 mainly 0 R=ZZE-—
comprised 6.475% equity investment in New Hong Kong
Tunnel Company Limited of approximately HK$92,585,000
(2013: HK$70,755,000).
(i) The higher the forecast dividend income and terminal (i)
value, the higher the fair value. The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair value. 1Ko
(i)  The key inputs for the Trinomial Option Pricing Model (i)

included net asset value/market value, exercise price,
time to maturity, risk-free interest rate and volatility of the
underlying assets.

(iv)  The higher the volatility, the higher the fair value.
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() AFEFE

Bt % R AR B
—mFE+- A=+ BLFE

R FlEGBZEZHMTA

TREBUAR

FEFAEZEMIAZ=H
DR DT

Significant
unobservable inputs
EXFIEERE

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

Forecast dividend income taking
into account management's
experience, dividend records over
the past years and the estimated
terminal value (note (i)

BRHZREMANZREEE
L% BEEE 2 RELHE
RiLE 7 & EE (M (i)

Discount rate ranging from 1%
below Prime to Prime (note (iiy)

BEEARN ?Fﬁﬁﬂ
RIEZHEBFE (M)

Volatility ranging from
4.54% to 28.12% (2013: 4.78%
to 25.53%) (note (iv))

HED M B
4.549%28.12% < =F:
4.78%%25.53% ) W?(lv)

WE+—A=+—HZKEMA
BEE BB A92,585,0004 T (=
T — =4 :70,755,000 7T) R &

ﬁ%% BAR AT Z6.475%A AL E -

Mo

BBz B B
ATEHES - BERERED D

WARBKEBEELS:
FES

“HEABREERA T ERER
EHEBEECEEFE/TE 17
BB B MR - EAR
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/ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

148

(9

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31st
December, 2014 and 2013 and no change in valuation
techniques used in the prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included

in Level 1.

The movement in the balances of Level 3 fair value

measurement is as follows:

At Tst January, 2013 )5(‘:

Net unrealised losses recognised

in other comprehensive RNEREIRER
income during the year

Fair value changes recognised iWE/\TE 5 HERR
in profit or loss during the year RNFEE

At 31st December, 2013
Net unrealised gains recognised

in other comprehensive RER W F 5
income during the year

Fair value changes recognised REANRBRER
in profit or loss during the year NSRIEE )

At 31st December, 2014
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()

RZE—=F+"HA=+—H
P A E fth 2 T MK 25 T R

R-ZB-NE+=A=+—H

DFEFE (F)

HURFlEFEBZZBTA (F)

ANFEIBRHAE—F - F_HZRE=
BZEREE_T-—NER_ZT—Z=F

ToA=t-BUEFEATEERRE
FRTAZ A ERAM I EEE o

REBRTSEEZEM TR ZAFERN
B3RS BIR AT H 2 M8 o fin BN B K2 € By
BRRHH R 5E &L FRAH
BERGREERBRSRE BZF
ERBERLEREAFELELETZR
525 BTG RRE R - AEE AT
CREEMBZTERERBAMZIEA
B ETABFAE R

MRV EREEHZEDUT

Unlisted
equity securities

classified as Financial
available-for-sale guarantee
investments liabilities
PEARGERE B ¥
ZkETRAFS EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
98,242 -
(26,529) -

- 37)

71,713 37)
21,802 =

= (65)

93,515 (102)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

All of the above gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income for the current and prior years relate
to unquoted equity investments held at the end of the
reporting period and are reported as changes of “Securities

Investments Reserve”.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from 2013.

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the capital structure
of the Group mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings
from banks and other financial institutions, pledged deposits,
time deposits, bank balances and cash, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits. The Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital
structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. The Group has a target
gearing ratio not higher than 50%, determined as the proportion
of net debt to equity. This ratio is expressed by as a percentage of
net borrowings over the total equity. Net borrowings are calculated
as total borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

6. EXREAMERE ®

The gearing ratios were as follows: BREEELERMNT :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Borrowings — due within one year (note (i)) EE——FRNE 8 (M) 6,707,935 7,386,683
Borrowings — due after one year (note (i)) BE——FEEH (MHEG)) 9,840,993 16,524,293
Total debt (note (i) Bz (M) 16,548,928 23,910,976
Cash and cash equivalents (note (ii)) ReMRSEEBEE (M) (5.587,906) (5,092,833)
Net debt B FE 10,961,022 18,818,143
Net debt B FE 10,961,022 18,818,143
Listed securities investments and FHEFRER
treasury products (note (iii)) 818 B an (MEEGii) ) (5.128,784) (13,013,140)
Net debt [T OEE=E
(net debt less listed securities (BB FER L EH
investments and treasury products) HENBEER) 5,832,238 5,805,003
Total equity (note (iv)) I8 A 2 4258 (MIEE(v) ) 41,652,593 47,189,765
Net debt to equity ratio B 50 B AR AR R A b 3
(excluding listed securities (TEREETESKRER
investments and treasury products) MEEM) 26.3% 39.9%
Net debt to equity ratio B AR B AR A M 2R b
(including listed securities (BRELIMEFRER
investments and treasury products) BEEM) 14.0% 12.3%
Notes: Bt o
(i)  Borrowings (excluding bank borrowing classified as liabilities i) BETEEFARIABEHEZEE
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale) are EERE 8 ETHORITEE) R 395
detailed in Note 39. it
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise pledged deposits, time (i) MREEHRzReRR2FEERBFEE
deposits, bank balances and cash (excluding bank balances and BEFR EHFR RITEHKRBAS (T8
cash presented as assets classified as held for sale) at the end of FBRINIIRFIELEEEZRITHEBRK
the reporting period. R&) e
(i) Listed securities investments and treasury products are detailed in (i) EMEFRE RV EEMNPME34R355F
Notes 34 and 35. it o
(iv) Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained vy R|EBARZEHEITRAESEEBIEN

profits and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

The decrease in net debt to equity ratio (excluding listed securities
investments and treasury products) was mainly due to the decrease
in net debt. The decrease in net debt was mainly attributable to the

decrease in borrowings.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures
Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

In relation to the wholly foreign-owned enterprises for carrying
out property development projects and consultancy services in
Mainland China, the Group is required to pay up before March
2016 the unpaid registered capital for wholly-owned subsidiaries
including & B 2 (B #EB) B R 22 7] of approximately US$79.84
million and & ( L/8)%R &AM B R A F of US$0.40 million in
accordance with the relevant laws, rules and regulations of the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amount received and receivable
from property rental income, sales of properties held for sale, gains/
losses from sales of investments held-for-trading, hotel operation
income, commission from brokerage, settlement charges from
brokerage, cosmetic goods sold less returns and interest income
from loan financing, analysed as follows:

MEBESWA

Continuing operations

Property rental income

Sales of properties held for sale

Gains (losses) on sales of HERFEEEZ
investments held-for-trading

Hotel operation income B E WA

Brokerage and cosmetic income

Interest income from loan financing

wE Y (F18)

6.

FIELWEMERZHE

40 AR %5 R At 85 B WA
EXBENSBA

BEXARARER ®

ERFREARA ST (TRELTESK
BRMEBEER) ZAATR T2HRNEBF
BR D ERFERS EEEEARBER D
B o

RELEBTE AR =H2EHEFNER
AIRETMARAR REHEAERAF LK
BELSARAAARBFMPEEHERR
& E AR E &S M E RO
ELBEBRMRFVBER - ZBREALA
Mt EASARNESsRREEKREREZS
BEXBE RAFECHEET -

RN BECERPREREETYESRRE
BRERREMS ASEEZPBEBEE
B RARERER AR —XRF=A
MAZERAENBARINAERN 2EME
K-RRABEEESEE (KB BERIFAD
79,840,000 T Rk &F#E ( LB REBHAR
A B1#9400,000% 7t ©

B XX ERE SN AR B R E AN B A R
PRIMNRBAZ R ZBRH

A

WAEER R ERZMERSWA FIELHE
MEZHE HEREEREZRERSE B
BOEEEBERA KLl BERBZX
ZER MREER 2 MM E N RERER
BREWAZEFEE DMWOT:

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
1,939,378 1,791,257
617,086 4,651,665
29,074 (44,399)
25,356 -
16,389 18,555
5 35,648
2,627,288 6,452,726
“E-NEFER EASEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/s

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed available-for-sale equity investments; (v) listed
investments held-for-trading and treasury products; and (vi) unlisted
investments, investment holding and brokerage. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operation of the Group that

the management of the Group uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development Property development and sales of

and trading trading properties

Property leasing

— Retail - Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail - Property leasing from non-retail

properties
Listed available-for-sale - Listed equity securities in
equity investments available-for-sale investments
Listed investments - Listed securities investments in
held-for-trading and investments held-for-trading,
treasury products over-the-counter trading and
structured products
Unlisted investments, - Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding trading and brokerage

and brokerage

The reportable segment of “floating rate and fixed rate notes”
on available-for-sale investments was discontinued since the
year ended 31st December, 2012 as a result of the disposals of
two listed subsidiaries of the Group. Details of the discontinued

operation are set out in Note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investments properties and other
properties together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax.
No intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment

revenue is mainly the rental income for administrative purpose.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss remain unchanged from 2013.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and result are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property location.

There was no major customer who individually accounted for over

10% of the Group's revenue.

8.

Bt % R AR B
—mFE+- A=+ BLFE

EEDHE

AL B AR IR X MR R Rk # fézi“‘
LG (ETERIEFRESER) REE
1ﬁi%fﬁ°£x#fﬁ‘£lﬁﬁ%%xﬁ%%&ﬁfm%
KZARER RNV ELEEFR LB ZELTH
B (WER) RO BEZ WA T ERRIT
BB &2 S WA - Bk I 8 5 22 WA
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Operating segment information is presented below:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2014

Continuing operations

Major cash items excluding
in revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue

Revenue from external customers
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom

Revenue from external customers
after non-controlling interests

Attributable property sales from
associates/investee
- Hong Kong

Attributable rental revenue from
associates/investee
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom
- Other countries

FECEER

WAL SN2
TERSEA
-E#
-HBER

A
RESNBEFZHA
-ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
—mE+-—A=+—HIEE

8. &iE

vk -R¢ )

~HHBER

DEREMEINMT
KETHKBBER
BE—F—MF+_H=1—HIFE
Listed
investmeinls Unlisted
¢ Listed held-for-  investments,

Property Pro%;r%éeésmg available-for-  tradingand  investment All

development sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated

_ BfEHEZ HLnRA:

NERER fEztm  LARER  REZERR g
EE ZE FEE RaRa HEER SLRHE At AR g4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TER TR TER TER TR
- - - - 466,881 - - 466,881
- - - - 11,135,671 - - 11,135,671
- - - - 11,602,552 - - 11,602,552
206,590 1,212,142 418,318 - 29,074 5,112 10,622 1,883,118
410,496 61,159 44,095 - - - 25,356 541,106
- 5,576 197,488 - - - - 203,064
617,086 1,219,471 659,901 - 29,074 5112 35,978 2,627,288
565,439 1,278,268 659,492 - 29,074 5112 35,978 2,574,023
1,491,160 - - - - - - 1,491,160
- 18,960 34,652 - - - - 53,612
- 76,219 91,332 - - - - 167,611
2,056,599 1,373,507 185,476 - 29,074 5,112 35,978 4,286,406
486,893 1,162,125 393,900 - 111,291 41,559 18,119 2,213,881
236,745 54,692 38,324 - - 33,169 (11,513) 351,417
- 5,446 192,878 - - - - 198,324
- - - - 114,218 29 - 114241
123,638 1,222,263 625,102 - 225,509 14,151 6,606 2,871,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2014

P ISR R MG

Listed
investme'nts Unlisted
¢ Listed held-for-  investments,
Property Pro%;r%éeésmg available-for-  tradingand  investment All
development sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments roducts brokerage segments  Consolidated
M’F FLTRE:
NEBRER #EzLW tm?ﬁﬁ& REERR g
EE 2E *BE RERE HEER BLRH g g4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TER TR TER TER TR
Share of results of associates EEBERARA
- Attributable property sales, net ~ [ E %%ﬁﬁﬁ RE
~ Hong Kong - 15,645 - - - - - - 15,645
~ Attributable gross income —[Ef E 45'(7\2@ #
~ Hong Kong -&E - 17,905 33,561 - - - 1m 53,198
- Mainland China —HERE - 76,279 91,332 - - - - 167,611
- Attributable operating cost —~EEEERE
~ Hong Kong &4 - (1,464) (5,680) - - - - (7,144)
~ Mainland China — B KR - (31,885) (14,917) - - - - (46,802)
Non-controlling interests SRR (24,261) (1,096) (371) - - - - (25.128)
715,022 1,282,002 129,021 - 225,509 14,151 8,338 3,034,655
Other income and expenses, net HiRAREZFE (61,044) 212 - - - 1,410 (60,714) (120,106)
Costs of development recognised SEMNEEA 2
in respect of property project in Macau B E RAX & (6,503) - - - - - - (6,503)
Loss on disposals of HEREMEZER
investment properties - (6,750) - - - - - (6,750)
Finance (costs) income g5 (BR) A - (3,071) (108,762) - 10,673 - - (101,160)
Other gains and losses, net HilaRERTE (65) (5,146) - - - - - (5211)
Share of resuls of associates BEBELA%E
- Income tax and others —FiEH &ﬁﬁt (15,911) (35,862) (38,731) - - - (107) (90,611)
Non-controlling interests Pl 4t (16) (5) - - - - - (1)
631,483 1,231,410 581,534 - 236,182 16,167 (52,483) 2,704,293
Unallocated items ﬁi?ﬂﬁlﬁ E
Unallocated corporate expenses, net P PN Fﬁfi@?ﬁ (217,577)
Unallocated finance costs KB HBER (293,858)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 2,917,579
Income tax expense FERRR (260,390)
Unallocated non-controlling interests &7 8 2 3Rl i 17,171
Operating profit for the year KA BE’E ABE{E
from continuing operations REER
attributable to owners of @%%EZ!& b
the Company 4,867,824
Operating profit for the year KARHEEAER
from discontinued operation AEERACAL
attributable to owners of BExBLERA
the Company -
Operating profit for the year EEREEE
from continuing and BEXBREAL
discontinued operations BExB LR 4,867,824
Realised fair value changes on HERENEZ
disposals of investment properties BERATELRY
~ Recognised in current year ~RAERED (286)
Major non-cash items TEHRLEE
~ Unrealised fair value changes on ~AERIRE
investment properties (Including nEZATE
share of results of associates and 2 (aEER
non-controlling interests) BENFAEAR
i35 Hﬂ&m) 3,872,858
~ Deferred tax credit —ERHEEE 4,531
Profit for the year from RAREE AL
continuing and discontinued AEERAKE
operations attributable to BEXLBRBLL
owners of the Company BEER2ER 8,744,927
TE-NFEFHR FEABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EETH
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEWRERE (B

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BE_FE—MFF_H="1+—HIFFE

HK$'000
FEx
Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) BRaH (FEEETEHFREER)
Operating profit for the year from TEEREBFESEELER
continuing and discontinued operations ERIEREER 2 KERA 4,867,824
Major accumulated realised fair value changes REFEHEREWEZ
on disposals of investment properties TERRCEALTERD
in current year
— Recognised in current year —RAFEHER (286)
— Recognised in prior years —RBEFEER 54,968
Core profit for the year from continuing and AARBEEAEBEEAFERE
discontinued operations attributable to BEREERRCRIEREEKY
owners of the Company B R 4,922,506

156 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2014

Assets
Segment assets
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom
- Other countries
Interests in associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Advances to associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Reportable segment assets

Assets dlassified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom
- Other countries

Reportable segment liabilities

Liabiltties directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets)

&E

PEEE
-&R
—REAE
—AH
Ll ES

BEDAER
-&k
~mEAE

BNBERANE

7%/%
- EAE

SRR EREZ AR
ANBLAREE

FRARLE

&

SEBE
“Eh
~hEAE
%8
~EB%

PEE VL

B AR EHEZ
BERRIABZAE
KrEZRAAR

FARELE

REZEADEE
($RWIAR
BTREEERD)

EEDHE

REMBRRER
R-E—mFEF—A=+—H

Listed
investments Unlisted
. Listed held-for-  investments
P I H
Property rop;ﬂ(gﬁeésmg available-for-  tradingand  investment All
development sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
) BEEEZ FLTRE:
NERER fEztm  LARER  REZRR g
EE 28 *EE RERg HEER BLRH At AR g4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET TER TER TER TR TER
4,021211 19,755,263 11,449,659 - 501,944 807,812 51,681 36,581,570
5,733,566 1,283,423 1,077,995 - - 374,931 1,788,424 10,258,339
- 162,219 4,903,280 - - - - 5,065,499
- - - - 4,895,072 71653 - 4,972,125
34,330 524,413 1,184,676 - - 1,481 30,102 1,775,002
143,105 95,344 471,316 - - - - 709,765
7068 210 121 - - 2 1,49 8,901
997,681 59,893 688,166 - - - - 1,745,740
10936961 21,880,765 19,775,219 - 5397016 1,261,879 1871,701 61,123,581
9,442,062
859,328
71,424,931
1,384,030 290,701 168,780 - 3 48,194 85,054 1,976,762
459,798 42,676 17,844 - - - 20,374 540,692
- 81,934 2,915,086 - - - - 2,997,020
- - - - 1,713,785 3 - 1,113,788
1,843,828 415311 3,101,710 - 1,113,788 48,191 105,428 1,228,262
1,159,931
20,784,139
29,772,338
968,203 30,619 74,909 - - - 189,906
—B-MEFHR FABEEE
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/ 8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Other Material Items

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2014

Interest income FEBKA
Finance costs BBER
Net income (expenses) WA (F%) %8
Depreciation b |
Fair value changes on investment properties 1% E#% 2 AT EZ
Costs of development recognised HRMYFERZ

in respect of property project in Macau R R
Share of results of associates BEBEDRZE
Income tax (expense) credit FrisHt (%) &E
Non-controlling interests MRS

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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8. EESEw
HibEXRIEH

BE_F—MF+_H="1—HIFE
Continuing and
Discontinued discontinued
Continuing operations operation operations
BESEERR
BESERY BRIERERE CRLELSERH
Adjustments Consolidated
Reportable Adjustments for major statement of
segments for non-cash comprehensive
total unallocated items Total Total income total
TER L E2:$ 30k Ga2E
FRER B HEZEE Bg -k KEHRER
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERL TAL TRAL TER
739,010 - - 739,010 - 739,010
(101,160) (293,858) - (395,018) - (395,018)
637,850 (293,858) - 343,992 - 343,992
- (23,381) - (23,381) - (23,381)
- (286) 3,177424 3,777,138 - 3,177,138
(6,503) - - (6,503) - (6,503)
91,897 - 95,434 187,331 - 187,331
- (260,390) 4,531 (255,859) - (255,859)
(25,749) 12171 - (1972) - (1972)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 8 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2013

Continuing operations

Major cash items excluding
in revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue
Revenue from external customers
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom
- Other countries

Revenue from external customers
after non-controlling interests

Attributable property sales from
associates
- Hong Kong

Attributable rental revenue from
associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- United Kingdom
- Other countries

EE

vk ¢

&)

FETERBRR
BE-_F—=F1T-_A=1—HALFE

Listed
investments Unlisted
) Listed held-for- investments,
Property Pro;ﬂeny ‘643*5‘”8 available-for- trading and investment Al
development *EE sale equity treasury holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEEY  FLTRE:
NEERR BEoLm  LARER  REERR il
BF TE ¥TE RA%E HEER B R EthAg Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEx T TR T T FiEx T
BERELY
WA Z
TERLER
&% - - - - 2,434,160 - - 2,434,160
-EfER - - - - 13,646,871 - - 13,646,871
- - - - 16,081,031 - - 16,081,031
KA
RENPEPZHA
&5 2917456 1117798 379,147 - (45,623) 5975 48228 4422981
i 1,734,209 54,611 47,687 - - - - 1,836,507
- 5273 186,741 - - - - 192,014
- - - - 1,224 - - 1,224
4,651,665 1,177,682 613,575 - (44,399) 5975 48,228 6,452,726
REMBEFER
ERE Mg
BPHA 3,922,523 1,176,964 613302 - (44,399) 5,975 48,228 5722593
G|
nE
-&% 368,904 - - - - - - 368,904
B ERE
e
Bk - 15,802 27971 - - - - 43,773
—REAKE - 84,216 84,539 - - - - 168,755
4291427 1,276,982 725812 - (44,399) 5975 48228 6,304,025
&% 939,006 1,073,576 367812 - (57774) 42,455 56,848 2,421,923
—HE KR 100,761 47706 41,443 - - 68470 - 258,380
—5H - 5,268 186,564 - - - - 191,832
-ABER - - - - 970,357 34 - 970,391
1,039,767 1,126,550 595,819 - 912,583 110959 56,848 3,842,526
—E-NEEH FABEEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5

—OF+ZA=+—HILLFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

8. BEETE =

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) wmEe

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2013

Share of results of associates
- Attributable property sales, net
~ Hong Kong
- Attributable gross income
~ Hong Kong
- Mainland China
- Attributable operating cost
~ Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Non-controlling interests

Other income
Costs of development recognised

in respect of property project in Macau

Loss on disposals of
investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of associates
- Income tax and others

Non-controlling interests

Unallocated items

Unallocated corporate expenses, net

Unallocated finance costs
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Income tax expense

Unallocated non-controlling interests

Operating profit for the year
from continuing operations
attributable to owners of
the Company

Operating profit for the year
from discontinued operation
attributable to owners of
the Company

Operating profit for the year
from continuing and
discontinued operations

Realised fair value changes on
disposals of investment properties
~ Recognised in current year

Major non-cash items
- Unrealised fair value changes on

investment properties (including
share of results of associates and

non-controlling interests)

- Deferred tax expense

Profit for the year from

continuing and discontinued

operations attributable to
owners of the Company
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Listed
investments Unlisted
) Listed held-for- investments,

Property PTORE;W ‘efjﬂg available-for- trading and investment Al

development *EE sale equity treasury holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated

) HIFEE FLTRE

NEERER fE2Lm  LTRAR  RABRK iR
ER TE FRE RARE BEER EERB DR Fa
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 K5 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TER TETL TETL TETL TET TEL TETL THTL
6,248 - - - - - - 116,248
- 15,802 2797 - - - 1,638 45411
- 84216 84,539 - - - - 168,755
- (1,032) 971) - - - - (4,003)
(47304) (14.993) - - - - (62,297)
(234,749) (636) (245) - - - - (235,630)
921,266 1,177596 690,120 - 912,583 110959 58,486 3,871,010
3313 1,708 - - - - - 5,021
(22,035) - - - - - - (22,035)
- (130,370) - - - - - (130,370)
- (2982)  (105,600) - (56,607) - - (165,189)
- - 4275 - - - - 4275
(12312) (28,008) 57764 - - - (888) 16,556
(496) (1,113) - - - - - (1,609)
889,736 1,016,831 646,559 - 855,976 110,959 57598 3,577,659

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2014

(253,037)
(288,400)
198,536
(379992)
53,603

2,908,369

2,908,679

491,433

2,981,552
(63927)
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

8.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2013

Core profit (excluding major non-cash items)
Operating profit for the year from
continuing and discontinued operations
Major accumulated realised fair value changes
on disposals of investment properties
in current year
— Recognised in current year

— Recognised in prior years

Core profit for the year from continuing and
discontinued operations attributable to

owners of the Company

SEDE @

HETERBHRER (B)
BE_FT—=—Ff+ _-_HA=+—HIFZF

HK$'000
FHET
BOVERN (FEREXEFRRSEEH)
AEERBBELCEEER
ERIEREEBL ZREHER 2,908,679
REAFEFELHEREMEZ
FERBEBRAFEES
—RAEEHER 491,433
—RBEFERER 356,721
AATHEEANELEREERE
HECEEERCRIEEEEL
R 3,756,833

“E-MEFHR EASXEE
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2013

Assets
Segment assets
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China and Macau
- United Kingdom
- Other countries
Interests in associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Advances to associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Reportable segment assets

Assets classified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China and Macau
- United Kingdom
- Other countries

Reportable segment liabilties

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments

and deferred tax assets)
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8. EESTEmm
SREFBMRRER
RZF—=ZF+ZA=+—H
Listed
investments Unlisted
) Listed held-for- investments,
Property Property ‘ef:‘”g avallable-for- trading and investment Al
development HELAS sale equity treasury holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
REREZ  ELTRA
NEEER ) #&zLm  LAREAR  RESBRR g
BE TE FRE RARE BEER EERB EtnE Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TEL TET TET TER TET TET
3,847,767 25,708,871 10,343,349 - 894,816 752,624 47323 41,594,750
10,256,012 1,288,181 866,628 - - 7115 3,799 12,421,735
- 125329 4,316,229 - - - - 4,441,558
- - - - 12415690 - - 12415690
33235 489,895 1,085,054 - - 1,309 29,695 1,639,188
161,920 115,225 454,198 - - - - 731,343
709 204 137 - - 2 1477 8916
987,345 60,190 645,568 - - - - 1,693,103
15,293,375 27,787,895 17711,163 - 13,310,506 761,050 82,294 74,946,283
64,733
799210
75,810,226
1,166,264 828,949 169,516 - 16,389 84,007 2,265,127
950,374 23,744 19628 - - - - 993,746
- 93,323 3,222,249 - - - - 3315572
- - - - 6,453,230 - - 6,453,230
2,116,638 946,016 3,411,393 - 6,453,232 16,389 84,007 13,027,675
15,592,786
28,620,461
1,837,954 128,222 256,903 - - - 3314

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 8 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

a2 N /-\ M L
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EEDEw®wm
Other Material Items HiEKXRER
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 Her—F—=—F+_FA=1—HIFE
Continuing and
Discontinued discontinued
Continuing operations operation operations
RELEEBR
BEEEEE BRIEEEEE BRILEEEE
Adjustments Consolidated
Reportable Adjustments for major statement of
segments for non-cash comprehensive
total unallocated items Total Total income total
2R AA#E TEHRE GazE
NREE ZHE HAZRE bk k] baBEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL T TAT TRET TAT FAT
Interest income FEWA 921286 8,187 - 929,473 510 929,983
Finance costs §BEA (165,189) (288,400) - (453,589) - (453,589)
Net income (expenses) WA (RX) 8 756,097 (280213) - 475,884 510 476,394
Depreciation e - (18,525) - (18,525) - (18,525)
Fair value changes on investment properties 1% E#% 2 ATFES - 491,433 2911,426 3,402,859 - 3,402,859
Costs of development recognised RRFNEERZ
in respect of property project in Macau RERKEK (22,035) - - (22,035) - (22,035)
Share of results of associates 1 UNT 280,670 - 70,184 350,854 - 350,854
Income tax expense FERAx - (379,992) (63,927) (443,919 (38) (443,957)
Non-controlling interests FERER (237239) 53,603 (58) (183,694) (191) (183,885)
—E-mEsg  EAEx£E 163
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/ 9. OTHER INCOME

164

9.
Included in other income are: HA W A B 45 -
Continuing operations BEREXK
Building management fee income BFEBEBEWRA
Building management fee expenses BFEREMX
Forfeiture of deposits received on sales of B EMEFTEIRS
stock of properties
Asset management and maintenance BEERMRERBUKA
services income
Property management services, MEER R
leasing administration services and HIBTTHRE &
property administration services income WETBRBEEA
Advisory and consultancy services income 5 5 R R R AR 7 U A
Rental services income HERBUKA
Consultancy fee income MBI
Exchange gain, net bE 5 M % 5
Interest income from loan note (note) REEREBEZFBWA (FEE)
Discontinued operation CRIEREER
Exchange gain, net PE 5 W o 7 7R

Note: The loan note, which represented part of the consideration
for the disposal of Grandday Group Limited (“Grandday”) (an
available-for-sale investment of the Group) in 2012 and carried
interest at 2% per annum, was fully redeemed by the purchaser
together with all interest accrued thereon in 2013 (Note 48(a)).
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2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

207,230 212,491
(192,105) (195,597)

15,125 16,894

264 252

11,556 15,049

12,282 4,763

312 -

17,636 -

9,227 242

- 2,820

= 8,187
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET 10. BREWAFE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Financial assets at fair value through EBEEURBRAFERESE
profit or loss classified as held-for-trading: RFEEEEZERMEE:
Unrealised gain (loss) arising NP EREMEEC
on change in fair value BIE W (E1E) 44,009 (30,299)
Financial assets designated as BERBBBRURMRATELZ
at fair value through profit or loss: CRVEE
Unrealised loss arising on change in N ELYMEEZ
fair value AEHEE (446,541) (55,199)
Realised (loss) gain arising on change in N EZYMEEZ
fair value BEER (BHE) Wa
— Change in fair value — R EEH (122,538) 159,346
— Exchange component of change —[EH En st (16,551) (7,606)
Net (loss) gain arising on change in fair value 57 & B BB A Xk
of financial assets designated as at fair value ATEzEMEERLNTE
through profit or loss FEmEE (BE) W F8E (585,630) 96,541
Underwriting commission income HAHE S WA - 46,518
Impairment loss for available-for-sale FERAERBEEE
investments (12,983) -
Other investment income, net H A% & W ASFRE 15,416 14,138
Dividend income on: g e AR :
Listed investments EWEE 38,208 18,148
Unlisted investments FLMRE 420,893 34,771
Interest income L BUA 738,243 885,144
658,156 1,064,961
Discontinued operation CRIEREER
Interest income B U A - 510
658,156 1,065,471
—E-NEFR EASEEE
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/ 10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET (contd)

166

Included in interest income from continuing operations are
interests from bonds and preference shares of approximately
HK$684,432,000 (2013: interests from bonds of HK$811,936,000).
Included in interest income from discontinued operation for the
year ended 31st December, 2013 is interest from unlisted fixed rate

notes of approximately HK$510,000.

10. REW AR =)

REBFELLEEB 2N ERAZHBIEE
% MBS R F B 49 5684,432,0008 T (= F
— =& {F5F8E811,936,0008 ) - EHE—
T+ A=+—HIEFEREBELIL
KEEBZFBWAZPEIEELTEEER
&2 F B 495510,000/8 7T

11. OTHER EXPENSES 1. Hhx
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Included in other expenses are: HinfAZ BE:
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Interest on sales deposits repaid to promissory  RiE FREFIMEIEE FEL
purchasers of property project in Macau BEFHERSZMERE 61,405 -
Pre-operating expenses for hotel B I 258 A BRI 2 60,714 -
Expenses for specific transactions FERSHHAE 1 2,524

12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Disposal of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (now
known as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited) (“Chi Cheung”)
on 6th February, 2013 (“Chi Cheung Disposal”)

On 5th December, 2012, (i) Billion Up Limited (“Billion Up"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (i) the Company,
being the guarantor of Billion Up; and (i) an independent third
party of and not connected with the Company and its connected
persons (“Purchaser of Chi Cheung”) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which Billion Up agreed to sell
and the Purchaser of Chi Cheung agreed to purchase the shares
of Chi Cheung held by the Group, representing approximately
61.96% of the entire issued share capital of Chi Cheung, a listed
subsidiary of the Company, at a total consideration of approximately
HK$559,199,000 (after adjustment). The Chi Cheung Disposal was
completed on 6th February, 2013. Upon completion, Chi Cheung
and its subsidiaries (“Chi Cheung Group”) ceased to be subsidiaries

of the Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (contd)

Disposal of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (now
known as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited) (“Chi Cheung”)
on 6th February, 2013 (“Chi Cheung Disposal”) (Cont'd)

On 5th December, 2012, the Group and Chi Cheung also entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital, the shareholder's loan and
certain debt of View Success Investments Limited (“View Success”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chi Cheung, from Chi
Cheung ("View Success Acquisition”) at a total consideration of
approximately HK$41,500,000. The View Success Acquisition was
completed on 23rd January, 2013. As such, the assets and liabilities
of View Success did not form part of net assets disposed of on the

completion of the Chi Cheung Disposal.

Details of the Chi Cheung Disposal and the View Success
Acquisition were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 5th December, 2012.

As a result of the Chi Cheung Disposal and the disposal of the
Group's entire 41.93% interest in G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (now
known as Common Splendor International Health Industry Group
Limited), another listed subsidiary of the Company, on 6th August,
2012 ("G-Prop Disposal”), the reportable segment of “floating rate
and fixed rate notes” has been discontinued since the year ended
31st December, 2012 and, in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” issued
by the HKICPA, their consolidated results were therefore classified

as discontinued operation since then.

Details of the G-Prop Disposal were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 17th June, 2012.

12.
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FA(EBASEFEMERRAR) ([E#])
(Mr2HEl) (&)
R-E——F+_ARA AEEEETESR
AEEm#E FENEFUARBAEEOAR
41,500,000 THESTREFER AR ([&
F) (EFz—HEAZE2ERBMB AR
ZEHDEITRA BREEFURE TEER
(I2FHE]) R REER _T—=F—
AZ+=B%l Bt REFLETHR
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E'TE*E‘ED

EFEHE TWEFBIEHNR AR RIBH
B-E-——F+-_ARBZA MR-

HREHPERR T —F N/ NAHER
£ BN G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (& EM%4A
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41930 Em ([EELE])  IFEKE
BER|ZERHPPBEBEHE_T——F1+=
A=Z+—BIEFERIE: RBEESSFEA

CRM 2 ERMBWMELRNESH [FHELE
ZHRPEERDRIMREER]  Higa %
BALBOBEREKRILEEEER-

SELEFBIENARRAR/ T~
FRATEBRZAMA-

s
I+

—E-NFEFR EA

[of
i
]

"

167



168

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —NF+-A=+—HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (contd) 12. BEARIEREER @
The consolidated results of the discontinued operation for the year HE-_Z—=F1+-_A=T—HLFE B&
ended 31st December, 2013 are set out as below: IHEEEB 2 RaEERANT
2013
HK$'000
FAET
Other income HaUgA 37
Investment income, net KEWNFEE 510
Administrative expenses THRAX )
Profit before tax B 352 Bl A 539
Income tax expense FTS BRI X (38)
Profit for the year from RERKBDRIEKE
discontinued operation R 2w F 501
Other comprehensive expense REFEMPEX
for the year:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ FBE1& AIREE T D MH =
profit or loss R ZHH
Fair value changes on available-for-sale FEREZATEEZS
investments (136)
Total comprehensive income for the year from ~ AFERB DR EREEK 2
discontinued operation (net of tax) EEM AR (RBR®) 365
Profit for the year from discontinued EBEAFERBERLEE
operation attributable to: R zmA:
Owners of the Company RAREARA 310
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS 191
501
Total comprehensive income BiEAFERBERLLEE
for the year from discontinued EBzzERSRE:
operation attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NIEZ 2SN 226
Non-controlling interests FEFE RS 139

365
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (contd)

The consolidated cash flows from
discontinued operation are set out as below:

12. ERIEBEER =

KECDRIEREEBTZ
HeBRREMAWT

Net cash used in operating activities ARG E(B 2R TR
Net cash generated from investing activities KEREEG 2R FHE

Net cash inflows

RBeRAFE

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(a)

Disposals of Brass Ring Limited (“Brass Ring”), Union
Leader Limited (“Union Leader”) and Chinese Estates
and Finance, Limited (now known as Silvercord
Finance Limited) (“CE Finance”) and their respective
subsidiaries (collectively “Silvercord Group”) on 13th
January, 2015 (“Silvercord Disposal”)

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, (i) Super
Series Limited (“Super Series”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company, being the
guarantor of Super Series; (i) Fly High Target Limited (“Fly
High Target”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau,
Luen-hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau"), a substantial shareholder
and a controlling shareholder of the Company; and
(iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Fly High Target,
entered into sale and purchase agreements, namely
"Silvercord First SP Agreement” and “Silvercord Second SP
Agreement”, pursuant to which Super Series agreed to sell
and Fly High Target agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of Brass Ring and Union Leader respectively,

both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

2013
HK$'000
TAT

(581)
1,051

470

13. BRI EHECEE "HII A
HEHEZEEEEMEBEZER

&

(a)

R-—Z—HF— A+ =HH EBrass
Ring Limited ([Brass Ring|) * Union
Leader Limited ([Union Leader]) %
PEDKERAT (RBARSHKESR
RAR) (HEFHRKEREZ
MEAR (GBIESEE]) (TRSH
g

BE_Z-HOF+-_A=+—HILF
JEA - (i) Super Series Limited ([Super
Series |) » ARAZ —HME2EEGH
JERF]: (AR A - {ERASuper SeriestE
& A i (iii) Fly High Target Limited ( [Fly
High Target]) » —fEI #1215 4 ([ 2
BIEE]) (REARA—NUEERRR
ERIRE)Z2EHEE 2R R(v)8 &
S & YEBFly High TargetlE (R A @ 57
VEEWRRE (BRIBREE—EEHH]
LIREE_8EEWE]) - & IL  Super
Series & Fly High Target? B[R & H & &
8% B Brass Ring&Union Leader (18515
RARAHELZERENBRA) 22
R EITRA-

“T-MEEH EAEEEE
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REMBRRME

/ 13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 13. Sl AFEHEZEE "8l A
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

170

C)

Disposals of Brass Ring Limited (“Brass Ring”), Union
Leader Limited (“Union Leader”) and Chinese Estates
and Finance, Limited (now known as Silvercord
Finance Limited) (“CE Finance”) and their respective
subsidiaries (collectively “Silvercord Group”) on 13th

January, 2015 (“Silvercord Disposal”) (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, (i) Chinese
Estates, Limited (“CEL"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor of
CEL; (iii) Coast Field Ltd. (“Coast Field"), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the
guarantor of Coast Field, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, namely “Silvercord Third SP Agreement”, pursuant
to which CEL agreed to sell and Coast Field agreed to
purchase the entire issued share capital of CE Finance, an

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Silvercord Disposal was completed on 13th
January, 2015 at a total consideration of approximately
HK$7,656,149,000. As a result, the assets and liabilities of
the Silvercord Group have been presented as assets classified
as held for sale and liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale respectively as at 31st December,
2014 in accordance with HKFRS 5. Investment properties
included in assets classified as held for sale were remeasured
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2014 and an unrealised fair value
gain of HK$93,200,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st
December, 2014.
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REGE(AQR—BHEE2EHREGN
BAA) 2B BEITRA.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

C)

Disposals of Brass Ring Limited (“Brass Ring”), Union
Leader Limited (“Union Leader”) and Chinese Estates
and Finance, Limited (now known as Silvercord
Finance Limited) (“CE Finance”) and their respective
subsidiaries (collectively “Silvercord Group”) on 13th

January, 2015 (“Silvercord Disposal”) (Cont'd)

Upon completion of the Silvercord Disposal, the Group
recorded a loss on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$97,235,000. The loss was mainly derived from the
increase in fair value of the investment properties of
HK$93,200,000 due to revaluation of the investment
properties as at 31st December, 2014 (which is carried
out in accordance with the Group's accounting policies
on revaluation of the Group's investment properties as at
reporting date) as compared with the property valuation
under the sale and purchase agreements of the Silvercord
Disposal dated 1st September, 2014.

Details of the Silvercord Disposal were set out in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 2nd

September, 2014 and 23rd September, 2014 respectively.

13. I RREHEZEE B A
ﬁ#&%ZﬁEEEE@ZE
B ()

(@)

R-ZZ—HF— H+=HWEEBrass
Ring Limited ([Brass Ring]) ‘- Union
Leader Limited ([Union Leader]) &
RENKERAR (RBABSHEER
AR ([PERE])REEEAZHWE
AR (GBIESEE]) ([BSHED
(&)

RIREEETKE  REEGZSHEM
J&B A R] 2 [ 18 4997,235,0007 JT ° 7% &
BEFERBER_T—HE+_A=+—
HRIEEWMELETEMN (KBRAEEHN
R BEHAREEZREMERNRER
HEMR) RRSHEEERHEBRH (=
T-—MERA—R)ZYWEMLKE 2 TFE
#8411 493,200,000/%8 7T °

et EHFBRIER ARG AHY
AAE—_ZE—NFNA-—ABR_ZT—NF
NAZ+ZB2Z2R AW RBERA-

“T-MEEH EAEEEE
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/ 13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 13. Sl AFEHEZEE "8l A
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

172

(b)

Disposals of certain shops or units of an investment

property in Hong Kong (“Properties”)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) has
entered into a series of preliminary sale and purchase
agreements (“Preliminary Agreements”) with independent
third parties and three companies wholly-owned by a close
family member of the then Director (who resigned from his
office of Director on 14th March, 2014) and a controlling
shareholder of the Company (collectively "Properties
Purchasers”). Pursuant to the Preliminary Agreements, the
Vendor would sell the Properties to the Properties Purchasers
upon the terms and conditions contained therein. Sales of the
remaining Properties (“Sale Units”) were completed during
the year ended 31st December, 2014.

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the Sale Units have been
presented as assets classified as held for sale and were
remeasured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December, 2013 and a net fair
value loss of HK$286,000 (2013: gain of approximately
HK$140,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st
December, 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 13. 5B EHEZEE HIA

LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

The fair value of investment properties was based on the valuation
performed by an independent valuer. Details of the valuer, valuation

techniques and key inputs were set out in Note 22.

At the end of the reporting period, the major classes of assets and
liabilities classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly

associated with assets classified as held for sale correspondingly are

as follows:

Assets classified as held for sale IABEHEZEE
Investment properties KEMHE

Other fixed assets HETEEE

Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWARIE 1R & RIERT K
Tax recoverable BEEEEN

Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS

Liabilities directly associated with assets E25BGEHEZEE

classified as held for sale HEHBZEE
Creditors and accruals P AR TE 2 FEET FRIE
Deposits and receipts in advance e R IaWERIA
Tax liabilities MIEAE
Borrowing — due within one year BE-——FAEH
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEE &

BFEHECEEEEZEEREZE
&

WEWE 7 N AT RIE LG EM 2 HE
{HEAN - (HERM R EZE8E 2 B SR H
FF22/ o

RIBEMR HEBOBEIRFELEZE
ENEFABIEFHEZEEARBBZEE
ZEBEERAGBERNNT

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET

9,388,280 64,733
2 —

Pz} 30,098 -

2 —
23,680 -

9,442,062 64,733

4,661 -
187,950 -
28,000 -
1,500,000 -
39,326 -

1,759,937 -
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i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —NF+-A=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. NEE @R
2014 2013
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived REEHME (FBR)FEA:
at after (charging) crediting:
Continuing operations BEREXK
Total staff costs: B B AN 4B -
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments EERK(BEEEHS) (271,205) (223,400)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIKER T EIER
net of forfeited contributions of approximately — ¥1BR 22 IRt 5K471,173,000% 7T
HK$1,173,000 (2013: HK$674,000) —ZT— =% :674,000% L) (8.892) (9,195)
(280,097) (232,595)
Auditors' remuneration ZERD B &
— Current year —AFE (3,005) (3,196)
— Underprovision in prior years —REFEREHETR (16) -
Depreciation e (23,381) (18,525)
Exchange loss, net [ X 518 558 (4,151) -
Cost of trading properties recognised BEEMENEER (225,674) (3,310,619)
Cost of cosmetic products recognised {b A o B AN T 3R (3.669) (3,988)
Cost of inventories for hotel recognised B JE 17 8 AN TR (3.499) -
Share of tax of associates B(hmE AmpiE
(included in share of results of associates) (BEFABREEAREE) (23,989) (34,138)
Gross proceeds on sale of investments HEREEECREZ
held-for-trading FiSRIE % 466,881 2,457,115
Carrying amount on investments HEREEEZREZ
held-for-trading disposed BREE (436,882) (2,498,519)
Transaction costs on investments HERIFEEZREY
held-for-trading disposed R 5 KR (925) (2,995)
Net gain (loss) on sale of investments FAARARZHIEEE 2 REZ
held-for-trading included in revenue e (F18) 8 29,074 (44,399)
Gross rental income from investment properties & ¥ %M & Uk A 258 1,939,378 1,791,257
Less: Direct operating expenses from BAFEELERSKAZ
investment properties that generated REMEERLERX
rental income during the year (89,972) (62,576)
Direct operating expenses from investment REEWREFHSBAZ
properties that did not generate rental BRAEMEEREERE
income during the year (2,041) (6,312)
1,847,365 1,722,369
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Auditors' remuneration ZERE < - @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

15. FINANCE COSTS

16.

15. B & A

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Interest on: A
Bank loans wholly repayable within five years ARAFRNEHEREZRITER 483,606 460,734
Other loans wholly repayable within five years ~ BRAFRNE2HREERE 2 EHER 22,130 42,085
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder KB — (IR IR R R 16,880 8,600
Loan from a former subsidiary wholly BARIFATHERZ
repayable within five years —FHRIM B A REF - 4,842
Total interest A B 4BEE 522,616 516,261
Exchange (gain) loss on translation of SNEE IR N (s ) B8 % AR
foreign currency loans, net (32,803) 14,522
Other finance costs Hin %8 47,492 57,035
537,305 587,818
Less: Interest capitalised to stock of properties  J§: B ERPMEFTE
under development B2 FE (1,251) (1,282)
Interest capitalised to investment BRERTREME
properties under development B2 T B (141,036) (132,947)
395,018 453,589

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Includ

Conti

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note (i))
Underprovision for rental guarantee (note (ii))

ed in other gains and losses, net are: Hith e RSB FHEELE
nuing operations BRREXEE

Gain on deregistration of an associate FE-REBEA

Notes:

0)

(i)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire interest in Value Eight Limited (“Value Eight”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (“Moon Ocean Group”) on 31st October, 2014
("Moon Ocean Disposal”) (Note 44(a)) (2013: disposal of the
Group's entire 61.96% interest in Chi Cheung on 6th February,
2013 (Note 44(b))).

The amount represented underprovision in rental guarantee
provided to purchasers of certain shops or units of an investment
property disposed of in current and prior years.

HE M B ARz Y (FREQ))
HEERBETR (M)

Wi :
0

(i)

16. HWBE R EEFEHE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2,917,579 198,536
(5,146) -

- 4,275

LEMBARZKEIRER =T —N
FHA=+—HEEAREERValue Eight
Limited ([Value Eightl]) (AR @z —
MHEE2EHREMBAR) RENBERQ
Al ([Moon Oceanfk @)z 2 =
([Moon Oceanti &) (Mf3t44(a)) (=
= R-E-—=F_-ANEHER
EERERF 22 E61.96% s (K&
44(b)) ) °
REDERAFERBEFEALE &
BYEsETESRENZ ERAIRER
SRERZBETE-

4t
I+

—E-NFEFR EA

[
i
|
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/ 17. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

17. EEM £
Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine BENSENTINEES (Z2—=F: 8)%
(2013: nine) Directors were as follows: BzaekEMMemT:
2014 2013
Salaries Salaries
and other and other
Fee emoluments Total Fee  emoluments Total
FER Hek
e Hit# & BE ik Hio e Feke
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FHT FET TET
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung Bl
(note (7)) (BEEE()) - 3,681 3,681 - 18,019 18,019
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai ElLoeb ik
(note (ii)) (BsE(iy) 75 12,364 12,439 240 - 240
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan RaEnt - 751 751 - 742 742
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai WHEFEAE - 2,267 2,267 - 2,170 2,170
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan AEEUTL - 617 617 - 615 615
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AxERT 240 - 240 240 - 240
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai IR £ 300 - 300 240 - 240
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BEELT 300 - 300 240 - 240
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SRELE 300 - 300 240 - 240
1,215 19,680 20,895 1,200 21,546 22,746
Notes: B 5

()  Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung resigned as executive Director on
14th March, 2014.

(i) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai was re-designated from non-executive Director
to executive Director on 14th March, 2014.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31st
December, 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —WMFE+ A=+ —HILFE

18. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2013: two) were Directors, details of their
emoluments were included in Note 17. The emoluments of

the remaining three (2013: three) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e M EMmEF
iR

Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR R 1@ F| 51 2 it 7%

The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals were

within the following bands:

Nil — HK$2,000,000 £ —2,000,0007 7T

18. EEM &
(@) EZEERESHFMAL

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000

2,000,001 7t —2,500,0007% 7T
2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000 7T
4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T
4,500,001 7T —5,000,0007% 7T

During the years ended 31st December, 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid

individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AEBRERESMEA LT WE (ZF
—ZHE MB)REF RZMEHEBD
M 738 - Hap =% (2T — =4
=R)ERMALTZHEMT

2014 2013
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FETT
11,318 6,899

421 341
11,739 7,240

Z=R(ZEB—=F =ZF)EANALZ
MeEEnT

Number of employees

BEAR

2014 2013
- 2
1 1
1 —
1 —

REZE-E—NEFER=-ZT—=F+=A
=T —HLEFEAR REBEERERS
INARE B RN INARE B Ak
BHEMAZAGERTMALXES
SR B

s
I+

—E-NFEFR EA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf % 3R & Mt &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

18. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (contd) 18. EEM £ )
(b) Emoluments of senior management (b) EREEEZMS

Other than the two (2013: two) senior management whose
emoluments have been disclosed in the five highest paid
individuals (Note 18(a)), the emoluments of the remaining
senior management whose profiles are included in the
“Profiles of Senior Executives” section of this annual report,

were within the following bands:

Nil — HK$1,500,000 % —1,500,000/% 7T
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7t — 2,000,000/ 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis

19. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises: X aE:

Current tax: R
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH
Other than Hong Kong BELAMO R

Underprovision (overprovision) B FERETE
in prior years: (R
Hong Kong Profits Tax EENEH
Other than Hong Kong ERENIMR

Deferred tax: (Note 43) BIERIE : (PiEE43)

Current year charge AEEXH
(Overprovision) underprovision ~ BEFE (1%
in prior years BE)BETR

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

19. FREHMAX

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
REREXER BRIEREER &
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR FHT TERT FTET
152,687 310,874 - 38 152,687 310,912
65,490 48,129 - - 65,490 48,129
218,177 359,003 - 38 218,177 359,041
270 3,247 - - 270 3,247
14,293 (9,454) - - 14,293 (9,454)
14,563 (6,207) - - 14,563 (6,207)
23,126 91,061 - - 23,126 91,061
7 62 - - ) 62
23,119 91,123 - - 23,119 91,123
255,859 443919 - 38 255,859 443,957

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the

estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 25% (2013: 25%) is used for estimation of PRC Enterprise

Income Tax. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

EEFEBR BB AT E 2 A5 EREEF
BB E1650 (ZF— =4 :16.5%) & H
EmFT PR CEMEH D RPECEMEH
K500 (T —=4F : 250 ) 5t HE o Hih AlSAME
EELAZBEDRBBAIEER ZBITHE
irE-

s
I+

“ET-mEEH A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf % 3R & Mt &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

19. FREHBAX @

AEEZHBHELRGA 2ERERR 2
R A ST 2 BB P B AT ¢

19. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd)

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax relating to continuing operations per the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER THT
Continuing operations BELEEY
Profit before tax from REBELEER L
continuing operations BR A& A 9,008,758 6,945,040
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 12 & A 15 KK % 16.5%
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) (ZT—=F:165%)
AEZHEA 1,486,445 16.5 1,145,932 165
Tax effect of share of results of BEHeLRERL
associates b -%+ (30,910) (0.3) (57,891) (0.8)
Tax effect of income not taxable ST = EARBMAZ
for tax purposes BB E (1,400,091) (15.5) (952,313) (13.7)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ FEFi 1 5 T AR FE 2.2
for tax purposes Mz 2 146,469 1.6 314,696 45
Tax effect on accelerated accounting ~ BERBEZ MRS E
depreciation over tax depreciation BARBHEL BT E
previously not provided (6,810) (0.1) (8,356) 0.1)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B AARER
not recognised HBER (31,264) (0.9) (69,969) (1.0)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERZHBEB 2 BB E 64,627 0.7 33,769 0.5
Underprovision (overprovision) in BAFERETR
prior years (BERE) 14,556 0.2 (6,145) (0.1
Effect of different tax rates of HEE MR ARG
subsidiaries operating in HEARER
other jurisdictions TRABRzZE 12,837 0.1 44,196 0.6
Tax charge for the year from REHBLEEBL
continuing operations AEEHIELH 255,859 2.8 443919 6.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

20. DIVIDENDS 20. R E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(@) Final dividend for 2013 paid on @ RZE—MERANBEIRA
6th June, 2014 of HK50 cents JE—ZFRHBEREER
(2012: HK20 cents) per share S0 (ZE—=—F: 5K
205811l 953,810 381,524
(b) Interim dividend for 2014 paid on (b)) RZE—WFALAZFTIEAR
24th September, 2014 of HK30 cents Ltz ZZE—MER RS
(2013: HK20 cents) per share FRR30EI (ZE—=4F:
B RR2078 1) 572,286 381,524
(¢) Special interim dividend for 2014 paidon () RZZE—WmF+HA=+—H”H
31st October, 2014 of HK$2.55 Bk 2 ZE—MEER
(special interim dividend for 2013 of FEARR B FAR2.557 T (=
HK$1.3 and 2012 of HK$1) T-=FEHPHEREETR
per share 13k —_E——FEFRK
187T) 4,864,428 4,387,524
Total dividends paid BIRAIR 4% 6,390,524 5,150,572
On 16th December, 2014, the Board of Directors declared a special R-ZE—NF+ A+ "B EFE2ET k2
interim dividend of HK$4 per share which was paid in cash on 13th FRREHREGRIET RZE—HF— A
January, 2015. T=BUREIRM -
Final dividend of HK1 cent (2013: HK50 cents) per share has been EEEER s RAHAREERIBW(ZE
proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval by —=F:GR50B) - BEREREERSE
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. BERE FHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf % 3R & Mt &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE

21. SIRER

From continuing and discontinued operations REFELCEEBROCRIEREER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

ARBHEBEANEIEZBRERNREERNT

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BRI A T BIRETE
data:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Eamings: B
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted ~ FTESRERREERF 2 & F
earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners RATHEEABIEAFEZ
of the Company: g A
Continuing operations BB TS 8,744,927 6,317,427
Discontinued operation RE IR S - 310
Continuing and discontinued operations FELEEBR
ERIEEEER 8,744,927 6,317,737
Number of shares
RGEE
2014 2013
Number of shares: fgH 88
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AEERERNREEAET
for the purposes of basic and diluted T im AR hnRE T 19 8
earnings per share 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE (contd)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations is based on the profit for the year from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$8,744,927,000 (2013: HK$6,317,427,000)
and on the weighted average number of 1,907,619,079 (2013:
1,907,619,079) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operation
is nil (2013: HKO0.02 cents) which is calculated based on the profit
for the year from discontinued operation attributable to owners of
the Company of nil (2013: approximately HK$310,000) and on the
weighted average number of 1,907,619,079 (2013: 1,907,619,079)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December,
2014 and 2013 were the same as the basic earnings per share as

there were no diluting events during both years.

1. 8REF @

REFELEEY

REFBEREEB 2 ERERAREERT T
REBEARBHEBEARLRFEREFELE
¥ 7% 2% 7 498,744,927,0008 L (=T — =
F:6,31742700087T) R AFEEHETE B
B 2 hnE 9 201,907,619,079( —F — =4 :
1,907,619,079) f& st & -

RECKRIEREEK

REDRIREER 2 BRERREERF A
T (ZZE—=F:00280) - HIREAD A
BABEARFERBECRIELEER 2 ET
BE(ZE—=F 43100008 T) K AFE
BB 1T AR 2 hnHE T 19801,907,619,079( =
T— =4 :1,907619,079) st & -

CE--NERE-—=F+-/F=+—
AR EEERIE W ERREE
SR EER T BEREARNRF AR -
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B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

/ 22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

184

At 1st January, 2013

Additions

Construction costs incurred

Overprovision for construction costs
incurred in prior years

Transfer from properties and
other fixed assets (Note 23)

Transfer to properties and other
fixed assets (Note 23)

Transfer to stock of properties

Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale

Exchange adjustments

Increase (decrease) in fair value
recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
— realised
— unrealised

Disposals

At 31st December, 2013

Additions

Construction costs incurred

Overprovision for construction costs
incurred in prior years

Transfer from properties under
construction at cost to completed
properties at fair value

Transfer to properties and other
fixed assets (Note 23)

Transfer from stock of properties

Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale

Exchange adjustments

Increase in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
— unrealised

Disposals

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2014

R-E—=%—H—H
nE

EEZRERAK
BEFERENABELE

HmEREMETEEER
(Hf5E23)

EREEREBETEE
(FzE23)

BREIABELEZEE

EXBE
KA 2EREBRER
ATEEM ()

~B2H
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22. BREYEE

Fair value Cost
NFPE B
Properties Properties
Completed under under
properties  construction  construction Total
ERME e Lk IES E@EhE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR TET
38,044,094 668,000 3,260,724 41,972,818
15,370 - - 15,370
- 110,801 1,146,848 1,257,649
(44,465) - - (44,465)
168,200 - - 168,200
(75,100) - - (75,100)
- (235,000) - (235,000)
(64,593) - - (64,593)
90,172 - 104,377 194,549
491,433 - - 491,433
2,921,087 (9,801) - 2,911,286
(1,039,533) - - (1,039,533)
40,506,665 534,000 4,511,949 45,552,614
54,457 = = 54,457
= 33,790 934,413 968,203
(2,075) - = (2,075)
128768 = (128,768) =
= = (1,003,774)  (1,003,774)
18,926 = = 18,926
(9,295,080) - - (9,295,080)
(287,565) = (157,137) (444,702)
3,619,014 65,210 = 3,684,224
(3,870) - = (3,870)
34,739,240 633,000 4,156,683 39,528,923




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes (including those
classified as held for sale) are measured using the fair value model

and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Property valuations as at 31st December, 2014 and 2013 were
carried out by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l. Appraisals”) and
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers Appraisal”),
independent qualified professional valuers, in respect of the Group's
investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the
investment property in the United Kingdom, the valuations as at
31st December, 2014 and 2013 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at 31st
December, 2014 are signed by the respective director of B.l.
Appraisals, Vigers Appraisal and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are
members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed
in accordance with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2012 Edition”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or the “RICS
Valuation — Professional Standards January 2014" published by the

Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

22. REWE @)
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/ 22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

186

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on its
market value and by adopting investment method, and/or direct
comparison method, as appropriate. The investment method relying
on the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
term leases, term yield rate, assumptions about rental income from
future reversion leases in light of current market conditions, the
assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by
the valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors,
including term vyield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such vyield
rates were adopted after considering the investment sentiments
and market expectations of properties of similar nature. Direct
comparison method assumes each of these properties is capable of
being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available

in the relevant markets.

For the Group's investment properties under construction at fair
value, their fair values are determined by direct comparison method
by making reference to comparable transactions as available in
the relevant market. It has also taken into account the construction
costs that will be expended to complete the developments to reflect
the development potential of the properties and the quality of the
completed developments. The key assumptions include present
value of completed properties, period of development, outstanding
construction costs, finance costs, other professional costs, risk
associated with completing the projects and generating income after

completion and investors’ return as a percentage of value or cost.
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22. REWE @)
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22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

For the Group's investment properties under construction at cost,
when their fair values were not reliably measurable, they were
measured at cost, less any impairment loss, until the earlier of the
date of construction is completed and the date at which fair value
become reliably measurable.

The following tables analysed the investment properties which are
measured at fair value into the three-level hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13.

Recurring fair value REMEDFETE:
measurements:
Completed properties (note) SERCIE (FEE)
Properties under construction HEh Y%
Recurring fair value REMAFENE:
measurements:
Completed properties (note) SERE (M)
Properties under construction e Lesky/ES

Note: Included those classified as held for sale which were categorised
as Level 3 (2013: Level 2) fair value measurement.

Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong categorised
as Level 2 fair value measurement are determined using direct
comparison method with reference to the recent selling prices
of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis which
are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations of the related
properties.

22. REWE @)

RARERRAZBZPREMEMNS X
RNPEEER S EEE R - RIR AR AR R
EFEFE BETKEZZ AR FERER
ASEMETE B (AREFEA%E) BIE.

TREBUARFEFEZREVEZ=ZAOR
B (EER BBV BRELERFIZ5R) Hife

At 31st December, 2014
R=Z-HmNE+=A=+—H
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NEE EF—% -t E=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THER THERT THER THERT

44,127,520 - 2,266,656 41,860,864
633,000 = - 633,000
44,760,520 - 2,266,656 42,493,864

At 31st December, 2013
RZFE—=F+-H=+—H
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NFE E— FEMm E=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAET

40,571,398 - 2293528 38277870
534,000 - - 534,000
41,105,398 - 2293528 38,811,870

Mzt BEESIERE=R(ZZT—=F:8-/)
RHEHEZIRFEHENE-

DERE_MRAVEAEZETURETER
EMENEBRLBOEERE  2EHLEYE
ZEMEE MEE/KHABRURKRERY X
ZHRRRMEGFTREE-

—2-MEER  FADEEE
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Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on
investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement are as follows:

Properties held for investment
in Hong Kong
UREBZBIEREMS

Properties under construction
in Hong Kong
AREEZBERNE

Properties held for investment
in the United Kingdom
NREE 2 BERENF

Properties held for investment
in Mainland China
ARPERE 2 BERENE

Total
ot

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation
of rental income potential, nature of the property and prevailing
market condition. Market rent per square foot is the market rent
taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the

related properties. Estimated development costs are the costs to be

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

/ 22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Fair value
ARE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEr
35,230,700 32,450,010
633,000 534,000
4,720,079 4,043,060
1,910,085 1,784,800
42,493,864 38,811,870

expended to complete the properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
reversionary yield and the estimated development costs, and

positively correlated to the market rent per square foot.

mEMBRRME

22. REWE @)

Valuation techniques
ER

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

ERLBERREEZAG

Direct comparison method

BERILER

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

BRIRERREEZAH

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

ERLBERRAEZ GG

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Significant unobservable inputs
EAFTBREE

(1) Reversionary yield; and
BEREEHE R

(2) Market rent per square foot
[ER WL PAE 1)k

Estimated development costs

fhat 2 ERAA

(1) Reversionary yield; and
EHEHE: R

(2) Market rent per square foot
BYHRZTHEE

(1) Reversionary yield; and
EHREHE R

(2) Market rent per square foot
BYHRZTHES

DRRE=BRAVEFEZREMEZME
FEREMRFERE 2 FBOT:

Range
gE

4.00% to 6.50%
(2013: 3.750%
to 7.0000)

400EZ6.508
(ZF—=F:
375EET700E)

4.500% 0 5.00%
(2013: 5.25% to
5.75%)

450 %5.00/2
(Z2—=%&:
525B %5758 )

55006 to 9.00%
(2013: 5.50% to
9.00%)

550 £9.008
(Z2—=%&:
550E £9.00E)

EREHmETIF LR EESRAERL Y
EUERERTRAGHZEER -FFHTRZH
SHE A RERME ZEET S AHLER
RoHFHZMGHEE B ZBERKATIRT
P55 8 ST 2 PR ©

AFEBRERORE R 2 BRRA
MR REFHR2ZTHMSREL -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Movements of investment properties which are categorised as

Level 3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows:

At 1st January ®—HA—H
Additions nE
Construction costs incurred B2 B

Overprovision of construction costs incurred

in prior years
Transfer from properties under construction

at cost to completed properties at fair value
Transfer from properties and other fixed assets
Transfer to properties and other fixed assets

Transfer from stock of properties NmEFEER
Exchange adjustments M 5 3R

Increase in fair value recognised

in the consolidated statement of N FEE N
comprehensive income
Transfer to Level 2 BREE_H
Disposals &
Carrying amounts AR TE B
At 31st December Rt=-—A=+—~H

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, certain investment
properties which were categorised as Level 3 fair value
measurement have been transferred to Level 2 when part of the
properties were sold and the remaining were classified as held
for sale. As a result, the valuation technique has been changed
from investment method used in prior years to direct comparison
method in the year ended 31st December, 2013, when the key
inputs used in assessing their fair values become observable. Other
than that, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
years ended 31st December, 2014 and 2013 and no change in
valuation techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, their current use equates to the highest and best

use of the properties.

22. REWE @)

PERE=MATVEFBZEENERNEFR
BHmT

BEFEREERNBERB

el A BER Y XEEE
BRFEZEZRYE

e N KA B E & A 8 -

BREMELEBETEE -

REEE2HKAERRER L

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
38,811,870 38,481,924
12,679 14,702
33,790 101,782
(2,075) (44,465)
128,768 -
168,200
(75,100)
18,926 -
(287,778) 90,172
3,781,554 2,037,615
- (1,959,000)
(3.870) (3,960)
42,493,864 38,811,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The carrying amounts of investment properties comprise:

Properties in Hong Kong held under:
Long-term lease

Medium-term lease

Properties outside Hong Kong held under:

Freehold
Long-term lease

Medium-term lease

22. REWE

REMEZEREAAERRE:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
REBZRUATHOBE ZME:
REIEY 20,765,183 28,042,985
FRHEATE A 7,948,050 7,169,820
28,713,233 35,212,805
REBAIMELL T
A ZWE:
KAERE 4,720,079 4,043,060
REAAEY 28,843 -
FR AR %Y 6,066,768 6,296,749
10,815,690 10,339,809
39,528,923 45,552,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

23. PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS 3. MWEREMBEEEE

Hotel Furniture Yachts and
Leasehold landand  fixtures and motor
land Buildings buildings equipment vehicles Total
BE B
HELH BF TiREF RERRHE ERRAE oL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Cost A
At Tst January, 2013 e e = 424960 88,340 - 54,974 109,426 677700
Additions NE - - - 10,372 1,661 12,033
Surplus on revaluation recognised in REMZERESER

other comprehensive income RSB 100,025 27029 - - - 127054
Transfer from investment properties REDEEE (F2)

(Note 22) 58,300 16,800 - - - 75,100
Transfer to investment properties (Note 22) B EZEREME (Mi2) (137855) (33,199) - - - (171,054)
Disposals/written off HE /s - - - (123) (790) (913)
Bxchange adjustments 5 HE - - - 285 179 464
At 315t December, 2013 RZF-=%+-H=+-H 445,430 98,970 - 65,508 110476 720384
Additions WE 28,899 5,036 = 192,348 14,577 240,860
Transfer from investment properties ek EmEEE (Wik22)

(Note 22) 12,671 40,179 950,924 — — 1,003,774
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale  BEEFI AR ERE 2 BE

(Note 13) (Ht13) - - = (37 = @37

Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 44(a)) HEMBAR (FiE44()) - - - (381) (580) (961)
Disposals/written off HE /s - = = (2.214) (8,044) (10,258)
Exchange adjustments R AR 158 28 - (503) (195) (512)
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-WE+=A=1+—H 487,158 144213 950,924 254,721 116,234 1,953,250
Depreciation &
At Tst January, 2013 e e = 9370 22,023 - 38,545 85,876 155,814
Charge for the year TEEHE 1,148 2576 - 7221 7,580 18,525
Capitalised to stock of properties held for sale B FE AR {ELE 2 NEFEER - - - 189 - 189
Elimination upon transfer to BRERENERYH

investment properties (Note 22) (MzE22) (1,055) (1,799) - - - (2,854)
Elimination upon disposals/written off HERHE/WE - - - (110) (769) (879)
Exchange adjustments ERAR - - - 158 % 254
At 31st December, 2013 RZE-=%+=-A=1-H 9,463 22,800 = 46,003 92,783 171,049
Charge for the year KEERE 1636 3,122 2273 7169 9,181 23,381
Capitalised to stock of properties held for sale &R ARELE 2 MEFEER - - - 149 - 149
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale  BEEJI A ERE 2 BE

(Note 13) (Ht13) - - = (35) = (35)
Elimination upon disposals of subsidiaries & it B2 Al 1 8

(Note 44(a)) (Miz*a4()) - - - (225) (C)) (696)
Elimination upon disposals/written off HERHE/ M - - - (752) (7817) (8,569)
Exchange adjustments R A% (4) ©) (22) (221) (104) (356)
At 315t December, 2014 RZE-ME+=A=1+—H 11,095 25917 2251 52,088 93,572 184,923
Carrying amounts EEE
At 31st December, 2014 R=B-mE+=-A=+-AH 476,063 118,296 948,673 202,633 22,662 1,768,327
At 315t December, 2013 R-B-=%+-A=+-H 435967 76,170 - 19,505 17693 549,335

—s-mEsg  zAsxsE 191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 23. PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS 23. ¥R HMETEEE @)

(Cont'd)

The carrying amounts of leasehold land, buildings and hotel land

and buildings comprise:

Held in Hong Kong under:
Long-term lease

Held outside Hong Kong under:

Long-term lease

Medium-term lease

24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT

Cost
At 1st January

Transfer to other receivables

At 31st December

Impairment loss
At 1st January

Transfer to other receivables
At 31st December
Carrying amounts

At Tst January and 31st December

192  CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

HELH BFBELHMREFZREER

&
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
REBZUTHEYEFSE
REIEY 508,575 512,137
REBLIMEA L
A :
EHELY 33,689 -
FR AR %Y 1,000,768 -
1,034,457 -
1,543,032 512,137
24 HEHERBEZYHE RS
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
A
n—H—H 71,118 71,118
B S H M RN GRIE (71,118) -
W+-_A=+—8H - 71,118
WEEE
Hn—A—H 71,118 71,118
B H A EUGRIR (71,118) -
W+-A=+—8H - 71,118
REE

R—A—BEt+-A=1+—H -
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P ISR R MG

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

DEVELOPMENT (contd)

The property interests held for a development project are located
in Chenghai Royal Garden, Shantou, PRC. Under a Contract for Pre-
registration of Grant of State-owned Land Use Right (“Contract”)
with the district bureau of Chenghai dated 5th August, 1992, the
Group had made certain down payment. However, the Group
subsequently determined not to proceed with the land requisition

and requested for refund.

In April 2005, the Group commenced legal proceedings at the
Shantou City Intermediate People’s Court (“Intermediate Court”) to
terminate the Contract with the Shantou City Planning and State-
owned Land Resources Bureau (“Chenghai Bureau”). In view of
the uncertainty in the recoverability of the amount claimed and any
other entitlements under the Contract, the Group had made a full

provision for an impairment loss of HK$71,118,000 during 2004.

On 28th December, 2006, the Intermediate Court made a
judgment in favour of the Group. However, Chenghai Bureau
submitted an application of appeal to the High People's Court of
Guangdong Province (“High Court”) on 23rd January, 2007 and the
Group also sent out a reply to the High Court on 13th February,
2007.

On 27th June, 2007, the High Court accepted the application
of appeal by the Chenghai Bureau and made the judgment as
follows: (1) the judgment made by the Intermediate Court on 28th
December, 2006 was revoked; and (2) the case was remitted
to the Intermediate Court for rehearing. On 22nd August, 2007,
the Intermediate Court accepted for rehearing the case within six

months.

On 18th February, 2008, the Intermediate Court notified the Group
that the trial period had been extended for six months to August
2008.

On 12th August, 2008, the Intermediate Court issued the civil
ruling of dismissing the Group's civil claim. The Group initiated an
application for appeal to the High Court after receiving the ruling
and submitted all legal documents required in the application
on 2nd September, 2008 that the appeal was rejected on 17th
December, 2008. On 1st June, 2009, the Group has submitted
all legal documents and application for appeal to the Supreme
People's Court (“Supreme Court”). On 27th July, 2009, the
Supreme Court notified the Group that the application of appeal

was processing.

24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE 24. ZEHARBE Y XEREZE o)
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/ 24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE 24. #¥ER#RE2WEESR »

194

DEVELOPMENT (contd)

On 23rd November, 2009, the Supreme Court made the judgment
as follows: (1) order the High Court to rehear the case; and

(2) suspend the execution of the original judgment during the

rehearing.

On 7th September, 2010, the High Court made the judgment
as follows: (1) the judgment made by the High Court on 17th
December, 2008 and the judgment made by the Intermediate
Court on 12th August, 2008 were revoked; and (2) the case was

remitted to the Intermediate Court for rehearing.

On 21st April, 2011, the Intermediate Court notified the Group
that the case was accepted. On 8th August, 2011, the Intermediate

Court held the case rehearing.

On 17th January, 2012, the Intermediate Court extended the
settlement period to 31st March, 2012. As no settlement was

reached when the settlement period expired, the case rehearing

restored.

On 5th December, 2012, the Intermediate Court delivered a
judgment in favour of the Group and upheld the majority claims of
the Group. Chenghai Bureau submitted an application for appeal to
the High Court on 26th December, 2012 against the said judgment.
On 4th January, 2013, the Group also submitted an application for
appeal to the High Court in respect of those remaining minority

claims of the Group that were not upheld by the Intermediate

Court.

On 8th May, 2013, the High Court held a case hearing. On 3rd
December, 2013, the High Court delivered a judgment which

upheld the ruling of the Intermediate Court and dismissed the

appeals of both parties.

On 26th February, 2014, the High Court declared that its judgment
on 3rd December, 2013 became effective on 23rd February, 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
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24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE 24. ZEHARBE Y XEREZE o)

25.

DEVELOPMENT (contd)

On 31st March, 2014, the Group submitted an application for

the enforcement of the judgment to the Intermediate Court

and the application was accepted by the Intermediate Court
on T1st April, 2014. On 21st April, 2014, the Intermediate Court
issued a court order to freeze Chenghai Bureau's bank deposit
of RMB4,000,000. On 9th February, 2015, the Group received
RMB3,000,000 as partial satisfaction of the enforcement. Up to the

date of the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the

enforcement of the judgment is still in progress.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1st January, 2013,
31st December, 2013 and
31st December, 2014

Amortisation and impairment
At 1st January, 2013,
31st December, 2013 and
31st December, 2014

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2014

At 31st December, 2013

B

WZE-—=%—-A—H"
—E-Zf+-A=t-8k
“F-MEF-A=+-8

B RAE

RZE—=%—A—8"
ZE-=ZF+ZA=+—-HR
—E-mF+=-A=+—8H

REE
R-2-mE+=A=1-8

RZE—=F+-A=+—H

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such

intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five

years.

R-Z—NMFEZA=Z+—R AEBHFHE
BELERRBEIT IR P AUABR N —F — U F 0 A
—ASEZHEF - R_E—NENA -+ —
A A ARESREESERRITERAR
#4,000,0007t - R=—ZE—HF - ANBE A&

B W E) #R D AT

e
REE

AR #3,000,0007C #E

WERGAMBRERE R BITHRIDELETT

geho

25. BILEE

Trading and
exchange
rights
HEENESE
HK$'000

TET

2,705

2,705

Trademark

[k
HK$'000
FAT

14,300

14,300

Total
ok
HK$'000
FHT

17,005

17,005

BT EERRREEMFEH  LABRX

REFHE -

—B-mEEH
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26. GOODWILL 26. B&
HK$'000
FAT
Cost SRS
At st January, 2013, R-_E—=F—H—H"
31st December, 2013 and —E-=F+-A=+—HEK
31st December, 2014 ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 370,686
Impairment WA
At st January, 2013, RZZE—=F—H—H8"
31st December, 2013 and —E-=F+ZA=+—HEK
31st December, 2014 —E-MFE+ZA=+—H 47748
Carrying amounts REE
At 31st December, 2014 R-ZE—HNME+=-A=+-—H 322,938
At 31st December, 2013 RZZE—=F+=-RA=+—H 322,938
Impairment testing of goodwill BmERENR

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's
CGUs, which in all cases were determined to be investment
properties owned by subsidiaries. The carrying amount of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) was allocated to CGUs with

the following places of operation:

United Kingdom 4
Hong Kong 6
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RETRENR REBEHELEZBHECD
REAEEZReELEN REZEERE
EMBARMBEEZRENE -BEREE
(M REREBR) P EETRLEHME 2
BEEEBA:

2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FTEx FTAT
322,938 322,938
322,938 322,938
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26. GOODWILL (contd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom has been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projections approved by the Directors. The
pre-tax discount rate of approximately 7.85% (2013: 9.27%) per
annum for the United Kingdom property business was applied to
the cash flow projection when assessing the recoverability of the
CGU containing goodwill. Full impairment for goodwill of the other

businesses in Hong Kong was recognised in prior years.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions
included gross margin and discount rates which are determined by
the Directors based on past performance and its expectation for
market development. The values assigned to key assumptions are
based on historical experience, current market condition, approved
forecasts and consistent with external information sources. Gross
margin is budgeted gross margin. The discount rates used were
determined with reference to weighted average cost of capital of
similar companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating
to the industry. The Directors believe that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their respective aggregate
recoverable amount. During the years ended 31st December, 2014
and 2013, the Directors determined that there was no impairment

of the goodwill.

26. & (@)
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RENERARSELBEU BN REEHE
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investment in associates: BEBE N
— Unlisted —JEET™

Share of post-acquisition profits and

other comprehensive income, Hith 2 mE Uk e
net of dividends received k2 WA B

The Company provided corporate guarantee to secure bank loans
granted to its associates. The fair value of the financial guarantee
contract was determined by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified professional valuer, and it was recognised as interests

in associates and financial guarantee liabilities in the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31st December,

2014 are set out in Note 53.

The investment properties held by the Group's principal associates
were revalued as at 31st December, 2014 by B.l. Appraisals. B.l.
Appraisals continues to adopt investment method and/or direct
comparison method as the valuation methodologies. The valuation

methods and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair

values of investment properties are detailed in Note 22.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.
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BEWBERENR

27 BFE N TR

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR
283,696 283,696
2,201,071 2,086,835
2,484,767 2,370,531
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 27 BEE A TR @)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

AEEEEBEAN (EAELEERAA) 2

material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set out below. BMEMKERBMNT -
Finedale Industries Limited EHEEERAR
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FABT
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,998,000 2,763,000
Current assets mENEE 173,168 103,590
Current liabilities e B & (45,772) (42,280)
Net assets BEFE 3,125,396 2,824,310
Interest held by the Group REBBBEZER 33.33% 33.33%
Group's interest in the associate AEBREENF) 2D 1,041,799 941,437
Revenue A 83,992 67,522
Profit for the year REE 301,086 459,450
Total comprehensive income RNEE2EK R LR
for the year 301,086 459,450
Group's share of result for the year REBBERFEERE 100,362 153,150
Group's share of total comprehensive RNEBBEARFE
income for the year EREEaE e 100,362 153,150

A EERRBREEZ QR 2 REBRZ Y5 W
RINB 2z o/ ZEVBHRRRBBUBRE
R eI R kN A RN TR T2
REMBFLAREHBERNRE -

The information above reflects the amount presented in the
unaudited financial statements of the associate which were
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the differences
arising from accounting policies and different financial year end

dates between the Group and the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd) 27.
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

Group's share of results for the year NEBBERFEERE

Group's share of other comprehensive REEBERER
(expenses) income for the year Etan () ks

Group's share of total comprehensive REEEEREER
income for the year 2HEW BT

Group's aggregate interests in these associates ~ ANEERZ LWL N F] 2

AR
28. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES 28.
Interest-bearing advances to associates BATEE R R 2 EFRIE
Interest-free advances to associates BN E R F 2 R RBRIA

The advances to associates are unsecured. An amount of
approximately HK$997,681,000 (2013: HK$987,345,000) was
expected to be repayable in or after 2016 (2013: in 2016)
and the amount is therefore shown as non-current. For the
remaining amount of approximately HK$756,960,000 (2013:
HK$714,674,000), the Group will not demand for repayment within
one year from the end of the reporting period and the amounts are
therefore shown as non-current. The interest-bearing advances to

associates bear interest at the prevailing market rates.
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e NTIREE @)

FERER 2B ERAEAMIBEER:

2014 2013
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FETT
86,969 197,704
(16,873) 93,535
70,096 291,239
1,442,968 1,429,094

B0 D T HE
2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

67,443 67415

1,687,198 1,634,604

1,754,641 1,702,019

2B R B FIE R B A - £9997,681,000
7T (ZZF — = : 987,345,000/ 70 ) 7 K8
BHRZZE—ANFRz2B(ZE—=F: K%
ZE—RF)EE B RIEEIERE M
= o Bh 83 FE 756,960,000 7T (Z T —=4F:
714,674,000 7T ) * AEET g Bk E B
REFT—FANEE  BUZERBEIEETD
M BB E AR Z B RIENE R 2 TS
BERETE -



29. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Unlisted equity securities:
— Incorporated in Hong Kong
— Incorporated elsewhere

(notes (i), (ii) and (i)

Club debentures

Total

Analysed for reporting purpose as:

Non-current

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

2. SERE
FEREBRE:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
FEETRAES:
—RBEB T 93,805 72,003
— A E 3 = 5 E AR S
(HEEEG) ~ (D) R Giii) ) 128,847 11,014
222,652 83,017
SHEEFH 16,581 16,581
Pk 239,233 99,598
EsRERBRZ O :
EREEE 239,233 99,598

Notes:

0)

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group had invested
approximately US$917,000 in an exempted limited partnership
registered under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”).

The Cayman Islands Partnership had a term of ten years from the
date of initial closing. Purposes of the Cayman Islands Partnership
are to generate long-term capital appreciation by acquiring,
holding and disposing of equity, equity-related securities,
independently or with others, in established or less established
companies (or their parents) with substantial operations in the
PRC; or such other activities as deems necessary.

The Cayman lIslands Partnership was stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss (if any) because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
consider that its fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Directors considered that no impairment loss was required for the
investment in the Cayman Islands Partnership at 31st December,
2013.

GEE

0)

RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H £AEEE
EH917000E TN HEMEEREHIR
ARCEL (KB AMrEREERE
BrE(HEHSEBEE]) -

REREABLEMVTHIEAESHL
F-HERSABOEZENRBBEY
FEEMARBE HARBERTEE
EEEBZERBMAIAKRAZ DA (K
HERA]) 2 BRASRAEBE S ERED
BAEE HBRBBEZES -

HREETFREREARCEZABEATE
NS ERECREAZGEER EFR
AAREASEHNEHEEQNFTE QUL 580
FIREANG ZFHRERE (0EF) Afke
RZE—=F+-_A=+—H ESRAE
ZHAEHEARLEZREMETZEL
BAEEE -
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/ 29. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Cont'd)

202

Notes: (Cont'd)

0)

(i)

(iii)

(Cont'd)

A further contribution of US$1,000,000 was made by the Group
during the year ended 31st December, 2014. On 23rd July,
2014, the Group entered into a withdrawal agreement in the
Cayman Islands Partnership (“Withdrawal Agreement”) and, upon
the Withdrawal Agreement became effective, the Group ceased
to be a limited partner of the Cayman lIslands Partnership and
the Cayman Islands Partnership shall return to the Group the
contribution made (“Contribution”) in accordance with the terms
of the Withdrawal Agreement. The Contribution of US$1,917,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,886,000) was fully refunded
during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group has invested
approximately RMB48,205,000 (2013: nil) in an exempted
limited partnership registered under the Partnership Enterprise
Law of the PRC (“PRC Partnership”).

The PRC Partnership has a term of ten years from the date of
initial closing. Purposes of the PRC Partnership are to generate
long-term capital appreciation by acquiring, holding and disposing
of equity, equity-related securities, independently or with others,
in established or less established companies (or their parents)
with substantial operations in the PRC; or such other activities as
deems necessary.

The PRC Partnership is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss (if any) because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the Directors consider that
its fair value cannot be measured reliably. During the year ended
31st December, 2014, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$12,983,000 (2013: nil) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the investment in the
PRC Partnership.

As at 31st December, 2014, the Group subscribed 10,000 shares
in a private investment fund at US$1,000 each, the fund and its
management company are exempted companies with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

The investment is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
loss (if any) because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors consider that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Directors considered that
no impairment loss was required for the investment at 31st
December, 2014.
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Cont'd)

For unlisted equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong measured
at fair values, details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in
Note 5(c).

Save as disclosed in note (i), (ii) and (iii) above, certain unlisted
equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong and unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities incorporated in the United States
of America are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses
(if any) because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the Directors consider that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. During the years ended 31st December, 2014
and 2013, the Directors considered that there was no impairment

loss recognised in relation to those unlisted equity securities.

The club debentures classified as available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. During the years
ended 31st December, 2014 and 2013, the Directors considered
that there was no impairment of the club debentures since the
market prices less costs to sell are higher than their carrying

amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, available-for-sale investments
totaling approximately HK$145,718,000 (2013: HK$27,885,000)

were stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ADVANCES TO AN INVESTEE COMPANY
AND A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

(@) The advance made to an investee company is unsecured
and interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment
within one year and the advance is therefore shown as non-

current.

(b) The advance made to a non-controlling shareholder is
unsecured and interest-free. The Group will not demand
for repayment within one year and the advance is therefore

shown as non-current.

29.

30.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bf % 3R & Mt 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 31. LOANS RECEIVABLE 31. FEUR & 3k
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Long-term loans receivable, unsecured: B BKREER:
Non-current ERBIEE - 16
Current mENE 26 13
26 29
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B —F A EI BN 51 4
under current assets MBNE E 2 5B (26) (13)
Amounts due after one year —FRBNHZ A - 16
Loans receivable comprise: JEWE R BIE:
Effective
Maturity date Collateral interest rate Carrying amounts
A 3K 47 BEF= IREE
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Loans receivable 1st December, 2015 Nil 18% per annum
B —T-HAF+=ZA—-A & FRI18E 26 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

32. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a)

(b)

(9

Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and
other financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. Deposits amounting to approximately
HK$429,689,000 (2013: HK$632,780,000) have been
pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are therefore
classified as current assets. The remaining deposits
amounting to approximately HK$438,994,000 (2013:
HK$578,803,000) have been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.
The deposits carry interest rates at prevailing market rates.
The pledged deposits will be released upon the repayment of
relevant borrowings.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly

amounts due from clearing house, brokers and clients.
Time deposits, bank balances and cash
The time deposits carry interests at prevailing market deposit

rates and mature within one month. The Group does not hold

collateral over the balances.

. HMuEemEE

(a)

(b)

(9

EHREFK

b SR BRI TR 1T R S mh g
B ERGETAEEEEZHFH -
#1429,689,0008 L (ZF — = F:
632,780,000 7T) 2 FREMEREHHE
BEZER TEARE D EARBEE-
# T #1438,994,0008 L7 (ZF—=
% : 578,803,000 L) EEBREER
ZER WEREDBEAERBEE-

A EFFHE R MERBERMHIHE-
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Completed properties SRR

Properties under development held for sale

Less: Impairment loss recognised

As at 31st December, 2014, the Directors reviewed the carrying
amounts of the properties under development held for sale and the
completed properties with reference to current market situation and
the estimated selling price of the properties under development
held for sale and the completed properties provided by B.I.

Appraisals. No impairment loss was made during the years ended

31st December, 2014 and 2013.

Properties under development held for sale with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$577,163,000 (2013: HK$240,566,000) are

expected to be completed after one year.

The carrying amounts of stock of properties during the period from
Tst January, 2014 to 30th October, 2014 and year ended 31st
December, 2013 included various costs incurred in the Macau Land
(as defined hereinafter) and their reclassification. Such costs were
deconsolidated on 31st October, 2014 and did not form part of

stock of properties as at 31st December, 2014.
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FIEHEZBHRPYE
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3. MERFE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
751,718 550,171
1,851,614 2,052,542
(279,467) (279,467)
1,572,147 1,773,075
2,329,865 2,323,246

R-ZB—NE+-_A=+—H BELEHE
HEZERPWERERMEZRETISIR
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17th June, 2012,
Moon Ocean Ltd. ("Moon Ocean”), a former indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, received a notice of preliminary hearing
dated 15th June, 2012 (“First Notice”) from the Land, Public Works
and Transport Bureau (“"LPWT") of Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Macau”) regarding the transfers of the rights
deriving from the land concession for the five plots of land adjacent
to the Macau International Airport (according to the Group's record,
formerly known as Lots 1C; 2; 3; 4 and 5 (parcels 5A, 5B and
C), Avenida Wai Long, Taipa, Macau, which were registered in the
Macau Land Registry under Nos. 22993, 22991, 22995, 22990
and 22989 and later revised as Lots 1C1; 1C2; 1C3; 2a; 2b; 2d; 3;
4a; 4b; 5al; 5a2; 5a3; 5b1; 5b2; 5b3; 5b4; 5b5; 5b6; A3a; A3b;
Ada; Adb; Ela; E1b; E2 and E3 which were registered in the Macau
Land Registry under No. 22989 as per the 2011 Revision (as
defined hereinafter)) ("Macau Land") from five Macau companies
to which the land concession was originally granted (“Original
Owners") to Moon Ocean (“Land Transfers”) and the amendments

of the related land concession contracts.

It was stated in the First Notice that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
had approved the initiation of the procedures for declaring the act
of the Chief Executive of Macau in confirming the approval of the
Land Transfers and the amendments of the related land concession
contracts in March 2006 invalid and returning the Macau Land to
the Original Owners (“First Matters"); and (ii) Moon Ocean may
make written submission regarding the First Matters within 15 days

from the receipt of the First Notice.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

The Group's Macau legal advisor (“Macau Legal Advisor") made the
submission which set out the basis for opposing the First Matters on
29th June, 2012. As set out in the Company's announcement dated
14th August, 2012, Moon Ocean received a notice from the LPWT
("Second Notice") stating that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
had declared the previous act of the Chief Executive of Macau in
confirming the approval of the Land Transfers and the amendments
of the related land concession contracts in March 2006 invalid
(“First Decision”); and (i) Moon Ocean may present objection to
the First Decision within 15 days from the gazetting of the First
Decision and may also appeal to the Court of Second Instance of

Macau. The First Decision was then published on the official bulletin

of the government of Macau dated 15th August, 2012.

On 28th August, 2012, the Macau Legal Advisor filed on behalf
of Moon Ocean an objection to the Chief Executive of Macau's
Bureau against the First Decision. On 14th September, 2012, as
Moon Ocean had not received any reply from the Chief Executive
of Macau regarding such objection, Moon Ocean and a promissory
purchaser of La Scala (“Purchaser”) therefore jointly lodged an
appeal to the Court of Second Instance of Macau against the First
Decision on the same date (“First Decision Appeal”). Details of
lodging the objection and the First Decision Appeal were disclosed

in the Company’s announcements on 28th August, 2012 and 14th

September, 2012 respectively.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

On 4th September, 2012, Moon Ocean further received a notice
of preliminary hearing (“Third Notice") from the LPWT which stated
that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau had approved the initiation of
the procedures for declaring the act of the Chief Executive of Macau
in confirming the approval of the increase of residential gross floor
area of the Macau Land from 392,505 to 537,560 square meters
and an exchange of 9 small pieces of land with a total site area
of approximately 1,282 square meters initially forming part of the
Macau Land for 8 small pieces of adjacent land with a total site area
of approximately 5,204 square meters as announced on 9th March,
2011 ("2011 Revision”) was invalid (“Second Matters"); and (ii)
Moon Ocean may make written submission on the issues regarding
the subject matter of the above procedures within 15 days from the

receipt of the Third Notice.

The Macau Legal Advisor made the submission which set out the

basis for opposing the Second Matters on 19th September, 2012.

On 16th April, 2013, Moon Ocean received a notice (“Fourth
Notice”) from the LPWT stating that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
declared the previous act of approval of the 2011 Revision by the
Chief Executive of Macau was invalid (“Second Decision”); and (ii)
Moon Ocean may present objection against the Second Decision
within 15 days from the gazetting of the Second Decision and may
also appeal to the Court of Second Instance of Macau. Details of
the Fourth Notice were disclosed in the Company's announcement
dated 16th April, 2013. The Second Decision was then published
on the official bulletin of the government of Macau dated 17th April,
2013.

On 15th May, 2013, Moon Ocean and two promissory purchasers
of La Scala jointly lodged an appeal to the Court of Second Instance
of Macau against the Second Decision (“Second Decision Appeal”).
Details of lodging the Second Decision Appeal were disclosed in the

Company's announcement dated 15th May, 2013.
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On 11th October, 2013, the Court of Second Instance of Macau
issued a notice of its decision made on 10th October, 2013
regarding the legitimacy of certain parties involved in the First
Decision Appeal (“Parties Rulings”). In the Parties Rulings, the Court
of Second Instance of Macau has determined that each of (1) the
Purchaser who has joined Moon Ocean as a co-appellant of the First
Decision Appeal and (2) Macau, which Moon Ocean has identified
as a counter-interested party in Macau's capacity as a shareholder of
the four Original Owners which were dissolved, is not a legitimate
party in the proceedings. As a result, the Court of Second Instance
of Macau has (i) acquitted the appeal against the First Decision
made by Chief Executive of Macau filed by the Purchaser and (ii)
acquitted Macau as a counter-interested party of the First Decision

Appeal.

The Group has been advised by the Macau Legal Advisor that
the Parties Rulings is only an intermediate act of the Court of
Second Instance of Macau (which was intended to address certain
procedural issues, namely whether certain parties are legitimate
parties in the proceedings) prior to the judgment of the substantial
issues under the First Decision Appeal. Such decision is not the
actual judgment of the First Decision Appeal which will take place
at a later stage. The Parties Rulings do not affect the appeal lodged
against the Chief Executive of Macau as a defendant under the
First Decision Appeal filed by the Macau Legal Advisor on behalf
of Moon Ocean. Further, the Parties Rulings will not prejudice the
rights of Moon Ocean to claim damages against Macau in relation to

the First Decision in separate administrative proceedings.

On 2nd December, 2013, the Purchaser filed an appeal against
the Parties Rulings to the Court of Second Instance of Macau of
excluding her from the First Decision Appeal. Insofar as the acquittal
of the Purchaser as a co-appellant is concerned, if the appeal
lodged by the Purchaser against the Parties Rulings is unsuccessful,
the First Decision Appeal will proceed with Moon Ocean as the sole

appellant.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd) .YMEEFEE e

On 16th January, 2014, Moon Ocean received a reply from the
Court of Second Instance of Macau regarding the First Decision
Appeal that it decided to hear the witnesses. The depositions have
been taken place between 12th February, 2014 and 19th March,
2014.

On 29th January, 2014, the Macau Legal Advisor submitted a reply
to the Court of Second Instance of Macau regarding the Chief
Executive of Macau's defense filed on 24th June, 2013 regarding
the appeal filed by Moon Ocean and two promissory purchasers of
the La Scala project on 15th May, 2013.

On 12th May, 2014, the Company announced that Moon Ocean
has decided to arrange for the revocation and cancellation of the
binding letters of offer and the promissory sale and purchase
agreements of the presold property units under the La Scala project.
Without admission of any liability, Moon Ocean will return all sales
deposit in full for the presold property unit(s) under the La Scala
project to each promissory purchaser accepting such revocation and

cancellation arrangement together with interest thereon.

Moon Ocean was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Value
Eight. After completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st
October, 2014, the Moon Ocean Group (including Moon Ocean)
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group and its consolidated results,
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with those of

the Group. Details of the disposal were set out in Note 44(a).

In preparing the net liabilities of the Moon Ocean Group as at the
date of disposal on 31st October, 2014 (Note 44(a)) and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2014, the Directors have sought the legal opinion
from the Macau Legal Advisor regarding the First Notice, the Second
Notice, the Third Notice and the Fourth Notice (“Macau Legal
Opinion”).

In the Macau Legal Opinion, it is pointed out that the First Decision
and the Second Decision are immediately valid and enforceable
and the appeal to the Court of Second Instance of Macau does not
suspend the validity and enforceability of the First Decision and the
Second Decision. As such, Moon Ocean is no longer the registered

owner of the Macau Land.
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In addition, it is also shown in the real estate registration certificate
(¥ &%) issued by the Macau Real Estate Registry of
the government of Macau that there is registration of a note
stating Moon Ocean’s land title over the Macau Land is invalid.
In addition, written report on real estate registration (4] % &
ELEMHE ) issued by the Macau Real Estate Registry of the
government of Macau shows that the land titles of Lots 1C, 2, 3, 4
and 5 of the Macau Land are currently under the name of Tai Lei
Loi Development Company, Limited, San Hung Fat Development
Company, Limited, San Hou Kong Development Company,
Limited, San Vai Ip Development Company, Limited and Lei Tin
Development Company, Limited respectively, which are Macau
companies among the Original Owners. Other than Tai Lei Loi
Development Company, Limited, all other Original Owners have

already been dissolved.

Regarding the probability of winning the First Decision Appeal and
the Second Decision Appeal (“Appeals”), the Macau Legal Opinion
states that there are strong legal arguments to win the Appeals and
for Moon Ocean to get back the Macau Land. However, it is further
stated in the Macau Legal Opinion that in view of the past judicial
case outcome (which is, somehow, similar to Moon Ocean'’s case)
there is a plausible risk that Moon Ocean might not get the legal
title of the Macau Land back.

The cost incurred in the Macau Land have been classified mainly
into three types: (1) cost of acquisition of the land concession
amounted to approximately HK$1,329,023,000 paid to the Original
Owners (“Land Costs"); (2) premium paid to Macau in relation to
the 2011 Revision amounted to approximately HK$624,073,000
(“Premium”); and (3) other cost, incurred in the construction
project of the Macau Land up to 31st October, 2014 attributable
to the Group, amounted to approximately HK$562,481,000 (31st
December, 2013: HK$558,593,000) (“Construction Costs").

It is stated in the Macau Legal Opinion and also set out in the Third
Notice that pursuant to the provision of article 282 paragraph 1 of
the civil code (5 #) of the laws of Macau, the declaration of
nullity of an act shall have retrospective effect and the interested
parties shall return the objects exchanged in such act. As such,
Moon Ocean shall be obliged to return the Macau Land and vice
versa, the Original Owners and Macau shall return the Land Costs

and the Premium to Moon Ocean respectively.
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STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

Based on the Macau Legal Opinion, the First Notice, the Second
Notice, the Third Notice, the First Decision Appeal and all available
information, the Land Costs, the Premium and the Construction
Costs of approximately HK$542,357,000 which incurred up to
31st December, 2012 were reclassified to "Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments” (Note 37) in the consolidated statement of financial

position of the Group as at 31st December, 2012.

Further based on the Macau Legal Opinion, the Fourth Notice,
the Second Decision Appeal and all available information, the
Construction Costs incurred during the ten months ended 31st
October, 2014 attributable to the Group in respect of work certified
for the site formation and slope stabilisation for the Macau Land
amounted to approximately HK$3,888,000 (year ended 31st
December, 2013: HK$16,236,000) were classified as “Stock of
Properties” and such amounts were reclassified from “Stock of
Properties” to “Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments” (Note 37) in

the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.

INVESTMENTS HELD-FOR-TRADING

Investments held-for-trading comprise:

Listed investments: EHERE:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

The fair values of the investments held-for-trading are determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock

Exchange.

As at 31st December, 2014, listed equity securities with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$472,551,000 (2013: nil)
were available to be loaned to a financial institution for earning
lending fee income and the same or substantially the same
securities will be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and

conditions contained in the securities pooled lending agreements.
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/ 35. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT

214

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss

comprise:

Bonds: E¥:
Non-current EREEE
Current mEME

As at 31st December, 2014, bonds with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$909,309,000 (2013: HK$3,371,153,000)
were available to be loaned to a financial institution for earning
lending fee income and the same or substantially the same
securities will be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms
and conditions contained in the securities pooled lending
agreements. Bonds of aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$82,956,000 (2013: HK$447,067,000) were on loan at the end
of the reporting period.

Major terms of the bonds are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
UsS$22,195,000 2017
US$451,000,000 2018
US$12,300,000 2019
US$6,000,000 2020
US$13,000,000 2023
US$500,000 2044
US$120,000,000 Perpetual
GBP17,000,000 Perpetual

The bonds denominated in US$ carry fixed rate range from 6.00%
to 13.25% per annum of which US$602,800,000 are callable and
the bonds denominated in GBP carry fixed rate range from 7.00%
to 14.00% per annum are callable.

The bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair values at
the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are determined by
reference to market bid prices quoted by financial institutions and
brokers.
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES

Finished goods P o
Raw materials B E
Consumables H R

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables FEUE 5 R IR
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts A REREAE
Deposits and prepayments e MIaNFIA
Other receivables H b fE W RIA

Included in trade receivables mainly comprised rental receivables
billed in advance and settlements from tenants which are expected
upon receipts of billings, properties sales proceeds receivables and

receivable from hotel operation.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements. Rental in respect of leased properties are payable in
advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle their accounts
according to the payment terms as stated in the respective

contracts.

36. 7 &

2014 2013

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

2,052 2,453

123 884

1,318 -

3,493 3,337
FTEFELRKA N A &IHFEME T RIET

/EE °
37. EWERE - e RFEARE

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET T

113,372 224,787
(1,887) (2,177)

111,485 222,610

366,479 353,976

167,000 2,478,681

644,964 3,055,267

BRESFATERRBLAEMBHREL
TRWBIHER N 2 BEES MEIHER
WOk IR B 2R B B IE 57 2 MR IR -

AEBDHIFTABZEERER UtHEEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

(Cont'd)

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of

allowance for doubtful debts), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0 — 30 days
31 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

ZTZ=+H
=t—HEAXTH
ANtT—BEATH
A+BERE

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

0 — 30 days
31 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

ZZE=+H
=t—HEXTH
At—HEATH
A+BERE
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REMBRRME

FEW AR IR - & R FE 4 FOH

(&)

REBERWAZERARZI 2 EBEE SR
B (HIBREEE) R @RE R ZRE D740

T
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
T FHET
17,619 34,892
85,866 94,416
299 18,396
7,701 74,906
111,485 222,610

EEHMERBORE 2 B E Z R 2Rk D

i UENE

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

12,154 10,152

21,775 15,694

- 6,405

7236 11,476

41,165 43727




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont'd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

37. BWRE - #ZERANRIE

(&)

2014 2013

HK$"000 HK$'000

FER FAT

At 1st January m—H—8H 2,177 4,266
Amounts written off as uncollectible LA A BT iz [ 4 88 2 IR - (2,034)
Amount recovered during the year REZEWEFKIE (394) (138)

Impairment losses recognised net of BEUE IR R E 2

reversed in respect of trade receivables VEREN SFi! 104 83
At 31st December R+=A=t—H 1,887 2,177

For those past due but not impaired receivables, except for the sale
of properties developed by the Group, although the Group does
not hold any collateral as security, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial settlement
after the end of the reporting period, and considers that the
amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is

required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising (i) properties sales
proceeds receivables of nil (2013: HK$2,824,000); and (ii) rental
receivables of approximately HK$7,236,000 (2013: HK$8,652,000)
which are sufficiently covered by rental deposits received from
the respective tenants, and no allowance is required for these

receivables under the Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

HEBHEEREZERURANS  BAKE
B3 R A IR A R EER (R T HARE
BRZVEHEEN) AEECHEEE B
EERLHELNRERRR 2 T EHERED
Arfh - R AAREBED AR - EF R —
F(ZRARBRBB) ZEERE-

HBBANTHAZERESHRBERE)DEHEE
JEW B AE BT (ZF — =4 2,824,000
BIT) - R(>DEWTE© 47,236,000 7T (=&
—=%:8,652,000/87T) (HRBNUAHMAKZSE
MPZHEEITSMRE) RENEE 2 BE
BUR  BARZERWFIBELBE-

REAMTEREZEBRESREZERR
bf e

s
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(Cont'd)

The carrying amounts of debtors, deposit and prepayments during
the period from 1st January, 2014 to 30th October, 2014 and
year ended 31st December, 2013 included various costs incurred
in the Macau Land and their reclassification. Such costs were

deconsolidated on 31st October, 2014 and did not form part of

debtors, deposits and prepayments as at 31st December, 2014.

During the ten months ended 31st October, 2014, the Construction
Costs of approximately HK$3,888,000 (year ended 31st December,
2013: HK$16,236,000) was reclassified from “Stock of Properties”
(Note 33) to “Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments” and such
amount was recognised as “Costs of Development Recognised in
respect of Property Project in Macau". Furthermore, during the ten
months ended 31st October, 2014, the Macau Project Costs (as
defined hereinafter) of approximately HK$2,615,000 (year ended
31st December, 2013: HK$5,799,000) for maintaining the sales
office and the show flat attributable to the Group was incurred
and classified as "Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments” and such

amount was recognised as “Costs of Development Recognised in

respect of Property Project in Macau”.

After completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st October,
2014, the Moon Ocean Group (including Moon Ocean) ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group, and its consolidated results, assets and

liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the disposal were set out in Note 44(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont'd)

As at the date of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st October,
2014 (Note 44(a)), included in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments were (i) the Construction Costs reclassified from the
stock of properties of which details were set out in Note 33 and (i)
the deposits and prepayments related to the costs incurred which
were mainly for the presale of the residential units in the property
project of the Macau Land of approximately HK$160,794,000 (31st
December, 2013: HK$158,179,000) (excluding inter-company
transactions of approximately HK$8,666,000 (31st December,
2013: HK$8,166,000) in respect of rental charges and building
management fee of office premises and advertising space charged
to Moon Ocean by its former fellow subsidiaries) (“Macau Project
Costs"). As set out in the Macau Legal Opinion, depending on the
evidence to be produced in Macau court in connection therewith,
it is probable for Moon Ocean to claim back the Construction
Costs and the Macau Project Costs from the government of Macau.
However, due to the nature that there is no contractual right or
obligation for the government of Macau to return Moon Ocean
the Construction Costs and the Macau Project Costs, they were
recognised as “Costs of Development Recognised in respect of
Property Project in Macau” of approximately HK$6,503,000 (2013:
HK$22,035,000) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

In preparing the net liabilities of the Moon Ocean Group as at
the date of disposal on 31st October, 2014 (Note 44(a)), the
Directors are of the opinion that Moon Ocean shall pursue to claim
the government of Macau the Construction Costs and the Macau
Project Costs through legal processes should the outcome of the
Appeals be unfavourable to Moon Ocean. Based on the Macau
Legal Opinion, the Directors are of the opinion that it is probable for
Moon Ocean to claim back the Construction Costs and the Macau

Project Costs.

37. BWRE - #ZERANRIE

(&)

B=ZF—MF+ A =+—HMoon Oceanti &
HE (Mis44())  EMEWRZRE - Ze kA
REBEFBEOEVEFE (HFBEHAM T
BR)EFHBEZEBERNAR(NVEEBZATEE
BT YEBEBEEEMFELE 2RAA
B2 % & MIE 5RIE49160,794,000/8 7T (=
T—=F+=-A=+—H:158,179,000% T)
(T BEEERNR R EAMoon OceanM@ E A
EMBRARRABAEMERESEHAZAS
ERREFEER ST 4%8,666000/ T (=
T—=F+=-A=+—H:8,166,000%&7T) )
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TZA=t+ - BLFEERAEERERE
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—t+—BEEBHZEEFE (W:T44@a)) -
EERA WZSELEFLERTF M Moon
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(Cont'd)

As detailed in Note 33, included in other receivables were the Land
Costs and the Premium which were reclassified from the stock of

properties.

In preparing the net liabilities of the Moon Ocean Group as at the
date of disposal on 31st October, 2014 (Note 44(a)), the Directors
are in the opinion that based on the Third Notice and the Macau
Legal Opinion, by mere operation of the laws of Macau, the Original
Owners and Macau shall be obliged to return the Land Costs and
the Premium to Moon Ocean respectively should the outcome of

the Appeals be unfavourable to Moon Ocean.

Up to the date of the completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal
on 31st October, 2014, only one Macau company, Tai Lei Loi
Development Company, Limited exists and the other four Macau
companies among the Original Owners were dissolved (“Dissolved
Original Owners"). As stated in the Macau Legal Opinion, the
shareholders of the Dissolved Original Owners shall have the
obligation to return the Land Costs to Moon Ocean under the laws
of Macau. It is further pointed out in the Macau Legal Opinion that,
the shareholders of the Dissolved Original Owners are (i) Macau,
holder of a quota equivalent to 88% of the share capital of each of
the Dissolved Original Owners; (ii) Macau Tourism And Amusement
Company Limited, holder of a quota equivalent to 5% of the
share capital of each of the Dissolved Original Owners; (i) Macau
International Airport Company Limited, holder of a quota equivalent
to 5% of the share capital of each of the Dissolved Original
Owners; and (iv) Tai Fok Wah Investment Limited, holder of a quota
equivalent to 2% of the share capital of each of the Dissolved

Original Owners.

Up to the date of the completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal
on 31st October, 2014, the Appeals are still in progress and save
as disclosed above, there is no notice from the Court of Second
Instance of Macau regarding the timing for legal procedures to be
conducted.

After completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st October,
2014, included in other receivables of the Land Costs and the
Premium were ceased to be consolidated with the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of
approximately HK$416,771,000 (2013: HK$606,055,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the end of

the reporting period:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
0 - 90 days ZENTH 27,961 129,729
Over 90 days At+BUE 388,810 476,326
416,771 606,055
BORROWINGS 39. 88
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Secured bank loans repayable AR TP HREERE 2 B H
within a period of: IRITER:
Less than one year —FLAR 4,994,263 933,623
More than one year but within two years —F LA BB R 7,969,143 4,869,098
More than two years but within five years A LA 1B B e R 1,871,850 11,655,195
14,835,256 17457916
Other secured loans repayable within one year  BR—FR{EE 2 EtGEBER 1,713,672 6,453,060
16,548,928 23,910,976
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FNEIE 2 508 (6,707,935) (7,386,683)
Amounts due after one year —F & B 2 T8 9,840,993 16,524,293

The bank loans denominated in HK$ are variable-rate borrowings
which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.35% or
cost of fund plus 2.25% (2013: HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.35% or

cost of fund plus 2.25%) per annum.

38. By BRIA R BT KA

ENRERESFERERNEZEREN
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/ 39. BORROWINGS (contd)

222

40.

The variable-rate bank loans denominated in RMB carry interest
at 110% (2013: 110%) of People’s Bank of China base rate per
annum as announced by the People’s Bank of China.

The borrowing denominated in GBP from a financial institution
carries interest at a fixed rate of 5.97% (2013: 5.97%) per annum.
The weighted average effective interest rate is 3.50% (2013:
3.50%) per annum.

The remaining loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at costs of funds of individual financial institutions plus

0.25% to 0.35% (2013: 0.20% to 0.30%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

REMBRRME

39. 8 & (®)

NARBHEZZERITEFIRPEARET
AHZHRBEARBITEEEFE 2110% (=
T—=4F:110%)5t&-

DESTEZ & BEREETRTE BF ) 85.97
B8 (T —=4:597E) - IEFHEE
FEMEARIS0E(ZE—=4F:350E) -

EMERAZEEBE FERMERLNSREE
EE A II025E £ PI035E (ZE— =4
0.20E&E0.302 ):t& -

AEBEBTMINEBHEZEEWT

than HK$ are set out below:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
us$ EV 10,140 5,951,162
GBP e 3,173,538 3,235,906
RMB AR 1,871,850 2,420,248
5,055,528 11,607,316
PROVISIONS 40. B
2014 2013
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Provision for rental guarantee: THEEREE:
At st January m—H—H 57,943 -
Recognised for the year REFEHER 3,627 70,076
Underprovision in prior year BAEFEREIR 5,146 -
Reduction during the year RAFEE AR (37.898) (12,133)
At 31st December R+=—B=+—H 28,818 57943
Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERERBRZ A
Current MENEE 27,561 39,424
Non-current FREIEE 1,257 18,519
28,818 57,943
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE_Z-Z

40. PROVISIONS (contd)

41.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the sale and
purchase agreements for sales of the Properties, the Vendor is
only required to deliver vacant possession of the Properties to the
Properties Purchasers two years (or, at the right of the Vendor, for
a further period of not more than six months) after completion
("Deferred Vacant Possession Period”). The Vendor shall guarantee
the Properties Purchasers the monthly rental income (“Guaranteed
Monthly Rental Income”), which is payable monthly in arrears,

during the Deferred Vacant Possession Period.

Provision for rental guarantee represented the best estimate by the
management of the Group on the shortfall between the expected
monthly rental income receivable from tenants and the Guaranteed
Monthly Rental Income during the Deferred Vacant Possession
Period.

Bt % R AR B
—mFE+- A=+ BLFE

40. 8% »)

BRBELERXSMEZEEAOME Z R R
fRtF BERTANKHTHUMFER (RETHE
?‘ﬁ{éﬂ*;ndlﬂ)ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ CHRREMEZ

EER(IZEEERARE)) -EFE
1%¢%¥EHEA$EEE$%E?W§,HJ%H%ﬁ%ﬂ&
ARESAEZEAD) (REBARRIH
AR e

HEeBRBEEEASEEEEREEEEAE
U E ARMERESRALRES A
MEWAZ ZRAER 2 RIEME -

SHARE CAPITAL 41. g7
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year MAFEEANARNE 2 RAREBH T -
were as follows:
Number of shares Share capital
RH#E R
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI0ET . EBR
Authorised: ETERA:
At Tst January and 31st December W —A—HBRET=A=+—H 5000000000 5000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARRA:
At Tst January and 31st December R—A—BEk+ZA=1+—H 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762
TE-NEFHR EASEEE

223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

/ 42. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES,

224

43,
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2. REWERNT] EZRENT
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND NON- RIFEERRRNIE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts due to associates, investee companies and non- REBENT EXKRERARIFERERR
controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free, except REAREBEERLREE BRE—-BIFE
for an amount of approximately HK$180,578,000 (2013: % % 3R 49180,578,0008 70 (=& — = -
HK$147,198,000) due to a non-controlling shareholder carries 147,198,000/% 7t ) A&t 2 (F F & F11.25E
interest at 11.25% (2013: 11.25%) per annum. The associates, (ZZE—=ZF:1125E) ) RE-ZEFHEAQ
investee companies and non-controlling shareholders will not A BEXRE QR RIEERRE TSR @S A
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the RE—FREREE WZERIEIEERD
reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non- ME o
current.
DEFERRED TAXATION 43, JEIEBIE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets AT R A& B R AR & HA R I 38 1 3 & B
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the EEBRE2TEZEEREEE (BREE) R
current and prior reporting periods: HEs:
Accelerated
Investment tax
properties  depreciation Tax losses Total
RENE MERERE HBEE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FEL FHET
At st January, 2013 R-E-—=F—Hf—H 590,926 40,036 (49,757) 581,205
Exchange adjustments B 5 59 % - - (80) (80)
Charged (credited) to the consolidated ~ R&RA 2 EREREINR (FTA)
statement of comprehensive income 77394 (6,801) 20,530 91,123
At 31st December, 2013 R=Z—-=F+-A=1+—H 668,320 33,235 (29,307) 672,248
Exchange adjustments B 7 R - 230 333 563
Charged to the consolidated statement R4 6 2 B M@ RE MG
of comprehensive income 8,329 4452 10,338 23,119
Transferred to liabilities directly BREEIARELEL
associated with assets classified BEARRHEZAR
as held for sale (Note 13) (Fi&E13) (41,583) 2,253 4 (39,326)
At 31st December, 2014 W-2-mE+=A=t-A 635,066 40,170 (18,632) 656,604




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #&3R &R Mis
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

43, DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd) 43, B IE (&)
For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement REINGEMBRARE ETREHEEE
of financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets REECLHE RUBWMERRZRERHIE
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax HEERDITANT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEE 667,841 695,753
Deferred tax assets EEFIRE E (11,237) (23,505)
656,604 672,248
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following RBERR REEEUTEEATER ARG
major unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability FMMAERZ FERLEHIBEEE -
of the future profit streams.
2014 2013
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Accelerated tax depreciation IRFLIEGTE (103,123) (109,933)
Tax losses W% EE (445,166) (411,803)
(548,289) (521,736)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's unused tax RBEER  AEER—ZERAF A AR
losses not recognised of approximately HK$178,081,000 R AL AT E 1B 4)178,081,000% 7T (=
(2013: HK$58,896,000) will expire in one to five years. Other T — = £ : 58,896,000/ 7T ) ° H 4 K fE R
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. Tt 765 185 18 AT R B A5 8 o

-
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/ 44. BUSINESS COMBINATION

226

Disposal of subsidiaries

(a) Moon Ocean Disposal

On 1st September, 2014, (i) Data Dynasty Limited (“Data
Dynasty”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor of Data
Dynasty; (iii) One Midland Limited (“One Midland"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau; and (iv) Mr.
Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of One Midland, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, namely “Moon Ocean
SP Agreement’, pursuant to which Data Dynasty agreed to
sell and One Midland agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of Value Eight. The Moon Ocean Disposal
was completed on 31st October, 2014 at a consideration
of approximately HK$4,876,162,000 (after adjustment).
Upon completion, the Moon Ocean Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Group and its consolidated results, assets
and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with those of

the Group.

Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal were disclosed in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 2nd

September, 2014 and 23rd September, 2014 respectively.
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44, EFEES B

HEMB QA

(a)

Moon Ocean!t! &

MZZT—MFNH—A (i) Data Dynasty
Limited ([Data Dynasty]) * AR & Z
—HEEE2EREEMNB AR (DARQ
7] » fE/&Data Dynasty#Z /R A : (iii) One
Midland Limited ([One Midland|) - —
MEZSEREZERBE LR R(v)
2% 5% % 4 - fEAOne Midland#E R A -
Al —IHEE W (%% [Moon Ocean
BE&E W) o it - Data Dynasty[d &
£ % One Midland[& Z B8 B Value Eightz
2 BB BATRE AN ° Moon Oceani & =
TZ-WEFTA=Z+—HBEXK RELOAR
4,876,162,000/& 7T (L HEIER) - R 7T
B * Moon Oceansk BT HAXEE
MEBAR HgaEE EERARBET
Bt \ A KB ZEe%E AERAE
o

Moon Oceantti & 2 ¥ IG5 EFIFH N AR F]
BRI A-—TE—NFLA-—BE=-ZF
—MEAAZ+=ZB2AMRBERA -
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44. G B m)

HENBQR (F)

44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(a) Moon Ocean Disposal (Cont'd) (a) Moon Ocean/t & (&)

2014
HK$°000
FER
The net liabilities of the Moon Ocean Group Moon Ocean&k BRI E B EI 2 & EFE
as at the date of disposal were as follows: N
Other fixed assets HEMETEE 265
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERIE - & RTER I8 1,972,919
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LR 2 1,234
Creditors and accruals FETBRIE K FE AT 5B (3.594)
Deposits received Bz e (15,986)
Amount due to the Group REAREEFIE (4,358,618)
Net liabilities disposed of HEaEFE (2,403,780)
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXRBAREBRIE 4,358,618
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB ARz W 2,917,579
4,872,417
Satisfied by: T35 A A
Cash consideration REeRE 4,876,162
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRX (3.745)
4,872,417
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERELEZRERAFRE:
Cash consideration RERE 4,876,162
Settled by special interim dividend (note) VARF B AR B AR B 32 A (B EE) (3.411,137)
Net cash consideration received BYER e REFE 1,465,025
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEE A (3.745)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHEZRITEH LIRS (1,234)
1,460,046
—E-mEsg  zAS¥sEE 227
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/ 44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

228

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Moon Ocean Disposal (Cont'd)

The gain on the Moon Ocean Disposal was included in
“Other Gains and Losses, Net" (Note 16) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: One Midland has elected to settle the consideration by
procuring Mr. Joseph Lau's entitlement on the special
interim dividend for 2014 (Note 20(c)) in an amount of
approximately HK$3,411,137,000.

Chi Cheung Disposal

As disclosed in Note 12, Billion Up, the Company and an
independent third party entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for disposal of the Group’s entire 61.96%
interest in Chi Cheung on 5th December, 2012 at a total
consideration of approximately HK$559,199,000 (after
adjustment). The Chi Cheung Disposal was completed on
6th February, 2013. Upon completion, the Chi Cheung Group
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group and its consolidated
results, assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated

with those of the Group.

As disclosed in Note 12, since the View Success Acquisition
was completed on 23rd January, 2013, before completion
of the Chi Cheung Disposal, the assets and liabilities of View
Success did not form part of net assets disposed of at the

date of completion of the Chi Cheung Disposal.
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44. G B =)

HENBQR (F)

(a)

(b)

Moon Ocean/t & (#&)

Moon Ocean HEZWHEFFALE SR
Mk 2 [Haes R EEFE]
(MizE16) A

BiEE: One Midlandi® #2 DA 2 88 i 5t £ >
ZE—F R R H IR B AR (K
H20(0)) BIEXHRE €8N A
3,411,137,000% T °

EFHLAE

NIRRT R —ZF+ =
A A A - Billion Up ARAIEBLE=
FAN—HhEEHBLEAEERES
Z 2 E61.96% E R - RERTELN A
559,199,000/ 7T (& & 1&) - )
EER - T—=F-AXNBEK-R7%
K& ERERCTHARAERZNE
NE HigA %G AERBEETHR
ARNEEZGEEE BERAGBRA-

HUMF 12 RE BRFRBR-F
—=F—-AZ+=R (EXHEHKAT)
ERCHEERBEREFHEZKE
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(b) Chi Cheung Disposal (Cont'd)

The net assets of the Chi Cheung Group as at
the date of disposal were as follows:

Loan to the Group

Available-for-sale investments

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Time deposits and bank balances

Creditors and accruals

Tax liabilities

Net assets disposed of

Non-controlling interests

Cumulative gain on available-for-sale
investments reclassified from equity

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received

Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Expenses incurred for disposal

Time deposits and bank balances disposed of

44. G B =)

HENBQR (F)

(b) EHHE(F)

2013
HK$'000
FHET
RHEER EFEEZEEFEN T :
BERTAEER 410,000
FERE 97,937
JEUERIE - & R IB 38 3,029
TE BT A R SRTT S 4 563,264
FEAS BRI K ERT FR IR (490,434)
MIEEE (1,416)
HEEEFE 582,380
IR A (220,774)
AR AESETHE
HEREZ Bitla (4,224)
HENB AR Z W 198,536
555,918
AR RS A
BYRESRE 559,199
HEMEE AT (3,281)
555,918
HEREE RS R TFE:
YIRS RE 559,199
HEMEE 2R (3,281)
BHEZERTEREBITES (563,264)
(7,346)
“E-NEFER EASEEE
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45.

46.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group did not have major non-cash transactions.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other
loan facilities and to secure the securities transactions, granted to

the Group are analysed as follows:

BEME

Investment properties
Properties and other fixed assets
BHIEEEZRE

Investments held-for-trading

Financial assets designated as at fair value

through profit or loss TREE
Non-current pledged deposits FETR B IR T K
Current pledged deposits D AR 17 3R

In addition, the Group has subordinated and assigned its advances
to associates of approximately HK$1,679,399,000 (2013:
HK$1,626,762,000) to financial institutions to secure general
banking credit facilities granted to associates and interests in certain
subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged as part of the

security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group.
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45.

46.

MEREBEEEE

mEMBRRME

TEFRERS

BARERA MG MR LMD AR EIN AEE
VETEFREIH-

EEERH

RBEYRR  AEELSREGAHAEESH A2
—RBITLEMCERBENRESFR MK

EERBBEREUARBMAFELZ

HrzEERBESWWLOT:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
44,156,883 40,888,109
1,509,343 512,137
472,551 894,816
4,576,112 12,118,324
438,994 578,803
429,689 632,780
51,583,572 55,624,969

Beoh AKEE R E D RER 2 RIT-RIE
B H B %S0 A RIFRIAK1,679,399,000
BT (ZF— =4 :1,626,762,000/8 L) ¥
RERTEBMMEE MRARARE THER
Al 2 as I E B E R AR BB TIRITHE
B2 ahnER .
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47. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

47. EREE

Authorised and contracted for: ERERBEEL:
Development expenditure of properties BEREMEERAX
in Hong Kong
Development expenditure of properties REREMEERFS

in Mainland China
Development expenditure of properties
in Macau (note (i))

RPN EE R (FEE®))

Renovation of properties B

Investee company's contribution BEIRERRZEE

Capital investment in limited partnership BREBEEZERKRE
(note (i) (FRFEE (i)

Purchase of other fixed assets BEHMETEEE

The Group's associate had capital commitments which were

authorised and contracted for at the end of the reporting period
of approximately HK$877,856,000 (2013: HK$830,431,000),

of which the Group’s share of commitments amounted to
approximately HK$219,464,000 (2013: HK$207,608,000).

Notes:

0)

(i)

The Moon Ocean Disposal was completed on 31st October,
2014. Upon completion, the Moon Ocean Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Group.

On 23rd July, 2014, the Group entered into the Withdrawal
Agreement in the Cayman lIslands Partnership for capital
commitment in contribution of US$50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$387,550,000) and ceased to be a limited
partner of the Cayman Islands Partnership. On the same
date, the Group entered into a subscription agreement for
commitment in contribution of RMB300,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$374,370,000) in the PRC Partnership. The
PRC Partnership with a term of ten years was set up mainly
for the purpose of long term capital investment. Subsequent
to the end of the reporting period, the Group contributed
approximately RMB251,795,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$314,215,000), representing the remaining balance of capital
commitment to the PRC Partnership.

FHIR REBA AT AE:

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T T
282,471 321,947
1,118,186 3,868,293
- 2,795,440

- 1,460
343,200 -
314,215 380,592
2,005 7,106
2,060,077 7,374,838

RIEBMR AEEB2BERRBRIERE
FH 2 ERNEIEL B877856,0008 T (= F
— =% :830,431,000/&7T) - & A& H &
iy Z A YEFE 4 B219,464,0008 L (ZF—=
4 1 207,608,000 7T ) °

GEE

0)

(i)

Moon Ocean HER —ZF—NF+ A =+—
A5k ° R 7EA % ' Moon Ocean®E BB A
REBZHBE AR

MN-E—NELA-+=A AEEEFNS
HEABME3—1850,000,000% T (HE
7 49387,550,0007%8 7T ) & R EE 2 FE 5]
VHERELRIEEHAEREAREY
ERAEBA-RAA AEEGR—EHAEAR
#300,000,0007T (18 & 7 49374,370,000
B ZAETE BEPHABOEIT VR
BiHZ - PRABCEABTF KNLEE
EMARINERILE RB|EHRE K
EEBTEHARK251,7950007T (HER
#)314,215,000870) BRFEE R EZ
B EYEREE o

s
I+

ZE-NEFR EABEXEHE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

Guarantees given to banks in respect of
banking facilities utilised by associates

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of
banking facilities in lieu of the cash public
utility deposit jointly utilised by subsidiaries

Repurchase guarantees given to banks in
respect of mortgages facilities given to

property purchasers by subsidiaries

48. ARBEBEREE

(a)

Buy Option and Sale Option on shares of Grandday

On 5th September, 2012, the Company and Loyal Pride
Limited (“Vendor of Grandday”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of 49 shares of Grandday (“Sale
Shares"), representing 49% of the entire issued share capital
of Grandday, with Dynamic Grand Limited (“Purchaser of
Grandday”) at a total consideration of US$500,000,000
("Grandday Disposal”) (“Agreement”), which was satisfied
by way of cash of US$200,000,000 and loan note issued
by the Purchaser of Grandday in the principal amount of
US$300,000,000 (“Loan Note"). The Grandday Disposal was
completed on 7th September, 2012 and the Loan Note was
fully redeemed on 6th March, 2013 with share charge over

the Sale Shares released on the same date.

Save as disclosed above, pursuant to the Agreement, in case
of certain events (as defined in the Agreement) occurred, the
Vendor of Grandday shall have an option to purchase all but
not some of the Sale Shares from the Purchaser of Grandday
("Buy Option") and the Purchaser of Grandday shall have
an option to sell all but not some of the Sale Shares to the
Vendor of Grandday (“Sale Option”).
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2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
BEENRERZIBITEER
MERTTIRMEE Z (R 829,592 861,600
BB ARERRITHEAZEES
DB IR& AR EBEFERM
MEIRITIRM 2 R 15,000 15,000
BB AR ZMEBREREIT
REZEFRBZOEER
19,672 164,113
864,264 1,040,713
(a) FEROZEANREERBERER

R-ZZE——FhLAAB ARQRAREELE
BRAE([HAEER]) (KARZ—
M2 E B M E A7) EDynamic
Grand Limited (i E F 1)L B
B HEFAE 2490 KM (THE
BH]) REFEZ2HEBHITRAZ
49% - X & 42 %8 A£500,000,000% J©
(MEAEHE]) (ThEl) MR ERN)
I £ 37 £4200,000,000% 7T M EH[E B 5
177N & ¥ A300,000,000% 7T 2 B 3K
ER(TEXER]) FBREHEER=-Z
——FNAEHERERZEXREZRER
- ANBWEREER ER
HERM ZIRMH BN RE B -

B EXFTRERSN  RIBZ R AR
TEH(ERAGH) HEIHEEE
BRMEESBEE2E (BAFED)H
BN (TEAEER]) RHEET AR
BERAEESHERE (BAIFHD)
HERD (THEREFE]) -
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48. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
(Cont'd)

(@)

(b)

Buy Option and Sale Option on shares of Grandday
(Cont'd)

For as long as any of the indentures security as defined in the
Agreement (“Indentures Security”) remains outstanding, if, on
or before 20th January, 2016, an event of default as defined
in the Agreement occurs and such event of default agreed
in the Agreement has not been waived, remedied or cured
or is otherwise continuing as at 20th January, 2016; or if a
demand is made on Grandday and/or Lucky Grow Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Grandday, under any
of the Indentures Security and/or any enforcement action
is taken under any of the Indentures Security, the Purchaser
of Grandday shall sell and the Vendor of Grandday shall
purchase all but not some of the Sale Shares (“Automatic
Sale").

Details of the Grandday Disposal including the Buy Option,
the Sale Option, the Indentures Security, the Automatic Sale
and the redemption of the Loan Note were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5th September, 2012
and 6th March, 2013 respectively.

Post-completion development upside sharing or

compensation upside sharing on the Moon Ocean case

Subject to completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal having
occurred, (a) if judgments are made in favour of Moon
Ocean in the Appeals and have become final and the title
to the Macau Land is vested on Moon Ocean again, One
Midland shall pay to Data Dynasty the development upside
sharing pursuant to the Moon Ocean SP Agreement; or (b) if
judgments are made against Moon Ocean in the Appeals and
have become final, One Midland shall pay to Data Dynasty
the compensation upside sharing pursuant to the Moon

Ocean SP Agreement.

The arrangement of the development upside sharing or the
compensation upside sharing (as the case may be) allows
the Group to share the possible upside or compensation
in relation to the Macau Land and the La Scala project post

completion of the Moon Ocean SP Agreement.

48. RIRBBREE (»)

(a

(b)

HEROZEANRERRHERER
(%)

REBAELAGEHESEZR (TR HE

(MEBBHFER]) HRET WR=-F
—ANE-AZTBERZABEENEMS
(EERWH) MABENFFALEE
B AL REMRER —F
—RE-AZT RIS REREE
MEHESERABERLERIERK
BERAR (PREz —R2EHBHBER
ARHESR R IREEFESES
EREDEMRHATITS MHAEER
HAHEMPEEHABE2H (BL
FED)HERN ([BFHE]) -

HELEZFBEREEARER P&
B BEEFER BBHEERER
REBESRIENARFABRA=E
——EAARAR-_ZE—=%=/AXH
ZATRe

M Moon OceanZE il 58 5 1% BE 5% 2 {4 12
ER A E D GEE

fEMoon Oceani B 5 ATEAHIRIIR T
(a)fiw &R &R B A Moon Ocean - WA,
BERER MR Lt E2EBF RS
B Moon Ocean - BllOne MidlandZE1&
#EMoon Ocean & 1% [Data Dynasty
B DG EE  sk(b) i LEREIRT
F#Moon Ocean * W i A& 42 # R » A
One Midland# 1R #EMoon OceanE & 1%
[ Data Dynasty> 1 # B D 1h 15 -

FEDMEERFBEESNEE (RIBER
i 5E ) < PR AN & B Al A Moon Ocean
B 1 T K18 o 40 BUR P L R A
e F/ETEE Al A IR 2 G E S (E -

s
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—E-TFEFR EA
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i
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/ 48. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

(Cont'd)
(b) Post-completion development upside sharing or (b)
compensation upside sharing on the Moon Ocean case

(Cont'd)

The aggregate amount of all the development upside sharing
or the compensation upside sharing (as the case may be)
payable by One Midland to Data Dynasty shall be subject to a
maximum amount of HK$12,500 million.

The Directors consider the aggregate amount of all the
development upside sharing or the compensation upside
sharing (as the case may be) payable by One Midland to
Data Dynasty and the maximum amount of HK$12,500
million for the development upside sharing or the
compensation upside sharing (as the case may be) are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of the development upside sharing and the
compensation upside sharing were set out in the
announcement and the circular of the Company dated 2nd
September, 2014 and 23rd September, 2014 respectively.

49. OPERATING LEASES

48. IREBEREE =

M Moon OceanZE il 58 & 1% BE 2% 2 {5 12
EREEIHEE (&)

One Midlandf& < Data DynastyZ AT 5 7
BoERAEIRESGIEE (RERM
TE)HEE Y &= & % /512,500,000,000
PEIT o

Z E#® AOne MidlandfE ff FData
DynastyZ FTB R D G ESHEED (S
HE(RERME) BFEUARFED (RIS
15&%%1“’“T5i‘{ﬁ(%ﬁ\ RIME) Z &

% %8 412,500,000,0008 LB A F4&
ﬁ WHAARRARARA 2 HRERE

Mz e
MEDERERBESHEEZFBE

FIENRARB BRSO A-S—NF
AZAR-ZF-MEAA-+ZAZA
KB A

49, E¥EMAH

The Group as lessee AEBRAEBEA
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Minimum lease payments paid under operating ANFE gt G BAME 2 & R L
leases in respect of premises during the year YRz &EHEERE 4,240 7,195

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

~

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows:

Within one year F—F
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-FE

234
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2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
1,894 4,346
747 2,020
2,641 6,366
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OPERATING LEASES (contd)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of one to two years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$1,939,378,000 (2013: HK$1,791,257,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$92,013,000 (2013: HK$68,888,000).

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate
annual rental yields of 1.28% to 9.30% (2013: 1.53% to 9.06%)
on an ongoing basis. Most of the properties held have committed
tenants ranged from two to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year E—FNR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years AFEUE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the
Group are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging
from 5% to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the
employees. From 1st December, 2000, newly joined employees
are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$10,065,000 (2013:
HK$9,869,000) represented contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group for the year.

49.

E_EFRLF (REEEMT)

50.

EEHEN @
AEMBEAA (F)

EERHOHEHSEAKSEREE TR FEYE
N zB2 -HOFHB-—EMFEE K-

AEED/EEA

RAFEFERBRzZMWEHRHSRADNDR
1,939,378,000/% 7T ( =& — =4 : 1,791,257,000
FETT)  MBR R 4992,013,0008 0 (=2 —=
% : 68,888,000/ 7T ) °

AEBZREYEBHAFBENESTF1.28%
29.30% (ZZ—=4:1.53%%9.06% ) 2
SWER  REAOFIFWE B AERAS

RMEBHR  AEBEEHBF TR KKK
HEREERTHD

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

1,316,851 1,597,075

1,633,802 2,195,143

1,064,055 1,319,839

4,014,708 5,112,057

RIKER T E

AEBZEBELERTERTEI ZBER
REH ) (TR RN E]) KR FIEREES G
g (M|t E)) ARBERBERAKGE
1 B & % Bl 2 5%% 10%¢%3t 53X (1R F & & IR
BFEE) A—FTTEF+_A-BEMAR
SEZHEBHASMBRESHE - BEIRE
BT RGBS IR NG Z L R -

RiGFE2ERERRINGBCERBELNS
10,065,000 7T ( =& — =4 : 9,869,000/%
L) VAEERAFEMZ S EEN 2 #
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e
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/ 51. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51. EXRBEALTRS

5

it

Transactions:

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

BARERA M MAR LMD AN AEE
RARFERBENTETUTERRS

statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

2014 2013
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FER FET
Income received from associates: B E R E 2 A
Secretarial fee WEER 10 10
Management fee ERE 48 48
Interest income FEWA 3,998 4,025
Accountancy fee BitE 120 120
Consultancy fee ISR 9,227 242
Income received from a controlling shareholder B U —f{1 22 7] 2 2 % J& 3R
of the Company (“Controlling Shareholder")/ ([FEPRRRER ) 1 B AR R
companies controlled by the Controlling 62 AR, — A B AR
Shareholder/a close family member of BREREERED ZKEKE
the Controlling Shareholder: Z WA
Asset management and maintenance services & E S B RIRE RS 11,556 15,049
Advisory and consultancy services 558 1 B 1 AR 75 312 -
Rental services HE RS 17,636 -
Property management services, leasing MEERRE
administration services and property BT RS K
administration services W 1T RS 12,282 4,763
Property management services ES-SEN P - 9,659
Income received from a Director/a close family 2 W —fzE %/ — {7 B R A% B
member of the Controlling Shareholder/ BETINCRKEKRE, —HIER
a company controlled by [ Ry | /N o N
the Controlling Shareholder:
Brokerage commission K fe 484 -
Rent e - 50
Licence fee paid to companies controlled by B AR AR B il 2
the Controlling Shareholder NAEZFAE 713 -
Rent paid to a company controlled by BT — R AR R 1 2
the Controlling Shareholder NAElZBE - 53
Rent and building management fee B—uEEZHE R
received from a Director EFERE 919 919
Rent and building management fee ENBERARZES M
paid to associates BFERE 2,586 2,382
Consideration received for the disposal of W —HEERRREERE 2
subsidiaries to a company wholly-owned by AREMERLEWB AR Z
the Controlling Shareholder (note (i) RE(MEEG) 4,876,162 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

PR R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

51. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51. ERBEALR S &)

(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

x5 (&)

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FA&T
Consideration received for the disposal of W ER —fi7 B RR IR R BB R ) 2
the Group's investment properties to companies KEXKBEZEEE ZAGEA
wholly-owned by a close family member of HEAREEZREMEZRE
the Controlling Shareholder (note (ii)) (B E (i) ) 39,096 -
Consideration received for the disposal of Wz REEREERE
the Group's stock of properties to: MEEFET
Close family members of a Director WM UERRREY ZKE
(note (iii)) B8 (B FEi) ) 51,205 17,963
A close family member of the Controlling —fr B AR AR R B R ) 2
Shareholder (note (iv)) REERL B (FFEE(V) ) - 22,708
Deposits together with interest thereon repaid to: REF] S ERFEF -
A company wholly-owned by a close family — (B AR R B R E ) 2
member of the Controlling Shareholder KEKBEZREHRAZRA] 9,509 -
A company wholly-owned by a Director —(EEE2EEAZNF 7,945 -
Companies wholly-owned by a close family —fr B R AR R R ) 2
member of the Controlling Shareholder KEKBZEHEARZ XA 2,409 -

Secretarial fee, accountancy fee and consultancy fee were charged
based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by central
administrative departments of the Group. Management fee,
licence fee, brokerage commission, rent and building management
fee were determined on terms similar to those applicable to
transactions with unrelated parties. Interest income was charged at
the prevailing market rates based on outstanding balances during

the year.

Asset management and maintenance services, advisory and
consultancy services, rental services, property management services,
leasing administration services and property administration services
(the contract for services with effect from 1st November, 2014
(details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 31st October, 2014) superseded all other existing contracts
for services (details were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 14th December, 2012, 15th July, 2013 and 19th
March, 2014)) and property management services (details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18th May,

2010) were charged at the terms agreed by both parties.

WMEEBR SHEXEMBIRAEE PR
TTBEBPIFTE £ 2 A 2 BE H B MU ER - &
BB -Fo&- %%ﬁ% ﬂ%&@*“@g
E&ﬁﬂ% T 5 Az UG &

ﬂEWABm#$¢F%E$%%$E%
m%ﬂ¥ﬁﬁo

BEEERRERY #HMBERRSE BE
AR5 - W 2B 18 AR 7% - AT HURTS R 1T
BR% (B -_F-—0OF+—A—BE REAE
D(FBHRERARRBHPR -_T—HF+
A=1t—RAZ2MmA)MRAEHEMBIRE RS
R (FERERARFABSHA —T——F
tT-A+tHB - —E—=FtA+HEBAR=F
—mME=AtNABZRATHA) )M&%%ﬁqfi
R% (HBERENEARFBHR - -ZTFH
AT NBZRMR) THRIEETT HE Zﬂ*tﬂﬂl
HY -

[
i
]

—EomEER BAEE
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/ 51. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51. EXRBEALTRF @)
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(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Considerations received for the disposals of the Group's
investment properties and stock of properties were determined
with reference to the prevailing market values. Consideration
received for the disposal of subsidiaries was determined after arm’s
length negotiations between Data Dynasty and One Midland with

reference to the total investment costs relating to the Macau Land.

Notes:

(i)  Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal (Note 44(a)) were set out
in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 2nd
September, 2014 and 23rd September, 2014 respectively.

(i)  During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into preliminary
sale and purchase agreements with three companies wholly-
owned by a close family member of the then Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company in respect of the sale of
three shops of Causeway Place with an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$39.1 million (after discount) with deposits
received of approximately HK$6.0 million as at 31st December,
2013. The transactions were completed on 7th October, 2014.

(i) As set out in the Company's announcement dated 19th
February, 2014, close family members of a Director entered into
a preliminary sale and purchase agreement for acquisition of a
residential unit, a car parking space and a motorcycle parking
space of One WanChai, the Group's stock of property held for
sale, at a consideration of approximately HK$51.2 million. The
transaction was completed on 14th April, 2014. (During the
year ended 31st December, 2013, as set out in the Company's
announcement dated 13th August, 2013, a close family member
of a Director entered into a preliminary sale and purchase
agreement for acquisition of a residential unit of One WanChai at
a consideration of approximately HK$18.0 million. The transaction
was completed on 2nd September, 2013.)

(iv)  As set out in the Company's announcement dated 6th February,
2013, a close family member of a controlling shareholder entered
into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement for acquisition
of a residential unit of One WanChai at a consideration of
approximately HK$22.7 million. The transaction was completed
on 5th April, 2013.
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REDZ2REFHEE - st H S E QT
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(iii)

)

Moon Oceantti & (HisE44(a)) ZFFBEE Y
SR AARBHS BT —NFNLAZ
A —T—NFERA-+=ZHZ2AMERA
EK A o

REE-Z—=F+_A=+—HULEFE"
PN/ ﬂz—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwg A=
MR- UEERZEERAQBIERRE
@%ﬁﬂZ%ﬁW%%é%ﬁz B A
REEERE HERBENT=EnE2
KRB 425847 /39,100,00058 7T (373014 ) -
R-TB—=F+-A=+—H2WiTLH
46,000,000 TL c ZER G T —UF
+AEBZEK-

BMARBBHA-_T—NE-A+1H
ZRAME —NESERBRYZRERK
BRBASRE (AEEETZHELEZ
%%T’)Z—ﬂ&*“héﬂ—mn%
EEM& EEEEENIVREEER
% R{E4A51,200,000 7T ° :FZIBR 5%
:%*EEEH+EE%WN%ﬁ§:$
—=F+-A=+—HBIEEE FWOEKRQ
RIAMAE-T—=FN\AB+=ZBZAMWM
B NEEEERBINCIREKEREA
TRy AFEEMICRRESHE
RIB4418,000,0008 7T ZBRXHN -
—=ZFhA-B%MK-)

mm$ ﬂaﬂﬁ—x —F£-AXHZ
NEAH —(IIERERERENZRE
[24=! ?ﬁtﬁﬁi\afﬁz E{EEEME] 7 R
EE i R{B# /522,700,000 JT ° %18
RHR_E—=FMATRATK-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5%
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ T —NFE+ A=+ —HILFE

51. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51. EXRBEALTRF @)

(Cont'd)

Balances:

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 28 and 42.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
17 and 18. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval
of the Board of Directors having regard to the performance of
individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.

=3

RIEIFR BREEA T X ZEBFBHR
M3E28%42 °

FTEETEAEME:
FTEEBEAEMEANFI7RI8AKEE-ES
MEBRTBRABZHeATHEESLE [

AMALTERR HEREERAZBRBRETRER
mR(ER)RAEFSREHEMLE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HEZ =T —NMF+_-_A=+—HILFE

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31st
December, 2014 which principally affected the results or assets of
the Group.

Place of Class of share/

incorporation/ registered

operation capital held

Name of subsidiary EMAYL/ ke,

WELAREM LEwE EMEREE

Alpha Team Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary

AEERRES Bl

Both Talent Limited Hong Kong Ordinary

TRERAT BiE gl

Cardin Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary

ERBERLA BB EER

Chinese Estates, Limited Hong Kong Ordinary

ZEABRARAR BE il

Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary

(Harcourt House) Limited 0 LiER

Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary

(The One) Limited BB gl

Chinese Estates Hong Kong Ordinary

(Windsor House) Limited e TRk

Non-voting

deferred

EREEELR

Conduit Road Hong Kong Ordinary

Development Limited 0 LBk
TEREERERAF

Country Homes Limited Hong Kong Ordinary

&R EER

Non-voting

deferred ordinary

BREE

EIEE AR

Non-voting

deferred founder

ERRE

RIERIST AR
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5. T EMB A BFHE

EXERRIIL2MMBARNENECREB
RITE B TRABER _T—NF+=
A=+ AUAEEZXEREEREEY

BIMBRARZFE-
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ paid-up share capital/
registered registered capital
capital  held by the Company
BRTRAZ AARMBARKRER/
BA/EREE AMERZED
Directly  Indirectly
B A%
Us$1 - 100%
17T
HK$1 - 100%
BT
HK$2 - 100%
2B
HK$1,000 100% -
1,000 7T
HK$200 - 100%
200/ 7T
HK$2 - 100%
28T
HK$100 - 100%
10087
HK$2
2B
HK$10,000 - 70%
10,000 7T
HK$200 - 100%
200/ 7T
HK$164,400
164,400 7
HK$1,000
1,000/ 7

Principal activities

TEEK

Investment holding

BRER

Property development

NEER

Property trading

Investment holding
and provision of

management services

REERR
REEE RS

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NELRE

Property development

NEER

Property investment

NERE



(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary
WELREM

Dollar Union Limited

ERYERRAF

Estate Rose Limited

Ever Ideal Limited

Evergo China Holdings
Limited

Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited

EEmEE (hE)
ARAF

Evergo Holdings
Company Limited
EXefEARAR

Fair Eagle Finance
Credit Limited
AECHERAT

Fair Eagle Futures
Company Limited
REBEBERRF

Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited
AEEFBERAT

Global Stage Limited
Grandhall Secretarial

Services Limited

BEWERBERRF

Groupluck Company Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

Place of
incorporation/
operation
KL/

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RRABRER/
BB

Bermuda/
Hong Kong

BRE/
Bk

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBERRES/
5B

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
aE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES
Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
BB

Class of share/

registered
capital held
FigRe,/
&R

Ordinary
el

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

¥

Ordinary
ERR

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTRER
BRA/EMEE

HK$100
10078 7T

US$1
IE

US$1
IE

HK$100,775,869.10
100,775,869.10/% 7

US$2,509,454
2,509,454F ¢

HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$228,000,000
228,000,0007% 7T

US$1
IE
HK$10,000

10,000/ 7T

HK$2
25T

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/

registered capital
held by the Company
AARAFMBHERE
AMERZED
Directly  Indirectly
B B3

- 87.5%"*

100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

—B-mEEH

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 52. EEHi & A RF18 @)

Principal activities

TEEK

Property trading

Securities investment

Securities investment

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REEK

Securities margin
financing

BFRECHE

Brokering and dealing
in futures contracts
HEANKRRER

Provision of brokerage
RELLRY
Securities investment
Secretarial services

WERS

Money lending
&

s
I+

EA

[
i
]

"
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(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary
WELREM

Harbour Trade Limited

Hillsborough Holdings Limited

Loyal Pride Limited
BRBERLA

Modern City Investment Limited

WERERRAT
Oriental Master Ltd.

Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited
RE (FBE) BERAF

Paul Y. Holdings
Company Limited

Perfect World Company Limited
BENEERERAT

Pinecrest International Limited

Pioneer Time
Investment Limited

Rich Honour Limited

SRERNRA

River Court Properties Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation
KL/

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBERRES/
BB

British Virgin Islands
EREBRES

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
ERABRES

Hong Kong
BB

Cayman Islands/
Hong Kong

AeHs/
B

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBERRES/
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Isle of Man

525

Class of share/

registered
capital held
FigRe,/
&R

Ordinary
el

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
il

Ordinary
el

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR
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Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTRER
BRA/EMEE

US$1
E

US$1
IE

US$1
IE

HK$4
4ETT
US$1
ES5
HK$2
28T

HK$70,715,005.70
70,715,005.70/% T

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

US$1
E

US$1
(E

HK$2
2B

GBP2
28

Proportion of
paid-up share capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
KARFHEHRRE
AMERZED
Directly  Indirectly
B k3

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 75%

100% -

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

TEEK

Securities investment

BHRE

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Estate management

MEER

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

NERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 52. EEHi & A RF18 @)

(Cont'd)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital  held by the Company
Name of subsidiary EMARL ke, BRTRHZ AARMBHRKRA  Principal activities
G- YNCEE KEwE TEMERER BE/EMEE ZMERZEDH TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
B k3
Silvercord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$14,600 - 100%  Property investment
RHARAF BE EaR 14,6007 7T NERE
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Usg1 - 100% Investment holding
EEEBRES ERR 1%7T REZK
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
AEFRAF Bk ERR 28T ES
Stable Castle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Property development
ZREBRRA Bk ERR 1T NEER
Sun Power Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$i - 100%  Securities investment
Hong Kong LAk 17T EHHRE
RERBRES/
Bk
The House of Kwong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Cosmetics distribution
Sang Hong Limited B il 500,000 7 and trading
BEEERDA LR ERE S
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
FRERAF EREBRES il 17 REER
View Success Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
Investments Limited BiE il 28T NERE
RFREBRRA
mIEEMEERERAR  PRC Registered US$830,000 - 100%  Estate management
(Sichuan Perfect World Property ~ F & AfER 830,000% 1T NEER
Management Co,, Ltd.) ©
mIExEEHERRARS  PRC Registered US$199,600,000 - 100%  Property development
Sichuan Evergo Real Estate & &R 199,600,000% 7T and trading
Company Limited * NEBRLEE
KEBTHEREBER AR PRC Registered  RMB310,000,000 - 100%  Asset investment and
e HMEAR ARH310,000,0007 management
BERERER
BEe(IRIGEER PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100%  Property investment
BRARL hE Bl 500,000% 7T NERE
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate
Management Co., Ltd.)%
—E-mEFR  FAExEE 243
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(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

WEAD 4R
BEBEHE (L)
AR

(Evergo Real Estate (Shanghai)
Company Limited) *

BERRIE (F#)
BRRR

Evergo Real Estate (chengdu)
Company Limited *

BXoBk (HH)
e NS

(Evergo Enterprises (Chengdu)
Company Limited) *

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at

the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting

period.

Place of
incorporation/
operation
KL/

PRC
P E

PRC
P E

PRC
P E

Issued and

fully paid

Class of share/ share capital/
registered registered
capital held capital

iR,/ ERTRAR
A E R R BA/ERER

Registered US$10,500,000

HfER 10,500,000 7T

Registered US$100,000,000

HfER 100,000,000% 7T

Registered US$449,400,000

&R 449,400,000% T

* 75% owned by the Group and 25% owned by Power Jade *

Limited

A Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

A
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|

|

INIBEDLE

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

Indirectly

ARAMBHERA,  Principal activities
AMEAZED L TEEH
EF:3

100% Property investment

NERE

100%  Property development
and trading
NEBRLEE

100%  Property development
and hotel operation

NEERIBEXD

R E BRSSP EA RS B BB AR
BITEMERE S

ARE B R H75% MK Power Jade Limited# &



The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all associates would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the associates as at 31st

December, 2014 which principally affected the results or assets of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mis:
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —WMFE+-A=+—HIFE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

53. T EHE N TFE

EFRAIERHBEANAH LS HED
WIUR -t TRRBER B —mE+=
A=+—BUARE ¥EAAEHEEY
ErBBATZHE

the Group.
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/  equity attributable
incorporation/ registered registered indirectly
operation capital held capital to the Company
Name of associate EMRL FiERe,/ CRITRERE KRR MEEL Principal activities
BHENTER "EM HEREXEH BE/EREE REZEDH TEXH
Best Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 25% Property investment
FEBRAA B el 1% and trading
NEREREE
Direct Win Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$900 33.33% Property trading
BRERBRAR BE il 900 T NEEE
Ever Sure Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 50% Property trading
KIRREBRRA e il 28T NEEE
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,999 333300 Property investment
EHREXERAR 'R il 9,999% 7T NERE
Power Jade Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$20 50% Investment holding
(Business name: Hong Kong LAk 20ETT REER
Power Jade Capital Limited) ~ XB#BFRHE/
(BH%EH: Bk
Power Jade Capital Limited )
The Kwong Sang Hong Bermuda Ordinary HK$100,000 50% Investment holding
International Limited BRE ERR 100,0007% 70 REER
FEFEEHEREERLRL  PRC Registered US$27,500,000 500 Property investment
(Shanghai Xin Mao Property H AfEx 27500,000% 7T NERE
Development Co. Ltd.) *
RABMAERRAA PRC Registered US$24,920,000 50% Property investment
Oriental Arts Building Co. Ltd.! H A ER 24,920,000 7T and hotel operation
NERERBEER
EELERMEERAAL PRC Registered  HK$5,880,000,000 25% Property development
Chongging Sino Land H #fEA  5880,000,000/ 7T NEER
Company Limited®
A Wholly foreign-owned enterprise o SMEBE R
t Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise t HINEBEDE
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Investment in subsidiaries WEAaEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB A R R 3R
Other current assets B Re &=
Amounts due to subsidiaries REMBARFIE
Other current liabilities EMrsaE
Dividend payable FEAT AR B
Financial guarantee liabilities MBERAR
Net assets BEEFE
Share capital (Note 41) A (KiEE41)
Reserves 1

Total equity R AHE R AR

@

()

The HKICPA has issued the Amendments and New
Interpretation which are effective for the Company's financial
year beginning on 1st January, 2014. The application of the
Amendments and New Interpretation had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or

prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.

The Company has undertaken to provide necessary financial
resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries.
The Directors are of the opinion that the subsidiaries are

financially resourceful in settling obligations.

The carrying amount of the investments in subsidiaries is
reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined
by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected

to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.
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REMBRRME

54. XA BMRR WK 2 E R

(b)

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,140,216 5,140,216
7,042,885 5,291,441
1,988,254 522,366
(3.246,455) (3,262,482)
(2.023) (1,125)
(7,630,476) -
(62) (107)
3,292,339 7,690,309
190,762 190,762
3,101,577 7,499,547
3,292,339 7,690,309

BEQMASDEMHEARIR_-E
—OFE-A-BRBZVRFELERZ
CHP SRR IR P e E IS
TEHAGTHEICBE S HMEES
R BARMN 2 fmB N 2 307 VB E A
BEAFE-

RRARCAERBATIHEIR UX
FMBARZAREE BEFRA B
BRBAABRAMBERBITEME-

MBAR®RERHNERSEETHE S
BHOARAKEEENSERAKRE S
MEARZEARAEREETE -



54.

55.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont'd)

(c) Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts
due to subsidiaries of approximately HK$3,198,935,000
(2013: HK$3,202,603,000) and HK$3,167,974,000 (2013:
HK$3,163,462,000) respectively bear interest at rates
mutually agreed by both parties, the remaining balances are
interest-free. All balances are unsecured and have no fixed

repayment terms.

(d) Profit of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2014 amounted to approximately HK$9,623,030,000 (2013:
HK$6,386,027,000).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere, the Group had the following

transaction after the end of the reporting period:

Disposal of Asian East Limited (“Asian East”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its

subsidiaries (“One Group”) (“One Disposal”)

On 12th December, 2014, (i) Rich Lucky Limited (“Rich Lucky"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the
Company, being the guarantor of Rich Lucky; (i) Market Victory
Limited (“Market Victory”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being the guarantor of Market Victory,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which
Rich Lucky agreed to sell and Market Victory agreed to purchase
the entire issued share capital of Asian East at a total consideration
equal to the aggregate of (a) the consolidated net asset value or
liability of the One Group at the date of completion; and (b) the
aggregate face amount of all sums due or owing by the One Group
to members of the Group (other than the One Group) less the
aggregate face amount of all sums due and owing to any company
of the One Group by any member of the Group (excluding the One
Group) as at the date of completion. Details of the One Disposal
were set out in the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 12th December, 2014 and 7th January, 2015 respectively.

54.

55.

RRTMBARRBR ZER (@)

© BHWBRAXKERXENWEBRAR
HH 5 543,198,935,000%8 7T (=
T —=%1:3,202,603,0008 )&
3,167,974,0008 L (=T — = F:
3,163,462,000% 70 ) A&t B 5K B (FI R
TIRBE R RESE) I 82T 2 RIEH
BB e A &R BRI EEE
B

d #Hz2-_FT-—NWF+-_A=+—HLHF
[+ 7R A A A4 59,623,030,00078 7T
T — =4 :6,386,027,000& 7T ) °

REPAREREE

BREM B FREEIN ARERREHRE
BUATRS

i £ Asian East Limited ([ Asian East]) (Z&
ARz —BEEZEREEHRBLAR) REKE
AT ([Onek@E]) ([OneH &)

MRZZE—MFE+=ZH+=H" () Rich Lucky
Limited ([Rich Lucky |) * KRRz —fEE#E2
BHAMWEB AR (VA28 fEARch Lucky
R A (i) Market Victory Limited ([ Market
Victory ])  —BBBIZ X £ 2 EHBE 2D
Al R (V) BIEHE 5 A - 1E /S Market Victory & 4R
A RIM—IEE E W& o B - Rich LuckyR &=
& K Market Victory[F E #8 B Asian Eastz &
BEETRA  BRERUT 24 1 (a) One
EENTR BB G EESAEEE k()
Onef EM TR A HIENSBRASERE R
Al (OneEERRHN) 2 2 ERIE 2 EELTE R
AREBFEAKE AR (TREONEE )R T
B B EAFE A R 45 R A One S B 2 2 BB 5K IE 2
E{ERAFE - OneHEZ FBERIHN AR AR
HoRlR—T—NE+-_A+-AR=-_F—1A
F—AtHzZAMmEBEA -

—E-MEFE FAELEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt i 3R R KI5
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 HE T —MF+_-_A=+—HILFE

/ 55. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 55. EHIREBEIE »)

(Cont'd)
On 23rd January, 2015, the One Disposal transaction was duly RZE—RAF—-HAZ+T=H OneEZX 5
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the BARAZBIRERRREFN ARSI E-
special general meeting. The One Disposal has not yet completed One ERNBEI ERGFAEMBHMKRE HmA
up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial FERK ©
statements.

56. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE 56. RETIBRGEE M BER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and ESEQER T —AF=A+ABHEREK
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19th March, 2015. ERMEE T BwmE-
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Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

Results

Revenue

Profit (loss) before tax from
continuing operations
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share (HK$)

Basic and diluted (note)

Final and interim dividends per share

(HK cents)

Special dividend per share (HK cents)

REFBLEERZ
BRAEN (B1)
RSB %

TEEREHELERY
2N (E8)

TEEREER RS
FB2 8

FEREM (BR])

fE1h
AREHEA
FEBER

Fhan (BR) (Br)
HERREE (M)

BRAMRPHRE
(&)
BB GEIL)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEBHE

For the year ended 31st December
HET-A=t-BLEE

AEEBENFZXE EERAGEHREINT:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TR
(Restated)
(231
2,627,288 6,452,726 2,433,544 527792 2,671,012
9,008,758 6,945,040 10,113,939 3,624,745 (8,715,145)
(255,859) (443919)  (299,090) (115,888)  (120,602)
8,752,899 6,501,121 9,814,849 3,508,857 (8,835,747)
- 501 5,667 10,847 -
8,752,899 6,501,622 9,820,516 3,519,704 (8,835,747)
8,744,927 6,317,737 9,794,937 3,497816 (8,858,245)
1972 183,885 25,579 21,888 22,498
8,752,899 6,501,622 9,820,516 3,519,704 (8,835,747)
4.58 3.31 5.14 1.83 (4.60)
31 70 21 2 1
655 130 100 - 40

Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is  Bff
based on the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company for
the years and on the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the relevant years. Diluted earnings (loss) per share was the
same as the basic earnings (loss) per share as there were no diluting
events during the relevant years.

PN

at -

FREAREERN (BB DREBEFEAR
AEAARMGEN (BB RERFECHTR
Dz OB E - AN L EHEEIR 8A
MEEBREERT (B18) BERkELRRF
(E18) MR -

—E-mEER 3

EABXEE
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY H F B E

At 31st December
Rt=-A=t+-AH
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL FET FEL TEL
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERT 71,424,931 75810226 74529259 61,511,597 55,056,360
Total liabilities BBEEE (29,772,338)  (28,620,461)  (28,550,934)  (25,143,590)  (20,845,509)
Total equity flevi gt 41,652,593 47189765 45978325 36368007 34,210,851
Attributable to: e
Owners of the Company FAVNGIEZZ=DN 41,567,354 47103748 45546522 35651332 33507866
Non-controlling interests RS 85,239 86,017 431,803 716,675 702,985
41,652,593 47189765 45978325 36368007 34210851
Net asset value per share attributable to ARRHEAEEGR
owners of the Company (HK$) BEFEGEL) 21.79 24.69 23.88 18.69 1757
Number of shares issued BE{TRIDEE 1,907,619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079
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The following table sets forth the Group’s major properties as at 31st December, 2014:

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TEVMERMER

TREFAEER -_ZT—HUF+_A=+—HZIEYZE:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

Properties held for investment

Location

1B

1. Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(including 157 car parking spaces)
EEXRE
ERMELSS LITEINSR
(BE157fEE )

2. Harcourt House
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd,
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors,
rooms 1004 and 1805)
39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)
ERARE
BREFELTITEIMN
(7-849222+23.25"
26:27# - 1004 21805 E K 5N)
(BREN3EEN)

3. MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 55 car parking
spaces on basement)
XEREAE
BBETELITESN
(BfEE 255 %)

4. The ONE*
No. 100 Nathan Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
The ONE*
EEABAYE
FBE100%:

*

BEBYE

FIEREME

Lot number

ity B 4 55

The Remaining Portions of
Inland Lot Nos. 7717 and 7718
Section A of Inland Lot No. 781 and

Sections A and C of Inland Lot No. 782

A ER7717 K% 7718582 T 25
M ER 78157 AR &
A ER 78285 AR CER

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 8573
AR 85735 2
ETEDHNE

Certain parts or shares of and

in Inland Lot Nos. 3287 and 6936
P B2 3287 %.6936%% 2
ETHoHE

The Remaining Portion of
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6022

BE N3 BR 602257
BTED

Category of

the lease

Usage term

Jich -3 HEER
Commercial Long
[GES &H
Commercial Long
[GE &8
Commercial Long
[GES =31
Commercial Medium
[GES )

—B-mEEH

4t

.

A

Group’s
interest
S
Pk

100%

100%

100%

100%

The Group has entered into a disposal agreement to dispose the company holding The ONE. Such transaction is expected to be completed in 2015.
AEEFTV—HEEREN L ERAThe ONEZ AR - BHZRHBR T —AETK

EXEE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES % 2 ¥ 3£ fff &

/ PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd) EBWE )
Properties held for investment (Cont'd) BFEREWE (F)

Category of Group’s
the lease interest
Location Lot number Usage term 3

ok b B w5 itk AR Frib R

5. Silvercord* Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Long 100%
Shops, restaurants and coffee shop in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 10656 EE RH
on basement, shops on lower ground floor, BEMIER 106565 2
ground floor (excluding shop no. 38), ETHomE
1st floor (excluding shop no. 39),
2nd floor (excluding shop no. 41),
the whole 3rd floor and
car parking spaces nos. 1,2, 6,78, 9,21,

24,25, 26, 29, 30, 34 and 35 on basement
No. 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

i Ll
BENBELDHEERBEI0M
WE 2 EE RERWYE
TR # T (38R ERIN)
112 (3o5RAEHR ) -

26 (1R EBRIN) -
BRECHEER

HiEE1 26478921
242542629 30 * 34 %355 BhL

* The Group disposed of the companies holding Silvercord in January 2015.
AEEER _Z-hF-ALERBMEROLZ R

6.  Causeway Place* Certain parts or shares of and Residential/ Long 100%
Various shops on ground floor, in Inland Lot No. 7742 Commercial =4
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and WHLEL 774257 2 FE/ %
their respective portions of exterior walls, ETEA s HE
together with flats C, 1, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion
nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and
nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
48 o
ECEE
BEMEITHRR
AR E2-105%

EBRE

W g g R
ETHER
HEXBD 2 MEER

3#C 1)K L*N-0-P:Q
(BREEEL2TA) RHEM

* Certain shops have been sold.

ETE#CEH-
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES I E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd) BERBYE®

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

1
7.

BENELH
REA235:
XA REE3Z50EEM
8. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 352 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
EREER
BEEIRETEN
(BRE352E THEM R77EER)
9. Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including 194 private car parking spaces
and 24 motorcycle parking spaces)
BiEH3H
BEABENE
BB
(BE194ERLREEL R4EESBESL)
10.  Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including 238 private car parking spaces
and 25 motorcycle parking spaces)
REE
ERABNE
RAE 1
(BIE3SELREEM RSEESEESL)
Location Lot number
ok bR
1. No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace* Section M of
Mid-Levels East Inland Lot No. 2302
Hong Kong and the Extension
BEREL thereto and
ERENR Section X of

Gemstar Tower

The roof together with

50 car parking spaces

on st to 3rd Floors

No. 23 Man Lok Street

Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BRE

Inland Lot No. 2302
and the Extension

thereto

30230288 MER I
HERBH UK

M3 B 230255 XEX
HERSSH

* Under redevelopment

et

BFEREWE (F)
Category of Group’s
the lease interest
Lot number Usage term 3]
1t B} 4R 5% A% HEER Frik s
Certain parts or shares of and Car parking Medium 100%
in Hung Hom Inland Lot No. 545 AL i
ALT 73 BR5455% 2
ATHHRHE
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial Medium 33.3300
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 I% i Hf
BIUENRA155 2
EFHokHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Medium 25%
in Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. EES ]
11167 and 11168
NEAME
11167 % 11168% 2
ATHoRHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Medium 15%
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 [SES i Hf
NERIBEI1073% 2
EFBoHE
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area
completion (square feet) (square feet) Category of  Group's
Stage of date wEERE fhst the lease  interest
completion fi st HE BAREEDR Usage term 58
52 B P B TR AH (FER) (FER) Bg HEERN FEER
Superstructure First quarter 12,030 40,726  Residential Long 100%
work in progress of 2016 € =
TERETR —ERF
ET F-=

s
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES % 2 ¥ 3£ fff &

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties under development held for sale

Location
5

1. One South Lane*
Western District
Hong Kong
ERAR
FEED A

* Under redevelopment

BT

2. No. 55 Conduit Road
Hong Kong
0
TFRZE55%

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Stage of
completion

TRER

Lot number
B RS

Remaining Portion of
Sub-section 2 of
Section C

Remaining Portion of
Section A of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C

Remaining Portion of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C and
Remaining Portion of
Section C

Section A of
Sub-section 2 of
Section C
Sub-section 1 of
Section A of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C

Section B of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C
Sub-section 3 of
Section C of

Inland Lot No. 1300
3 £ 130037
CEB2R BT H 7
CR1DBARDER T E7
CRIDBBRTHA R
CBRHTEHD
CBR27 BAE D
CRIDBASD D12 E
CE15 BBE 7
CR3NE

Superstructure
work in progress
LTERETR
#1TH

Remaining Portion of
Section A of

Inland Lot No. 2138
Sub-section 1 of

Section A of

Inland Lot No. 2138 and
Inland Lot No. 2612
MHLER2138AR B T H 7
Wi E21385AR 1 D B &
R 26125

Superstructure
work in progress
LERETRE
EIT

EBYME

BEHEZBRPYE

Estimated

Approx. gross

site area floor area

Estimated (square (square

completion feet) feet)

date HEEE fast

fbst HE BENEE

ZHAH (FAR) (FAR)

Third quarter 4192 41318
of 2016
—TRF
£=F

Second quarter 36,000 87,800

of 2015
—T-hE

o
E-F

Usage
R&

Residential/
Commercial

/%

Residential
FE

Group's
interest
-
Ptz

100%

70%



PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

it B

1. Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REEBRKE
RS R
R R RN

2. Evergo Tower
(excluding unit no. 3 on 9th floor and
unit no. 7 on 10th floor)
1325 Central Huaihai Road and 1 Baoging Road
Xuhui District, Shanghai
BEESKRE
FEmiRER
R R R 132555 I B BB ER 158
(T BIEMEIERIOETE)

3. Platinum
233 Taicang Road
Huangpu District, Shanghai
FEAE
EEmERR
KB HE2335%

4.  Chinese Estates Centre
No. 99 Tidu Street
Qingyang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province

ZEEHR
I B E T S F &
REH95R

5.  Splendid City Commercial Building
No. 123 Yingbin Avenue
Jinniu District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province
EB-HRHEES
m)IE KT & 4@
HMEAE1235

6. Lowu Commercial Plaza
79 retail shops on 1st floor
Jianshe Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
ENE
BERE R =
HIRVETOEZEEHE

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES * E W) K&k

R B P 3t 4 3R

FIEREME

Usage
A&

Commercial

[CE

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

[CES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Category of
the lease
term

A& 5

Medium

&

Medium

]

Medium

A

Medium

&

Medium

&

Medium

&

—B-mEEH

Group's
interest
3
PR R

50%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES % 2 ¥ 3£ fff &

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

it 3

7. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
tREEEEE
ERTHEGE
R R

8.  The St. Regis Chengdu
No. 88 South Taisheng Road
Qingyang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province

REEEEE
N ERRE T EFE
K FE 58855k

Properties held for sale

Location

it B

1. splendid City
No. 165 Yingbin Avenue
Jinniu District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province
ES-THHRRE
MNARKE T 4=
HWE KE1655%

* Certain units have been sold.
ETEMNBEH-

2. The Metropolis
Tower 1 and Tower 2
No. 60 Yixue Lane
No. 38 Tangba Street
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province
EE-HMEERE
E-ERE_RE
Y114 A &R T 8% 0T [&
#2605
12 SEHT3855%

* Certain units have been sold.
ETEMDPEL-

AR A ith ) 2 )
BEREWE (B)
Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& HEER
Hotel/Commercial Medium
BIE FHR
Hotel/Commercial Medium
BIE oA
BEHEWE

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
HEEEHENE
(FEFR)

54,183*

636,644*
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Usage
Ay

Residential
x=E

Residential
*=

Group's
interest
3

FR b R

50%

100%

Group’'s
interest
5
Frih =

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA (contd)

Property under development held for sale

Location
o
1. Chinese Estates Plaza

(Residential portion)

No. 33 East Dagjang Street
Qingyang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province

EBRES
(EZ=#2)
mIERHBTEFR
AHERAT335%:

Estimated

completion

Stage of date
completion fiat
TRER b d=h
Completed N/A
B TER

Centre, The ONE Chengdu and its residential portion.
ZEEAREERR (MFERS) ZEHERE ARBREEE FET0 M#The ONERAEERHAM -

Property under development held for investment

Location
5

1. The ONE Chengdu
No. 99 Tidu Street
Qingyang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province

H #The ONE
mIEkHBmEFR
REH9%

Estimated

completion

Stage of date
completion fast
TR B TR AH
Completed N/A
Bk TEm

Centre, The ONE Chengdu and its residential portion.
ZREARMEES (NEERS) CEBEAE ARBREEE EE.0 K#The ONEREEEHHEMX -

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES * E W) K&k

AR B A i 2 )

FEHREZBRTYE
Estimated

Approx. gross
site area floor area
(square (square
feet) feet)
BEREE fiat
ESE BEEEE
(FER) (FER)
404,110% 1,549,575

FEREZBRTYE
Estimated
Approx. gross
site area floor area
(square (square
feet) feet)
HEREE fist
HE LREER Usage
(FER) (FER) ik <3
404,110* 961,422 Commercial
[GES

—B-mEEH

Group's

interest

Usage £
B Pt R
Residential 100%

fFe

Area stated herein represents aggregate site area of the whole project, i.e. Chinese Estates Plaza, which consists of The St. Regis Chengdu, Chinese Estates

Category of Group's
the lease interest
term -
HEER Frib s
Medium 100%

H

Area stated herein represents aggregate site area of the whole project, i.e. Chinese Estates Plaza, which consists of The St. Regis Chengdu, Chinese Estates

s

EABEXEHE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES % 2 ¥ 3£ fff &

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA (contd)

Properties under development

Location

B

1. The Metropolis*
Tower 3
No. 60 Yixue Lane
No. 38 Tangba Street
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province
EB HEEE
B
I R & 87 LR
FEB605%
{7 8L 73855

Stage of
completion

52 7 B

In planning and
design stage

HERE MR R

Estimated
completion
date

fhEt TR B

To be scheduled
5

ZEREARMEAR (BRE-—ERE_F) ZARERE -

2. The Coronation*
No. 1 Zhongxin Section
and Qiaobei Village
Huaxinjie Street
Jiangbei District
Chongqing
fHRE X g+
EEMITILE
ENEEE
BN R
AR

*

Phase I:
Construction
work in progress
£
BHEIR
EITH

Phase I:
Third quarter
of 2017
£—H:
T —tF

-
E=F

RERONHER -ZEHAEREERE 2R@E-

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2014

AR B A i 2 )

BREPME

Approx.
site area
(square
feet)

i B R
HY
(FER)

194,336*

2,207,546*

Estimated
gross

floor area
(square
feet)

&t
HEEEER
(FFR)

539,634

Area stated herein represents aggregate site area of the whole project including Tower 1 and Tower 2.

11,086,000*

Usage
Jich-3

Residential
and
commercial

EEREE

Residential,
commercial
and school
FTE-BE

RER

The project will be developed in four phases. Area stated herein represents aggregate area of the whole project.

Group’s
interest
£H
PRk s

100%

25%



PROPERTY IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Property held for investment

Location

o 36

1. River Court
116-129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
B fm ECA
Fleet Street 116-1295%

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Usage
ke

Commercial

[EES

KB
FEREWME

Category of

the lease

term

AR

Freehold

KA EERE

“E-EFEFR

FEMEM =R

Group's
interest
s
Fri e

100%

EAEXEE
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTIES DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
YIS 3 R e Y R

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG BEEBUE
Property held for sale BEHEDE
Approx.
saleable
floor area Group's
(square feet) interest
Location Lot number EREBRAK Usage £8
1t 2 3 B 4 5 (FFR) Az FribRE &
1. One WanChai Section F and 1,357* Residential 87.5%
1 Wanchai Road the Remaining Portion of Fx (Notes
Wanchai, Hong Kong Inland Lot No. 8953 1and 2)
R P ER 89535 FER I (Bt R2)
BBET HER T &9
EFER

*

Notes:

fi i

1.

Sold after 31st December, 2014.
R-Z—ME+-A=+—H#EEH-

It refers to the Group's percentage of interest of property development rights in a consortium which engaged Urban Renewal
Authority ("URA") (the successor to Land Development Corporation) in the project.
ZEmEAEEETREER([TEB]) (RLHBERAFZECA)RRNLEZEAZ MELRENMEZ EEE S
ke -

2. The 87.5% attributable interest of property development rights includes the indirect interest of 12.5% held through the Group's
interest in Power Jade Limited which has a 25% direct interest in the consortium.
FEA5 1) 5% 3 R AE 1| 2 87,5001 2 82 15375 18 A SR (B 1 Power Jade Limited (H 45 % I 25008 £ 45 ) PTHF12.50% 2 e 2 4
3. In this joint venture with URA, the consortium finances both the land costs and construction costs, and is entitled to claim for
reimbursements for land costs and construction costs so incurred together with the share of any development profits with URA
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the joint development agreement.
ERETERAEZAEHEAD ZMERT A ARBERFREE S WERKBELRARR B R IGERGGERA
BT R TR RRERAR  ARETERDEDEMNEREH -
Property held for development FERRYE
Estimated
Approx. gross
site area floor area
Estimated (square (square
completion feet) feet) Group's
Stage of date HEER H) interest
Name of project Lot number completion frst Ny HABEER Usage &H
HRAR R RS TRER mRAH  (FAR) (EFR) BE  FifiER
1. Kwun Tong Town New Kowloon Foundation work ~ First quarter 234,160 1,853,561  Residential/ 10%
Centre Project Inland Lot No. 6514 will be commenced of 2021 Commercial
Development Areas 2 and 3 #T /1€ in March 2015 —ZF=—% FE/ 1%
Kwun Tong Town Centre A X 65145 WHEIE £F—%
Kowloon, Hong Kong BR-ZT—n%F
BRTHLGHE =RER
BENE
BEmDL
F_RFE=EER
Note: The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with URA. The land had been handed over
in December 2014.
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